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SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this report, includivagters discussed under the caption “ManagemBidgtussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” mawgstitute forward-looking statements for purpasiethe Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Act, and the Secufitiehange Act of 1934, as amended, or the ExchartjeaAd involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors that mapeawr actual results, performance or achieventertis materially different from the future
results, performance or achievements expressedpied by such forward-looking statements. The wdihticipate,” "believe," "estimate,"
"may," "expect" and similar expressions are gehenatended to identify forward-looking statemen@ur actual results may differ materially
from the results anticipated in these forward-logkstatements due to a variety of factors, inclgdwithout limitation, those discussed under
the captions “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discassand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft®perations” and elsewhere in this
report, as well as other factors which may be ifiedtfrom time to time in our other filings witthé Securities and Exchange Commission, or
the SEC, or in the documents where such forwarkitapstatements appear. All written or oral forwdwdking statements attributable to us
expressly qualified in their entirety by these @andry statements. Such forward-looking statemiaiside, but are not limited to, statements
about our:

« expectations for increases or decreases in exgenses

« expectations for the clinical and pre-clinical depeent, manufacturing, regulatory approval, anchiec@rcialization of our
pharmaceutical product candidates or any otherymtsdve may acquire or-license;

« use of clinical research centers and other comrsict

» expectations as to the timing of commencing or detimg pre-clinical and clinical trials and the exgied outcomes of those
trials;

« expectations for incurring capital expendituresxpand our research and development and manufagttapabilities;
« expectations for generating revenue or becominfjtabde on a sustained basis;

« expectations or ability to enter into marketing atlder partnership agreements;

« expectations or ability to enter into product asgign and in-licensing transactions;

»  expectations or ability to build our own commerdidiastructure to manufacture, market and selldyug candidates;
« acceptance of our products by doctors, patienpagors;

« ability to compete against other companies andarekdnstitutions;

« ability to secure adequate protection for our Ietglial property;

« ability to attract and retain key personnel;

« availability of reimbursement for our products;

» estimates of the sufficiency of our existing castl aash equivalents and investments to financeparating requirements,
including expectations regarding the value andidiiy of our investments

« stock price and its volatility;
« expected losses; and
« expectations for future capital requirements.

The forward-looking statements contained in thporereflect our views and assumptions only asefdate this report is signed.
Except as required by law, we assume no respomgitiit updating any forward-looking statements.

We qualify all of our forward-looking statements thyese cautionary statements. In addition, witpeesto all of our forward-looking
statements, we claim the protection of the safbdrdior forward-looking statements contained in Bmavate Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995.




PART |

(I

Unless the context requires otherwise, refereneekis report to “TG,” “Company,” “we,
Inc. and our subsidiarie:

us” and “o ur” refer to TG Therapeutic

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
OVERVIEW

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused ondpgigition, development and commercialization ofeldreatments for b-cell
malignancies and autoimmune diseases. Currendycdmpany is developing two therapies targetingdielongical malignancies. TG-1101
(ublituximab) is a novel, glycoengineered monoclardibody that targets a specific and unique g@giton the CD20 antigen found on mature
B-lymphocytes. TG Therapeutics is also developi@R¥1202, an orally available PI3K delta inhibitbhe delta isoform of PI3K is strongly
expressed in cells of hematopoietic origin anceléelved to be important in the proliferation andvétal of B-lymphocytes. Both TG-1101 and
TGR-1202 are in clinical development for patientdwihhematologic malignancies. The Company alsoahaie-clinical program to develop
inhibitors of IRAK4 (interleukin-1 receptor-assoigd kinase 4), as well as an antibody researchrgno¢p develop anti-PD-L1 and anti-GITR
antibodies, all currently in pre-clinical developmhe

We also actively evaluate complementary produetdiriologies and companies for in-licensing, pastmer acquisition and/or
investment opportunities. To date, we have notivedeapproval for the sale of any of our drug cdatkés in any market and, therefore, have
not generated any product sales from our drug datei.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1993. Our ekeewffices are located at 3 Columbus Circle, Néwvk, New York 10019. Our
telephone number is 212-554-4484, and our e-mdiless is info@tgtxinc.com.

We file reports with the SEC on an annual basisgifiorm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q andtenut reports on Form 8-K.
You may read and copy any such reports and amertdrtiezeto at the SEC’s Public Reference Room @t18treet, N.E., Washington, D.C.
20549 on official business days during the hours00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Please call the SEC @QtSECO330 for information on the Pub
Reference Room. Additionally, the SEC maintainsedsite that contains annual, quarterly, and cunegmtrts, proxy statements, and other
information that issuers (including us) file electically with the SEC. The SEC’s website addresgtis.//www.sec.gov.

PRODUCTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
TG-1101 (ublituximab)
Overview

TG-1101 (ublituximab) is a chimeric, glycoengineereshwclonal antibody that targets a unique epitoptherCD20 antigen found
the surface of B-lymphocytes developed to aid exdhpletion of circulating B-cells. We hold excltesivorldwide rights to develop and
commercialize TG-1101 for all indications, excemt the territories of France and Belgium which hbaeen retained by LFB Biotechnologies,
and South Korea and Southeast Asia which weredexito lldong Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd (“lldong”)Nievember 2012.

Generally, anti-CD20 antibodies are believed tatetkesir B-cell depleting effects through threenpary mechanisms: antibody
dependent cell-mediated cytotoxicity (‘ADCC"), colament dependent cytotoxicity (“CDC"), and directppogrammed cell death (“DCD” or
“PCD"). TG-1101 has been specifically glycoengireegtto enhance ADCC activity, which should enhatealility to deplete B-cells and may
improve its anti-cancer effects when compared taxRn®, the leading anttD20 monoclonal antibody, which had worldwide saite2013 of
approximately $8 billion.

Two single-agent, dose-escalation, Phase | stugdes undertaken with TG-1101 to establish an ogtdoae in patients with Non-
Hodgkin’s Lymphoma (“NHL") and Chronic Lymphocyticcukemia (“CLL"). A two part first-in-human Phaselinical trial was first
completed in France in which TG-1101 was evaluatadlapsed or refractory CLL patients at doseBigls as 450mg per infusion.
Subsequently, a single-agent Phase | study wagtakée in the US enrolling patients with both NHidaCLL, dosing patients up to 1200mg
per infusion. In both studies, single agent thenajilf TG-1101 was deemed well tolerated by treaimgstigators and displayed promising
clinical activity in relapsed and refractory patin




In oncology settings, anti-CD20 therapy is gengrafled in combination with other am@ncer agents where it demonstrates maxi
activity as opposed to single agent usage. Asudtyssibsequent clinical development for TG-1104 feused on combination therapy.
Currently, our priority combination trials for TGLQ1 are:

o TG-1101 in combination with ibrutinib, a BTK inhtbr, for patients with CLL and Mantle Cell Lymphor(MCL); and
o TG-1101 in combination with TGR-1202, the Compargéselopment stage PI8Knhibitor, for patients with CLL and NHI

Additionally, in September 2014, we announced ast Phase 3 registration study for TG-1101, whé&cavaluating TG-1101 in
combination with ibrutinib compared to ibrutiniboak in patients with high-risk CLL and is being danted under Special Protocol
Assessment (SPA) with the U.S. Food and Drug Adstiation (“FDA”), as described further below. TRkase 3 registration study
commenced enrollment in January 2015.

Manufacturing of TG-1101 is currently performeddayr partner, LFB Biotechnologies and we are ingrezess of bringing a
secondary manufacturer on line.

Pre-Clinical Data Overview

The mechanism of action of anti-CD20 antibodiesluding rituximab and TG-1101 has been elucidatedidetailed in numerous
academic and clinical studies. Upon conjugatiothefantibody to the CD20 surface antigen, rituxirnab been found to deplete B-
lymphocytes through three primary mechanisms: ADCDBC, and DCD or PCD.

Antibody dependent cellular cytotoxicity, or ADCi8,a mechanism that is dependent on interactiotvedam the Fc region of the
antibody and the FgR receptors on immune system effector cells, mogibly the Fg RIIIA (CD16) receptor found on NK cells. These
interactions trigger cells to release cytotoxic @woles and proteases resulting in B-cell death1TI@t is a third generation, type | chimeric
IgG1 monoclonal antibody with a glycoengineeredégion designed specifically to induce higher AD&sivity in comparison to rituximab,
which has been demonstrated in pre-clinical models.

Clinical Data Overview and Recent Developments
Single Agent TG-1101 in Relapsed/Refractory CLL

A multicenter, open-label Phase I/Ib clinical tradlTG-1101 was completed which aimed to assessafety, tolerability, and efficacy
of TG-1101 in patients with relapsed or refract@hylL. This two part, first-inman, dose escalating trial was conducted in ninéecg in Franc
with preliminary results presented at the"8and 53 Annual American Society of Hematology (“ASH”) megjs, respectively.

The study regimen in Part 1 involved 21 patientfviea dosing cohorts receiving infusions of TG-111la dose ranging from 5mg to
450mg once weekly over the course of four weekd. Paf this study included 12 patients and evaddhe safety and efficacy profile of TG-
1101 when administered in an 8-dose regimen (15@itigl dose, followed by seven doses of 450mg).

TG-1101 was well tolerated with adverse events galyeconsistent with those exhibited by other a@B20 antibodies. In Part 2 of
the study, rapid, near total blood lymphocyte diémtewas observed in all patients. Overall respassessment at month four according to
NCI-WG guidelines following treatment, TG-1101 wasriduo produce a durable partial response (“PRY/irl (45%) evaluable patients.

Single Agent TG-1101 in Relapsed/Refractory NHLL& C

Our first US based trial entitled "An Open LabebBé I/Il Trial of the Efficacy and Safety of TG-11ih Patients with B-cell Non-
Hodgkin’s Lymphoma who have Relapsed or are Refractory A&fz20 Directed Antibody Therapy," was launchedhia third quarter of 201
In July 2014, this trial completed enrollment at&ients, of which 12 patients were included i dose escalation component and 23 patien
in various expansion cohorts. All enrolled patientse relapsed or refractory to Ritux&8or a Rituxar® containing regimen, and in most cases
multiple other lines of therapy. Dr. Owen O'Conrfapfessor of Medicine and Director, Center for Ipfraid Malignancies at New York
Presbyterian Columbia Medical Center was the Rraldnvestigator for the multi-center study.




Data from this study was presented at th&5@8merican Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) 20Adnual Meeting in Chicago, IL,
and is summarized below:

Safety and Tolerability

TG-1101 was well tolerated at all dose levels tbgtehe 35 patients evaluable for safety, with Dagfusion related reactions (IRR)
being the most frequently reported adverse evedhtRR's were Grade 1 or 2 in severity, were maiadigs and occurred more frequently in
patients with CLL. Infusion times for the fourthdalater infusions of TG-1101 averaged approxima®&lyminutes.

Clinical Activity

The combined overall response rate (ORR) for theesPl dose escalation component and expansiontsates 43% (30% PR, 13%
CR) among the 30 rituximab relapsed/refractorygrasi evaluable for efficacy at the time of the prdation. TG-1101 displayed marked
clinical activity as a single agent in a varietylyghphoma subtypes, reporting a 67% (4/6) respoaigein patients with CLL and 44% (8/18)
response rate in patients with indolent NHL (22% B PR). Responses were durable, with a medigatidn of progression free survival
(PFS) among patients who achieved SD or betteraaahed, and a median PFS for all patients on siti@¢ weeks (n=30) at the time of the
data presentation.

TG-1101 in Combination with TGR-1202 for Relapsettéttory NHL & CLL

In November 2013, we initiated a multi-center, Rhistudy to evaluate the safety and efficacy efdbmbination of TG-1101 and
TGR-1202, the Company's novel, once per day, PiBHKibitor, for patients with relapsed and/or refaay CLL and NHL. This is the first
clinical trial evaluating the combination of TG-1118nd TGR-1202. In this study, dosing of TGR-1206thmenced at 800mg (initial
formulation) and has escalated to 600mg (micronfaemhulation) once per day (QD) with dose escataficoceeding in a 3+3 design. Dose-
escalation up to 1200mg micronized formulationléped. Additional cohorts were added to this stiadgxplore the triple therapy
combination of TG-1101, TGR-1202, and ibrutinib.

The trial, entitled "A Multi-center Phase I/Ib StuBvaluating the Efficacy and Safety of TG-1101 (jtitximab), a novel
Glycoengineered Anti-CD20 Monoclonal Antibody, ie@bination with TGR-1202, a Novel P13k Delta Inhdsj in Patients with B-cell
Malignancies," will enroll CLL and NHL patients wbe disease is relapsed from or refractory to phierapies, including prior anti-CD20
monoclonal antibodies, PI3Knhibitors, and/or BTK inhibitors The MD Anders@ancer Center is the lead center for the trial Wigtthan
Fowler, MD, Assistant Professor and Co-DirectoCtifical Research in the Department of LymphomahasStudy Chair for the NHL patient
group and Susan O’Brien, MD, formerly of MD Andensand now Professor and Medical Director for Cai@erical Trials and Research at
UC Irvine as the Study Chair for the CLL patienbgp.

Preliminary data from this study was presenteti@B6th Annual American Society of Hematology (ASkBeting held in San
Francisco, CA. and is summarized below:

Safety and Tolerability

The combination of TG-1101 and TGR-1202 was weédirttted in the 27 patients evaluable for safetyh way 1 infusion related
reactions (IRR) being the most frequently repoetidderse event. All IRR events were manageable wittlose reductions, and all but one
event was Grade 1 or 2 in severity. Other advereats included neutropenia, nausea, and diarrhidaneutropenia being the only Grade 3/4
adverse event reported in > 10% of patients (33%).

The triple combination of TG-1101, TGR-1202, anditmib was well tolerated in the 5 patients evhledor safety. No DLTs were
observed with IRR, nausea, fatigue, and diarrh@sgktee most commonly reported Grade 1/2 adversateyNo dose reductions or dose
delays were reported.

Clinical Activity
Of the 11 CLL/SLL patients enrolled, 9 were evaledbr efficacy. All 9 evaluable patients exhibiteddal reductions with 6 of 9

achieving a Partial Response by the iwCLL (HalléR&) or Cheson criteria. All evaluable CLL patierémained on study (durations of 3+ to
9+ months) pending further efficacy assessmentsraratpatient dose escalation, which is permifiedprotocol.




Of the 17 NHL or Richter's patients enrolled toejal were evaluable for efficacy (7 Diffuse LamgeCell Lymphoma (DLBCL), 9
Follicular Lymphoma (FL) and 1 Richter's). Patieintshis group were heavily piteeated, with 53% refractory to their prior treatrheegimen
In patients with DLBCL an ORR of 43% (3/7) was alyeel with 2 patients achieving a Complete Resp¢@89, both of which were
confirmed by independent radiologic review. Comsistith the exposure-response data recently regpantthe single agent dose escalation
trial of TGR-1202, all of the DLBCL and FL respossgccurred at the highest dose tested (1200mgpataufiation for DLBCL and 600mg
micronized).

TG-1101 in Combination with lbrutinib for RelapsRéfractory MCL & CLL

In December 2013, we initiated a multi-center Ptasknical trial to evaluate the safety and effigaf the combination of TG-1101
and ibrutinib for patients with CLL and MCL. This the first clinical trial evaluating the combiratiof TG-1101 and ibrutinib, an oral
Bruton's Tyrosine Kinase (BTK) inhibitor.

The trial, entitled "A Multi-center Phase 2 StudighwSafety Runin Evaluating the Efficacy and Safety of Ublituxilnen Combinatior
with Ibrutinib in Patients with Select B-Cell Mafigncies," enrolled patients with CLL and MCL whe eafigible to receive ibrutinib. TG
Therapeutics has partnered with the US Oncologybidt and other select centers throughout the Urtedies on the study, with Jeff
Sharman, MD, Medical Director for Hematology ResbatJS Oncology Network, as the Study Chair.

Preliminary data from this study was presentett@b6th Annual American Society of Hematology (ASkHeting held in San
Francisco, CA. and is summarized below:

Safety and Tolerability

TG-1101 in combination with ibrutinib was well todged in the 54 patients evaluable for safety, @ik 1 infusion related reactions
(IRR) being the most frequently reported adversne{regardless of causality). Only two Grade 8 adverse events were observed in > 5%
of patients: IRR (6%) and neutropenia (6%). Overdlde from day 1 IRR, the addition of TG-1101 wid appear to alter the safety profile
seen historically with single agent ibrutinib.

Clinical Activity

Of the 54 patients treated, 39 CLL and 8 MCL pdtiemere evaluable for response (2 SLL patients warelled and also included in
the safety analysis). The 5 CLL patients who wereavaluable included 3 who discontinued due tadrerse event and 2 who withdrew
consent prior to their first efficacy assessment.

The breakdown of responses is as follows:

Pts CR PR* PR nPR SD PD  ORR (%)

Type (n) (n) (n) (n) (n) (n) () (CR/PR)

CLL patients (all) 39 1 3 3C 1 3 1 87%
High-Risk Subse 20 1 2 1€ - - 1 95%

MCL patients 8 3 - 4 - 1 - 88%

CR: Complete Response; PR*: CR pending bone macomfirmation; PR: Partial Response by iwCLL (Hall308) or Cheson Criteria;
nPR: nodal PR; SD: Stable Disease > 12 weeks; Rigréssive Disease

TG-1101 + Ibrutinib Phase 3 Study Program — The GHNE Trial

We reached an agreement with the U.S. Food and Bdugjnistration (FDA) regarding a Special Protofaksessment (SPA) on the
design, endpoints and statistical analysis approfaPhase 3 clinical trial for TG-1101 ibrutirfidr the treatment of previously treated CLL
patients with high risk cytogenetics. The SPA pdeg agreement that the Phase 3 trial design addyaaldresses objectives that would
support the regulatory submission for drug approval

The Phase 3 trial, named the GENUINE trial, isralcamized controlled clinical trial, with patientsceiving either TG-1101 plus
ibrutinib or ibrutinib alone. The trial will enrolipproximately 330 patients, with the first 200iguatls evaluated for overall response rate (Ol
and all patients followed for progression-free sual/(PFS). As per the SPA, if the data is positiwe plan to use the ORR data from the trial
as the basis for submission of a Biologics Licefsgplication (BLA) for accelerated approval for TI:01, with the PFS assessment intend
support a filing for full approval.




TGR-1202
Overview
The phosphoinositide-3-kinases (“PI3Ks”) are a fgraf enzymes involved in various cellular functgrincluding cell proliferation
and survival, cell differentiation, intracellulaafficking, and immunity. There are four isofornfsRI3K (alpha, beta, delta, and gamma), of
which the deltad) isoform is strongly expressed in cells of hematefic origin, and often implicated in B-cell reddtlymphomas.
TGR-1202 is an orally available PI3K delta inhibitaith nanomolar potency to the delta isoform aightselectivity over the alpha,
beta, and gamma isoforms. TGR-1202 has demonstatedty in several pre-clinical models and prigmaells from patients with various
hematologic malignancies.

We hold exclusive rights to develop and commerzéaliGR-1202 for all indications worldwide, exceptlia which has been retained
by Rhizen Pharmaceuticals, SA.

The Company’s Investigational New Drug (“IND”) apaltion for TGR-1202 was accepted by the FDA in &gber 2012 and a first
in-human Phase | clinical trial was initiated imdary 2013.

Pre-Clinical Data Overview

In an enzyme based assay, TGR-1202 demonstratedqyocind specificity towards PI8Kvith >1000, 50 and 48-fold selectivity over
thea, B, andy PI3K isoforms.

lci:‘:‘?“ Fold-Selectivity Figure 3: Potency and
Specificity of TGR-1202
PI3KS PI3Ka PI3Kp PI3Ky towards PI3K Delta
Enzyme 22,23 = 10000 =5 =85
Cell-based 24.27 =10000 =34 =17

Clinical Data Overview and Recent Developments

In January 2013, the Company initiated a Phaspdn ¢tabel, multi-center, first-in-human clinicabirof TGR-1202 in patients with
hematologic malignancies. The study entitled TGR2t201, "A Phase | Dose Escalation Study EvaluatiegSafety and Efficacy of TGR-
1202 in Patients with Relapsed or Refractory Hetogto Malignancies," is being run in collaboratiaith the Sarah Cannon Research
Institute in Nashville, TN with Howard “Skip” Busj MD, Executive Director, Drug Development asalgng Study Chair. Enrollment is
open to patients with relapsed or refractory NHLLCand other select hematologic malignancies. ASabruary 2015, TGR-1202-101 is
ongoing and enrolling patients in the dose esaalatomponent of the Phase | study and select eipaoshorts.

As of December 1, 2014, we had presented data 3 patients with relapsed or refractory hematologédignancies treated with
TGR-1202 at doses ranging from 50 mg to 1800 mgo®Qe initial formulation and 200 mg to 1200 mgaof improved micronized
formulation of TGR-1202, which exhibits enhancedabtion over the initial formulation.

Data from this ongoing Phase | study was preseattéite 56th Annual American Society of Hematolog$) meeting held in San
Francisco, CA. and is summarized below :

Safety and Tolerability

Overall, TGR-1202 was considered to be well-tokstatith no dose-related trends in adverse everasrebd and no MTD reached to
date. Grade 3/4 events continue to be limited, withtropenia (13%) and thrombocytopenia (7%) tHg Gmade 3/4 events occurring in > 5%
of patients. Notably, of the 55 patients evaludbtesafety, no drug related hepatic (liver) toxiaitr events of colitis have been observed, with
the median time on study of approximately 6 momthd some patients on daily TGARO2 for over 1.5 years. To date, out of 55 pati¢matec
with TGR-1202, only 2 (< 4%) patients were withdraedue to an adverse event (one deemed unrelatg@dnenpossibly related to TGR-1202).




Clinical Activity

Significant clinical activity was observed in patie with CLL treated at doses300 mg of the initial formulation of TGR202 or witk
any dose of the improved micronized formulatiorthvéll (14/14) patients exhibiting significant nddeductions. Thirteen of fourteen
evaluable patients (93%) exhibited a nodal resp@n&9% reduction in nodal size) and 50% of pai€it14) achieved a partial response per
the iwCLL (Hallek 2008) criteria.

Among all disease types, 43 patients had beeretteditdoses 800 mg of the initial formulation of TGR-1202 oitlvany dose of the
micronized formulation and were evaluable for eftig (including patients who started at lower dases were escalated), with 31/43 (72%)
achieving a reduction in tumor burden with TGR-12@2both CLL and indolent NHL (iNHL), an exposuiaie/response relationship was
noted where patients with higher TGR-1202 plasnmecentrations on day 30 of treatment were obsemvechibit greater responses to TGR-
1202 at early efficacy assessments. For instanacug concentrations > 4000ng/ml, 100% (6/6) dfjscts who exhibited such concentrations
on day 30 of treatment (4 CLL and 2 iNHL) achievegid responses (either nPR or PR at first or st@ssessment). The concentration
threshold for response appears to be moderatehehigith iNHL than with CLL. Of the 3 INHL respondg 2 patients exhibited concentrati
> 4,000ng/ml, while the third responder had low&RF1202 exposure and exhibited a longer time tpaese. An additional 9 patients of
varying NHL histologies with lower initial TGR-1202posure remain on study with tumor burden redustranging from 19%-46%, pending
further efficacy assessments. Additional respomnsge noted in patients with Hodgkin's lymphoma tahtle Cell Lymphoma.

Market Opportunity for TC-1101 & TGR-1202

Our lead products under development, TG-1101 anB-I&02 are for the treatment of B-cell hematologalignancies. Hematologic
malignancies include cancers derived from the boagow and lymph tissue. The non-Hodgkitymphomas (NHL) represent a heterogen
subset of these malignancies. Underneath the singte of lymphoma exist some of the most aggresgrowing cancers (Burkitt's
lymphoma, lymphoblastic lymphoma, diffuse large-@ktymphoma), as well as some of the most indofentall lymphocytic lymphoma,
follicular lymphoma, and marginal zone lymphoma)the United States, NHL represents 4-5% of all nancer cases, and is the fifth leading
cause of cancer death. According to the Americamc@aSociety, it is estimated in 2015 that therélve 71,850 new cases in the United
States, and 19,790 deaths from NHL, despite impnaves in treatment. Chronic lymphocytic leukemi&l(faffects mainly older adults and
accounts for one third of all diagnosed casesu¥dmia. In the US, an estimated 14,620 new cas€& bfwill be reported in 2015 with deaths
totaling 4,650 due to the disease according to AgamrCancer Society estimates. Despite improvemerterapy, up to one third of patients
with aggressive NHL continue to die from their dise, and indolent lymphomas remain incurable iratig=nce of allogeneic stem cell
transplant. The treatment paradigm for hematolagatignancies is well standardized in front lindisgs, with the anti-CD20 monoclonal
antibody, rituximab, administered generally in camattion with chemotherapeutic agents. While frame therapies are generally efficacious,
there are numerous downsides, including a highafatexicity associated with exposure to chemotpetdic agents. While initially responsive,
most patients with hematologic malignancies wilipse and require second, third, and sometimes lime®of therapy. As a result, there is a
pressing need for new, innovative, targeted thesafar the treatment of this heterogeneous growjisefses.

Anti-CD20 antibodies have been approved and studiedvariety of diseases falling into several #pautic areas including oncology,
autoimmune disorders, and neurologic disease. NMLGLL are the most common B-cell proliferativeadises for which rituximab, the first
anti-CD20 antibody approved by the FDA, is the entrgold standard treatment. While the additioritakimab to chemotherapeutic treatment
of NHL has dramatically improved patient outconmagny patients will relapse or become refractorsittoximab containing regimens.

Rituximab resistance is becoming an increasing @anfor clinicians as relapsing patients are exgasanultiple lines of rituximab
containing regimens to treat recurrence of disdaseestimated that over half of patients inlialesponsive to their first exposure to rituximab
do not respond upon retreatment (Davis et al, 2000)

We believe these factors contribute to an immediatksustained need for an a@fd20 monoclonal antibody that is differentiated
potentially therapeutically superior to the goldrstard rituximab in order to extend and enhance@&rapy as it stands today.




Additionally, novel targeted agents are now beirtgoiduced which target specific signaling pathwad enzymes known to exhibit
aberrant activity and overexpression in B-cell gnadincies such as Bruton’s Tyrosine Kinase (BTKY Bhosphoinositide-3-Kinase delta
(PI3K delta). The PI3BK/AKT/mTOR pathway has bees thrget of numerous pharmaceutical agents, bgtfoaed and in development,
however only recently has the delta isoform of Fd8kn identified as a potential target for thettremt of hematologic malignancies and othel
B-cell lymphoproliferative disorders. IdelalisibYDELIG™), a PI3K delta specific inhibitor from Giéel Pharmaceuticals, was approved by
the FDA in 2014 for patients with CLL and indolé¥itiL. Duvelisib (also known as IPI-145), a PI3K @e#tnd gamma specific inhibitor under
development by Infinity Pharmaceuticals has alsmshpreliminary activity in hematologic malignangief both B- and T-cell origin. Other
agents targeting kinases downstream of theeBreceptor, such as the BTK inhibitor, ibrutinitave displayed high rates of response in pai
with relapsed and refractory B-cell malignancied have been recently approved for these indicatidfisle these agents have demonstrated
high levels of single agent activity in &l disorders, their clinical activity has beemwin to be greatly enhanced when utilized in comtioome
with anti-CD20 agents.

As novel targeted agents gain FDA approval fortteatment of relapsed and refractory disease gitiipated that the size of this
market will expand greatly as branded drugs ergerim multiple lines of therapy. Given the natuféhe disease state for patients with
hematologic malignancies, characterized by indalésgase progression and chronic relapses, the &ognticipates a great and growing
need for novel agents that can be used aloneammibination with approved agents, and those cuyrender development to enhance the
quality of life and extend the length of survivat patients suffering from hematologic malignancies

IRAK4

Interleukin-1 Receptor Associated Kinase 4, refitteeas IRAK4, is a key signaling kinase that beesnmappropriately activated in
tumors that carry certain oncogenic mutations of D88, which can be found in most patients with Wakteim's Macroglobulinemia, a rare
B-cell cancer, as well as in a sub-set of patiaiitis Non-Hodgkin's Lymphoma and Chronic Lymphocyteukemia. Additionally, IRAK4 is a
key component of signaling pathways which regulat@une and inflammatory processes suggesting tihdtition of IRAK4 may also be
useful in the treatment of autoimmune related diss. We hold global rights to develop and comnadizg the IRAK4 program, which was
licensed from Ligand Pharmaceuticals. Our IRAK4gwamn is currently in pre-clinical development.

PD-L1 and GITR

In March 2015, we entered into a global collaboratigreement for the development and commerciaizaf anti-PD-L1 and anti-
GITR antibody research programs in the field of htogical malignancies. Our anti-PD-L1 and antiFBlprograms are currently in pre-
clinical development.

COSTS AND TIME TO COMPLETE PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

The information below provides estimates regardirggcosts associated with the completion of theectidevelopment phase and our
current estimated range of the time that will beassary to complete that development phase fokeupipeline products. We also direct your
attention to the risk factors which could signifitlgt affect our ability to meet these cost and tieséimates found in this report in Item 1A ur
the heading “Risks Related to the Company’s Busiaesl Industry.”

Estimated cost

Product Development Completion to
candidate Target indication status of phase complete phas¢

TG-1101 (ublituximab) In combination with ibrutinib in previously treatkigh- Phase Ill 2018 Approximately
risk CLL patients $15 million

TG-1101 As a single agent and in combination for NHL &id.  Phase Ib/ll End of 2015 Approximately
(includes TGI-1202 and ibrutinib combination $3.5 million

TGR-1202 As a single agent and in combination with novelragién Phase | End of 2015 Approximately
multiple forms of cance $1.5 million

Completion dates and costs in the above tablestimates due to the uncertainties associated Witltal trials and the related
requirements of development. In the cases whereetiigrements for clinical trials and developmertgoams have not been fully defined, or
are dependent on the success of other trials, weot@stimate trial completion or cost with anytaieity. The actual spending on each trial
during the year is also dependent on funding. Veeflore direct your attention to Item 7 under teading “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”




INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND PATENTS
General

Our goal is to obtain, maintain and enforce papeatection for our products, formulations, processeethods and other proprietary
technologies, preserve our trade secrets, andtepeithout infringing on the proprietary rightsather parties, both in the United States and i
other countries. Our policy is to actively seelobdain, where appropriate, the broadest intelbdqtuoperty protection possible for our product
candidates, proprietary information and proprietaghnology through a combination of contractuedgements and patents, both in the U.S.
and elsewhere in the world.

We also depend upon the skills, knowledge and @pez of our scientific and technical personnelyell as that of our advisors,
consultants and other contractors. This knowlecdgkexperience we call “know-how.” To help proteat proprietary know-how which is not
patentable, and for inventions for which patenty & difficult to enforce, we rely on trade segeitection and confidentiality agreements to
protect our interests. To this end, we requirealployees, consultants, advisors and other cdoteato enter into confidentiality agreements
which prohibit the disclosure of confidential infleation and, where applicable, require disclosurkassignment to us of the ideas,
developments, discoveries and inventions impottaotr business.

Patents and other proprietary rights are crucithéodevelopment of our business. We will be ablerotect our proprietary
technologies from unauthorized use by third paxdigy to the extent that our proprietary rights esgered by valid and enforceable patents,
supported by regulatory exclusivity or are effeeljymaintained as trade secrets. We have a nunfipatents and patent applications related t
our compounds and other technology, but we canmatagtee the scope of protection of the issuedhfster that such patents will survive a
validity or enforceability challenge, or that anfytlee pending patent applications will issue aeptst

Generally, patent applications in the U.S. are ma#ied in secrecy for a period of 18 months or m8iece publication of discoveries
in the scientific or patent literature often laghbel actual discoveries, we are not certain thatweee the first to make the inventions covered
by each of our pending patent applications orwetvere the first to file those patent applicatiofse patent positions of biotechnology and
pharmaceutical companies are highly uncertain amdlve complex legal and factual questions. Theeefave cannot predict the breadth of
claims allowed in biotechnology and pharmaceutpedénts, or their enforceability. To date, therg Ix@en no consistent policy regarding the
breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology patefitsrd parties or competitors may challenge orwingent our patents or patent applications
if issued. If our competitors prepare and file paggplications in the U.S. that claim technolotgpaclaimed by us, we may have to participate
in interference proceedings declared by the U.&rPand Trademark Office to determine priorityirafention, which could result in
substantial cost, even if the eventual outcomavsrable to us. Because of the extensive time reduior development, testing and regulatory
review of a potential product, it is possible thafore we commercialize any of our products, atgted patent may expire or remain in
existence for only a short period following commalization, thus reducing any advantage of themtatéowever, the life of a patent covering
a product that has been subject to regulatory ajpproay have the ability to be extended throughpidEent restoration program, although any
such extension could still be minimal.

If a patent is issued to a third party containimg or more preclusive or conflicting claims, andst claims are ultimately determined
to be valid and enforceable, we may be requireabtain a license under such patent or to develabtain alternative technology. In the event
of litigation involving a third party claim, an aelkse outcome in the litigation could subject usitmificant liabilities to such third party,
require us to seek a license for the disputedsiffioim such third party, and/or require us to cesseof the technology. Further, our breach of
an existing license or failure to obtain a licetséechnology required to commercialize our produngly seriously harm our business. We alst
may need to commence litigation to enforce anyratissued to us or to determine the scope andityadif third-party proprietary rights.
Litigation would involve substantial costs.

TG-1101

Pursuant to our license for TG-1101 (ublituximalithv. FB Biotechnologies, GTC Biotherapeutics, afeBIGTC LLC, we have the
exclusive commercial rights to a series of patant$ patent applications in the U.S., and in mudtgmuntries around the world. These patents
and patent applications include composition of ergtatents relating to the structure and mechaaofsaation for TG-1101 as well as method
of use patents which cover use of TG-1101 in comtimn with various agents and for various theraipentlications.




In the United States, we have eight issued pafenfsG-1101 which expire between 2021 and 2024lugkieg any patent term
extensions, as well as granted and pending forgnterpart patent filings related to these isquadnts. These patents include claims relate
to the manufacture and use of TG-1101. Additionally have over 25 issued patents outside the Ubower 30 patent applications pending
worldwide including claims directed to the compimsitof matter and methods of treatment with TG-1tD¢arious settings.

TGR-1202

Pursuant to our license for TGR-1202 with Rhizea,have the exclusive commercial rights to a serfigmtent applications in the
U.S. and abroad. The patent applications inclugeposition of matter patents relating to the stregtmechanism of action, and formulation
for TGR-1202 as well as method of use patents wbister use of TGR-1202 in combination with variag®nts and for various therapeutic
indications. All patent applications currently tiléor TG-1202 are currently pending. Because thesdfor any potential regulatory approval is
currently unknown we cannot predict the expectgarakon date, and it is possible that the lifetadse patents following regulatory approval
could be minimal.

IRAK4

Pursuant to our license for the IRAK4 program withand, we have the exclusive commercial righta fmtent family which covers
the composition of matter and proposed methodseffor various therapeutic indications. All patepplications currently filed for the IRAK4
program are currently pending. Because the datarfpipotential regulatory approval is currently nolwn we cannot predict the expected
expiration date, and it is possible that the lif¢h@se patents following regulatory approval cdugdminimal.

The patent rights that we own or have licensedirngldo our product candidates are limited in wehat may affect our ability to
exclude third parties from competing against ugdfobtain regulatory approval to market these prbdandidates. See sectioRisks Related
to the Company’s Intellectual Property.

Proof of direct infringement by a competitor fortimed of use patents can prove difficult becausectimpetitors making and marketi
a product typically do not engage in the patentszl Additionally, proof that a competitor contribsito or induces infringement of a patented
method of use by another can also prove difficatteuse an off-label use of a product could prohillihding of contributory infringement and
inducement of infringement requires proof of intbytthe competitor.

Moreover, physicians may prescribe such a competitientical product for indications other than ¢ime for which the product has
been approved, or off-label indications, that areeced by the applicable patents. Although sucHadifél prescriptions may directly infringe or
contribute to or induce infringement of method séyatents, such infringement is difficult to pretver prosecute.

In addition, the limited patent protection desctiladove may adversely affect the value of our pcbdandidates and may inhibit our
ability to obtain a corporate partner at terms ptafgle to us, if at all.

Other Intellectual Property Rights

We depend upon trademarks, trade secrets, knowahdveontinuing technological advances to develapraaintain our competitive
position. To maintain the confidentiality of traslecrets and proprietary information, we requireeuaployees, scientific advisors, consultants
and collaborators, upon commencement of a reldtipngith us, to execute confidentiality agreemeand, in the case of parties other than oul
research and development collaborators, to agrassign their inventions to us. These agreemeatdesigned to protect our proprietary
information and to grant us ownership of technadeghat are developed in connection with theirti@iahip with us. These agreements may
not, however, provide protection for our trade sexin the event of unauthorized disclosure of sofdrmation.

In addition to patent protection, we may utilizplean drug regulations or other provisions of thedsdrug and Cosmetic Act of
1938, as amended, or FDCA, to provide market erdtydor certain of our drug candidates. Orphanglregulations provide incentives to
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies to devehd manufacture drugs for the treatment ofdeeases, currently defined as disease:s
that exist in fewer than 200,000 individuals in thé., or, diseases that affect more than 200,08®iduals in the U.S. but that the sponsor
does not realistically anticipate will generateea profit. Under these provisions, a manufactufexr designated orphan-drug can seek tax
benefits, and the holder of the first FDA appravih designated orphan product will be grantedvarsgrear period of marketing exclusivity
for such FDA-approved orphan product.
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Pursuant to these regulations, TG-1101 (ublituxiniets received Orphan-Drug designation from the F@Ahe treatment of
Marginal Zone Lymphoma (Nodal and Extranodal) ipt&enber 2013, for the treatment of CLL in Augus261.0, and Orphan-Drug
designation by the European Medicines Agency (“EMi&t the treatment of CLL in November of 2009. Wadieve that TG-1101 may be
eligible for additional orphan drug designationsyever, we cannot assure you that TG-1101, or #mr @lrug candidates we may acquire or
in-license, will obtain such orphan drug designadicAdditionally, upon FDA approval, we believettfi&-1101 would qualify as a New
Chemical Entity, or NCE, which provides for fivears of exclusivity following approval.

We cannot assure you that any other drug candigaenay acquire or in-license, will obtain suchlap drug designation or that we
will be the first to receive FDA approval for sudhugs so as to be eligible for market exclusivitgtpction.

LICENSING AGREEMENTS AND COLLABORATIONS

We have formed strategic alliances with a numbeaofipanies for the manufacture and commercialimaifoour products. Our
current key strategic alliances are discussed helow

TG-1101
LFB Biotechnologies S.A.S, GTC Biotherapeutics,/CAE LLC.

In January 2012, we entered into an exclusive §eaagreement with LFB Biotechnologies, GTC Biotpetsdics, and LFB/GTC LLC
all wholly-owned subsidiaries of LFB Group, relafito the development of TG-1101. Under the licaaggeement, we have acquired the
exclusive worldwide rights (exclusive of Francefiam) for the development and commercializatioT @F1101 (ublituximab). To date, we
have made no payments to LFB Group and LFB Grogfigihle to receive payments of up to an aggreghspproximately $31.0 million
upon our successful achievement of certain clirdealelopment, regulatory and sales milestoneg]diitian to royalty payments on net sales o
TG-1101 at a royalty rate that escalates from nimdie digits to high-single digits. The license M@rminate on a country by country basis
upon the expiration of the last licensed patertitray 15 years after the first commercial sale pf@duct in such country, unless the agreemen
is earlier terminated (i) by LFB if the Company béages any of the licensed patent rights, (iifelther party due to a breach of the agreemen
or (iii) by either party in the event of the insehcy of the other party.

lldong Pharmaceutical Co. Lt

In November 2012, we entered into an exclusivehiwithe territory) sublicense agreement with lldoelgting to the development &
commercialization of TG-1101 in South Korea andtBeast Asia. Under the terms of the sublicenseeageat, lldong has been granted a
royalty bearing, exclusive right, including thehrtgo grant sublicenses, to develop and commezeidliG-1101 in South Korea, Taiwan,
Singapore, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand, PhilipgirVietnam, and Myanmar. To date, we have receiemiillion in the form of an upfront
payment from lldong, and are eligible to receivies®ased milestone payments up to an aggreg&te mfllion and royalty payments on net
sales of TG-1101 at a royalty rate that escalates mid-teens to high-teens upon approval in S&uattea and/or Southeast Asia. The license
will terminate on a country by country basis uple éxpiration of the last licensed patent right ®years after the first commercial sale of a
product in such country, unless the agreementrieterminated (i) by lldong if the Company cleadfes any of the licensed patent rights, (ii)
by either party due to a breach of the agreemeitij)aby either party in the event of the insohay of the other party.

TGR-1202
In September 2014, we exercised our option to $ieghe global rights to TGR-1202, thereby enteiritg an exclusive licensing

agreement (the “TGR-1202 License”) with Rhizen Riegeuticals, S A (“Rhizen”) for the development anchmercialization of TGR-1202.
Prior to this, we had been jointly developing TGRE32 in a 50:50 joint venture with Rhizen.
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Under the terms of the TGR202 License, Rhizen received a $4.0 million casjmpent and 371,530 shares of our common stock
upfront license fee. With respect to TGR-1202, Rhiwill be eligible to receive regulatory filingpproval and sales based milestone paymen
in the aggregate of approximately $175 millionpga#l portion of which will be payable on the fitdew Drug Application (NDA) filing and
the remainder on approval in multiple jurisdictidos up to two oncology indications and one nonalagy indication and attaining certain
sales milestones. In addition, if TGR-1202 isfeonulated with another drug to create a new pro¢uENew Product”), Rhizen will be eligik
to receive similar regulatory approval and saleseHanilestone payments for such New Product. Aaitilly, Rhizen will be entitled to tiered
royalties that escalate from high single digitéote double digits on our future net sales of TGR}22and any New Product. In lieu of sales
milestones and royalties on net sales, Rhizen alslbe eligible to participate in sublicensingereue, if any, based on a percentage that
decreases as a function of the number of patiezdsed in clinical trials following the exercisetbg license option. Rhizen will retain global
manufacturing rights to TGR-1202, provided thatthee price competitive with alternative manufaetsr The license will terminate on a
country by country basis upon the expiration ofldss licensed patent right or any other exclugivight in such country, unless the agreemen
is earlier terminated (i) by us for any reasor),l{ii either party due to a breach of the agreement.

IRAK4

In June 2014, we entered into an exclusive licanagreement with Ligand Pharmaceuticals Incorpdréitegand™) for the
development and commercialization of Ligand's ietgkin-1 receptor associated kinas€41RAK4") inhibitor technology, which currenthgiin
preclinical development for potential use agaimstain cancers and autoimmune diseases. IRAK4&ésiae/threonine protein kinase that is a
key downstream signaling component of the inteiileikreceptor and multiple toll-like receptors.

Under the terms of the license agreement, Ligaoéived 125,000 shares of our common stock as apnigicense fee. Ligand will
also be eligible to receive maximum potential nides payments of approximately $207 million upom dichievement of specific clinical,
regulatory and commercial milestone events. Addélty, Ligand will be entitled to royalties on ofuture net sales of licensed products
containing IRAK4 inhibitors. The basic royalty rdte licensed products covered by Ligand's isswédmis will be 6% for annual sales of ug
$1 billion and 9.5% for annual sales in exces$af threshold. The license will terminate on a ¢nuhy country basis upon the expiration of
the last licensed patent right or 10 years afteffilst commercial sale of a product in such cogninless the agreement is earlier terminate
either party due to a breach of the agreementarettent of the insolvency of the other party.

PD-L1 and GITR

In March 2015, we entered into a Global Collabarafithe “Collaboration”) with Checkpoint TherapestiInc. (“Checkpoint”), a
subsidiary of Coronado Biosciences, Inc. (“CND@3) the development and commercialization of Chetlfsanti-PD-L1 and anti-GITR
antibody research programs in the field of hemajickd malignancies.

Under the terms of the Collaboration, we will makeup-front payment of $500,000 as well as makeldgment and sales-based
milestone payments up to an aggregate of $164amjland will pay a tiered single digit royalty oetrsales. The royalty term will terminate on
a country by country basis upon the later of (i) years after the first commercial sale of any @pple licensed product in such country, or (ii)
the expiration of the last-to-expire patent helddana Farber containing a valid claim to any li@shproduct in such country.

COMPETITION

Competition in the pharmaceutical and biotechnolioghystries is intense. Our competitors includerptaeutical companies and
biotechnology companies, as well as universities@ublic and private research institutions. In &ddj companies that are active in different
but related fields represent substantial competifio us. Many of our competitors have significargteater capital resources, larger research
and development staffs and facilities and greatpeeence in drug development, regulation, manuféeg and marketing than we do. These
organizations also compete with us to recruit diealipersonnel, attract partners for joint ventuwesther collaborations, and license
technologies that are competitive with ours. To peta successfully in this industry we must identibwel and unique drugs or methods of
treatment and then complete the development ottdosys as treatments in advance of our competitors

The drugs that we are attempting to develop wilehto compete with existing therapies. In addit@farge number of companies are
pursuing the development of pharmaceuticals thigetahe same diseases and conditions that waeting. Other companies have products
or drug candidates in various stages of pre-cliricalinical development to treat diseases foralhive are also seeking to discover and
develop drug candidates. Some of these potentiapeting drugs are further advanced in developnent bur drug candidates and may be
commercialized earlier.

If approved, we expect TG-1101 to compete direwith Roche Group’s Rituxafi (rituximab) and Gazyv& (obinutuzumab),
Spectrum Pharmaceutical’s Zevafigy 2°-Ibritumomab Tiuxetan), Dr. Reddy’s Laboratoriegd®ux® , and Genmab and GlaxoSmithKlise’
Arzerra® (ofatumumab) among others, each of which is culyeqproved for the treatment of various diseaseliding NHL and CLL. In
addition, other pharmaceutical companies are deugoanti-CD20 antibodies which, if approved, woptatentially compete with TG-1101.
New developments, including the development of iofiiiarmaceutical technologies and methods of trgatisease, occur in tl
pharmaceutical and life sciences industries apal @ace.
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With respect to TGR-1202, if approved, we expeatdmpete directly with Gilead’s Zydelig™ (idelah3j as well as with other PI3K
delta inhibitors which are currently in developmenmtich, if approved, would potentially competewitGR-1202, such as Infinity
Pharmaceuticals’ duvelisib (IP1-145) and Acertaraiels ACP-319. In addition, there are numerousrotioeel therapies targeting similar
pathways to TGR-1202 in development, which wousbalompete with TGR-1202 in similar indications;tsas the BTK inhibitor, ibrutinib
(FDA approved for Mantle Cell Lymphoma, CLL, and M&nstrom’s Macroglobulinemia marketed by Pharmbcy@and Janssen), the BTK
inhibitor ACP-196 (under clinical development byekta Pharma), or the blc-2 inhibitor ABT-199 (und&nical development by AbbVie and
Roche), among others.

Additional information can be found under Item 1Risk Factors — Other Risks Related to Our Busimégsn this report.
SUPPLY AND MANUFACTURING

We have limited experience in manufacturing prosldet clinical or commercial purposes. We curreuiitynot have any
manufacturing capabilities. We have establishedraohmanufacturing relationships for the supplyf&-1101 as part of our license agreen
with LFB Biotechnologies. We have also establisbedtract manufacturing relationships for the supglf GR-1202 as part of our licensing
agreement with Rhizen, and contract manufactustationships to support our IRAK4 development paogr As with any supply program,
obtaining pre-clinical and clinical materials offszient quality and quantity to meet the requirengeof our development programs cannot be
guaranteed and we cannot ensure that we will beesstul in this endeavor. In addition, we anticipiie need for the current scale of
production for each of our products to be signifittaexpanded as we enter later stages of developriibere can be no assurance given that
such scale-up will be successful in providing pheceutical product that is of sufficient quantity,of a quality that is consistent with our
previously established specifications, or that mée¢ requirements set by regulatory agencies umdieh we may seek approval of our
product candidates.

At the time of commercial sale, to the extent gassand commercially practicable, we would see&rtgage a back-up supplier for
each of our product candidates. Until such timegewgect that we will rely on a single contract nfaaturer to produce each of our product
candidates under current Good Manufacturing PracticcGMP, regulations. Our third-party manufaetathave a limited number of facilities
in which our product candidates can be producedagihthave limited experience in manufacturing @uoduct candidates in quantities
sufficient for commercialization. Our thingarty manufacturers will have other clients and raye other priorities that could affect their @}
to perform the work satisfactorily and/or on a tiynigasis. Both of these occurrences would be beyamaontrol.

We expect to similarly rely on contract manufagtgrirelationships for any products that we may @estise or acquire in the future.
However, there can be no assurance that we wableto successfully contract with such manufactuoe terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Contract manufacturers are subject to ongoing geriand unannounced inspections by the FDA, theyBmforcement
Administration and corresponding state agenciesgure strict compliance with cGMP and other statkfederal regulations. Our contractors
outside of the United States face similar challsrgem the numerous local and regional agenciesaatitbrized bodies. We do not have
control over third-party manufacturers’ compliandéh these regulations and standards, other thaudn contractual obligations. If they are
deemed out of compliance with cGMPs, product regaduld result, inventory could be destroyed, potida could be stopped and supplies
could be delayed or otherwise disrupted.

If we need to change manufacturers after commézat#n, the FDA and corresponding foreign regulatigencies must approve
these new manufacturers in advance, which will W testing and additional inspections to ensurag@nce with FDA regulations and
standards and may require significant lead timelsdatay. Furthermore, switching manufacturers magilficult because the number of
potential manufacturers is limited. It may be diffit or impossible for us to find a replacement ofanturer quickly or on terms acceptable to
us, or at all.

GOVERNMENT AND INDUSTRY REGULATION

Numerous governmental authorities, principally BA and corresponding state and foreign reguladggncies, impose substantial
regulations upon the clinical development, manufiectnd marketing of our drug candidates, as vsetiua ongoing research and developmen
activities. None of our drug candidates have bggmaved for sale in any market in which we havekatng rights. Before marketing in the
U.S., any drug that we develop must undergo rigppre-clinical testing and clinical trials and atemsive regulatory approval process
implemented by the FDA under the FDCA. The FDA tatgs, among other things, the pre-clinical andicdil testing, safety, efficacy,
approval, manufacturing, record keeping, adversmeseporting, packaging, labeling, storage, adsiag, promotion, export, sale and
distribution of biopharmaceutical products.
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The regulatory review and approval process is ngixpensive and uncertain. We are required tongudxtensive pre-clinical and
clinical data and supporting information to the FEdh each indication or use to establish a druglichate’s safety and efficacy before we can
secure FDA approval to market or sell a produ¢henU.S. The approval process takes many yearnsiresghe expenditure of substantial
resources and may involve ongoing requirementpdst-marketing studies or surveillance. Before cemaomng clinical trials in humans, we
must submit an IND to the FDA containing, amongeotthings, pre-clinical data, chemistry, manufaaigiand control information, and an
investigative plan. Our submission of an IND may msult in FDA authorization to commence a clihicil.

The FDA may permit expedited development, evalumatmd marketing of new therapies intended to peetons with serious or life-
threatening conditions for which there is an unmetlical need under its fast track drug developmesgrams. A sponsor can apply for fast
track designation at the time of submission offdD,lor at any time prior to receiving marketing epyal of the new drug application, or ND
To receive Fast Track designation, an applicant miesionstrate:

« that the drug is intended to treat a serious ertlifeatening condition;
« thatthe drug is intended to treat a serious asgdbe condition; and

« that the drug has the potential to address unmdicaleneeds, and this potential is being evaluatede planned drug
development progran

The FDA must respond to a request for fast tradigmation within 60 calendar days of receipt ofbguest. Over the course of drug
development, a product in a fast track developmemgram must continue to meet the criteria for femtk designation. Sponsors of product
fast track drug development programs must be inlaegontact with the reviewing division of the Fé\ensure that the evidence necessa
support marketing approval will be developed arebpnted in a format conducive to an efficient nevi8ponsors of products in fast track d
development programs ordinarily are eligible faopty review of a completed application in six ntbs or less and also may be permitted to
submit portions of a New Drug Application (“NDA" the FDA for review before the complete applicati® submitted.

Sponsors of drugs designated as fast track alscseelyapproval under the FDA's accelerated appregallations. Under this
authority, the FDA may grant marketing approvaldarew drug product on the basis of adequate atiecamrolled clinical trials establishing
that the drug product has an effect on a surrogiadoint that is reasonably likely, based on epidemic, therapeutic, pathophysiologic, or
other evidence, to predict clinical benefit or be basis of an effect on a clinical endpoint othan survival or irreversible morbidity.
Approval will be subject to the requirement that Hpplicant study the drug further to verify andai@e its clinical benefit where there is
uncertainty as to the relation of the surrogatepei to clinical benefit or uncertainty as to tie¢ation of the observed clinical benefit to
ultimate outcome. Post-marketing studies are isuaberway at the time an applicant files the NDAhen required to be conducted, such
post-marketing studies must also be adequate altdtoverolled. The applicant must carry out anglspost-marketing studies with due
diligence. Many companies who have been granteddgheto utilize an accelerated approval apprdaabe failed to obtain approval.
Moreover, negative or inconclusive results from¢heical trials we hope to conduct or adverse roaldévents could cause us to have to repe:
or terminate the clinical trials. Accordingly, weagnnot be able to complete the clinical trials witan acceptable time frame, if at all, and,
therefore, could not submit the NDA to the FDA ordign regulatory authorities for marketing appiova

In addition, sponsors may also apply to the FDABmrakthrough Therapy Designation. The Breakthroligérapy Designation is
intended to expedite the development and revieapftential new drug for serious or life-threatgniliseases where “preliminary clinical
evidence indicates that the drug may demonstrdistantial improvement over existing therapies o@ @nmore clinically significant
endpoints, such as substantial treatment effecsrabd early in clinical development.” The desigrmabf a drug as a Breakthrough Therapy
was enacted as part of the 2012 Food and Drug Asdftration Safety and Innovation Act.

Clinical testing must meet requirements for insitiioial review board oversight, informed consent gadd clinical practices, and mi
be conducted pursuant to an IND, unless exempted.

14




For purposes of NDA approval, clinical trials aypitally conducted in the following sequential pbsts

« Phase I The drug is administered to a small group of husnaither healthy volunteers or patients, tofssafety, dosage
tolerance, absorption, metabolism, excretion, dimital pharmacology

« Phase Z Studies are conducted on a larger number of matie assess the efficacy of the product, to soedose tolerance and
the optimal dose range, and to gather addition@l dating to safety and potential adverse evi

« Phase 2 Studies establish safety and efficacy in an edpdrpatient population.

« Phase 4 The FDA may require Phase 4 post-marketing stuidind out more about the drug’s long-term rjddenefits, and
optimal use, or to test the drug in different papions.

The length of time necessary to complete clinidald varies significantly and may be difficult poedict. Clinical results are frequer
susceptible to varying interpretations that mayagelimit or prevent regulatory approvals. Additgtfiactors that can cause delay or terming
of our clinical trials, or that may increase thetsoof these trials, include:

« slow patient enroliment due to the nature of thical trial plan, the proximity of patients tomical sites, the eligibility criteria
for participation in the study or other factc

- inadequately trained or insufficient personnehat$tudy site to assist in overseeing and mongaziimical trials or delays in
approvals from a study s's review board

« longer treatment time required to demonstrate &ffjcor determine the appropriate product dose;
« insufficient supply of the drug candidates;

« adverse medical events or side effects in treaadiémts; and

- ineffectiveness of the drug candidates.

In addition, the FDA, equivalent foreign regulat@uythority, or a data safety monitoring committeed trial may place a clinical trial
on hold or terminate it if it concludes that sultje@re being exposed to an unacceptable healthoridlr futility. Any drug is likely to produce
some toxicity or undesirable side effects in angraald in humans when administered at sufficierih kdoses and/or for a sufficiently long
period of time. Unacceptable toxicity or side effemay occur at any dose level at any time in these of studies in animals designed to
identify unacceptable effects of a drug candidatewn as toxicological studies, or clinical triafsdrug candidates. The appearance of any
unacceptable toxicity or side effect could causeruggulatory authorities to interrupt, limit, dglor abort the development of any of our drug
candidates and could ultimately prevent approvahiey=DA or foreign regulatory authorities for amyall targeted indications.

Sponsors of drugs may apply for an SPA from the FDiWe SPA process is a procedure by which the FEaAiges official evaluatio
and written guidance on the design and size ofqggeg protocols that are intended to form the tfasia new drug application. However, final
marketing approval depends on the results of efficthe adverse event profile and an evaluatiah®benefit/risk of treatment demonstrated
in the Phase 3 trial. The SPA agreement may onlshbaged through a written agreement between thressp and the FDA, or if the FDA
becomes aware of a substantial scientific issuengisé to product safety or efficacy.

Before receiving FDA approval to market a prodwa, must demonstrate that the product is safe dadtiefe for its intended use by
submitting to the FDA an NDA or BLA containing tpee-clinical and clinical data that have been aadated, together with chemistry and
manufacturing and controls specifications and imi@tion, and proposed labeling, among other thifigse.FDA may refuse to accept an
NDA/BLA for filing if certain content criteria araot met and, even after accepting an NDA/BLA, tBeARmay often require addition
information, including clinical data, before appabef marketing a product.

It is also becoming more common for the FDA to esiwa Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy, &MRS, as part of a NDA/BLA.

The REMS plan contains post-market obligationshefgponsor to train prescribing physicians, morofétabel drug use, and conduct
sufficient Phase 4 follow-up studies and registtéesnsure the continued safe use of the drug.
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As part of the approval process, the FDA must inspad approve each manufacturing facility. Amadmg ¢onditions of approval is
the requirement that a manufacturer’s quality adrgnd manufacturing procedures conform to cGMPnbacturers must expend significant
time, money and effort to ensure continued compkamand the FDA conducts periodic inspections tofgecompliance. It may be difficult for
our manufacturers or us to comply with the appliealtSMP, as interpreted by the FDA, and other FBgutatory requirements. If we, or our
contract manufacturers, fail to comply, then theARDay not allow us to market products that havenkegiéected by the failure.

If the FDA grants approval, the approval will beniied to those disease states, conditions andnpatigulations for which the prodi
is safe and effective, as demonstrated througlicalistudies. Further, a product may be marketégliarthose dosage forms and for those
indications approved in the NDA/BLA. Certain chasge an approved NDA/BLA, including, with certairceptions, any significant changes
to labeling, require approval of a supplementaliaption before the drug may be marketed as chanyey products that we manufacture or
distribute pursuant to FDA approvals are subjecttatinuing monitoring and regulation by the FDAcluding compliance with cGMP and the
reporting of adverse experiences with the drugs. ffdture of marketing claims that the FDA will péros to make in the labeling and
advertising of our products will generally be ligdtto those specified in FDA approved labeling, Bredadvertising of our products will be
subject to comprehensive monitoring and reguldbpthe FDA. Drugs whose review was accelerated caagy additional restrictions on
marketing activities, including the requirementttath promotional materials are psetbmitted to the FDA. Claims exceeding those caethin
approved labeling will constitute a violation oBtRDCA. Violations of the FDCA or regulatory reqerinents at any time during the product
development process, approval process, or markatidgsale following approval may result in agenefpecement actions, including
withdrawal of approval, recall, seizure of produetarning letters, injunctions, fines and/or cwilcriminal penalties. Any agency enforcemen
action could have a material adverse effect orbosmess.

Should we wish to market our products outside tt& UWve must receive marketing authorization fromadppropriate foreign
regulatory authorities. The requirements govertimgconduct of clinical trials, marketing authotiea, pricing and reimbursement vary wid
from country to country. At present, companiestgpécally required to apply for foreign marketingthorizations at a national level. However,
within the European Union, registration procedunesavailable to companies wishing to market ageboh more than one European Union
member state. Typically, if the regulatory authorit satisfied that a company has presented adeguatence of safety, quality and efficacy,
then the regulatory authority will grant a markgtauthorization. This foreign regulatory approvaiqess, however, involves risks similar or
identical to the risks associated with FDA appraliatussed above, and therefore we cannot guartiraese will be able to obtain the
appropriate marketing authorization for any prodocny particular country.

Failure to comply with applicable federal, statel &mreign laws and regulations would likely havenaterial adverse effect on our
business. In addition, federal, state and foredgvsland regulations regarding the manufacture aledo$ new drugs are subject to future
changes. We cannot predict the likelihood, nateffect or extent of adverse governmental regulatiat might arise from future legislative or
administrative action, either in the U.S. or abroad

EMPLOYEES

As of March 2, 2015, we had twenty-four full andtgime employees. None of our employees are reptes by a collective
bargaining agreement, and we have never experiemeentk stoppage. We consider our relations withemaployees to be good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

You should carefully consider the following risk&laincertainties. If any of the following occuray dusiness, financial condition or
operating results could be materially harmed. Aveistment in our securities is speculative in natimeolves a high degree of risk, and shoulc
not be made by an investor who cannot bear theaoanrisk of its investment for an indefinite periaf time and who cannot afford the los:
its entire investment. You should carefully consille following risk factors and the other inforriwat contained elsewhere in this Annual
Report before making an investment in our secuti
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Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Because we have -licensed our product candidates from third partieeny dispute with or non-performance by our licesrs will adversely
affect our ability to develop and commercialize thpplicable product candidates.

Our product candidates have been in-licensed flord parties. Under the terms of our license agess) the licensors generally will
have the right to terminate such agreement inieateof a material breach by us. The licensorsaldb have the right to terminate the
agreement in the event we fail to use diligent ma$onable efforts to develop and commercializeptbduct candidate worldwide.

If there is any conflict, dispute, disagreemenissue of non-performance between us and our lingr®krtners regarding our rights or
obligations under the license agreements, includimgsuch conflict, dispute or disagreement ari§iom our failure to satisfy payment
obligations under such agreement, our ability teetl®p and commercialize the affected product caatdiénd our ability to enter into
collaboration or marketing agreements for the aéf@product candidate may be adversely affecteg.ldss of our rights under these license
agreements would delay or completely terminatpritsiuct development efforts for the affected pradandidate.

We do not have full internal development capabéi, and are thus reliant upon our partners and tliparties to generate clinical,
preclinical and quality data necessary to suppdretregulatory applications needed to conduct cliali¢rials and file for marketing approva

In order to submit and maintain an IND, Biologidsdnse Application (“BLA”"), or New Drug ApplicatiofNDA”) to the FDA, it is
necessary to submit all information on the clinicaln-clinical, chemistry, manufacturing, contrafed quality aspects of the product candidate
We rely on our third party contractors and ourngieg partners to provide a significant portiortto$ data. If we are unable to obtain this data
or the data is not sufficient to meet the regulatequirements, we may experience significant delayour development programs.
Additionally, an IND must be active in each divisim which we intend to conduct clinical trials. i@ntly we do not have an active IND for
any of the IRAK4 inhibitors. Additionally, there de no assurance given that any of the moleculdsrudevelopment in our IRAK4 inhibitor
program will demonstrate sufficient pharmacologioferties during pre-clinical evaluation to advatw&ND enabling studies, or that such
IND enabling studies, if any are conducted, withyide data sufficient to support the filing of atD, or that such IND, if filed, would be
accepted by any FDA division under which we wowddlsto develop any product candidate. While we taairan active IND for TG-1104nc
TGR-1202 enabling the conduct of studies in the FOAvision of Hematology and Oncology, there cano assurance that we will be
successful in obtaining an active IND for TG-110TT&R-1202 in any other division under whose sujsésm we may seek to develop our
product candidates, or that the FDA will allow ascbntinue the development of our product cand&latehose divisions where we maintair
active IND.

We are highly dependent on the success of our piidiandidates and cannot give any assurance thatsth or any future product candidai
will be successfully commercialized.

We are a development-stage biopharmaceutical coynpad do not currently have any commercial prosititat generate revenues or
any other sources of revenue. We may never betalsieccessfully develop marketable products. Oarmhceutical development methods are
unproven and may not lead to commercially viabledpcts for any of several reasons.

If we are unable to develop, or receive regulatgrgroval for or successfully commercialize any wf product candidates, we will r
be able to generate product revenues.

Because the results of preclinical studies and gatlinical trials are not necessarily predictive @fture results, any product candidate v
advance into clinical trials may not have favorablesults in later clinical trials, if any, or receie regulatory approval.

Pharmaceutical development has inherent risk. Wiboeirequired to demonstrate through adequatensatidcontrolled clinical trials
that our product candidates are effective withvaifable benefit-risk profile for use in diverse ptations for their target indications before we
can seek regulatory approvals for their commesadd. Success in early clinical trials does notnrthat later clinical trials will be successful
because product candidates in later-stage clitricddé may fail to demonstrate sufficient safetyefficacy despite having progressed through
initial clinical testing. Companies frequently ifignificant setbacks in advanced clinical trialgen after earlier clinical trials have shown
promising results. In addition, there is typicadly extremely high rate of failure of pharmaceuttzaididates proceeding through clinical trials.

We plan on conducting additional Phase I, Il ahdlihical trials for TG-1101 and TGR-1202 . Eadinical results seen with TG-
1101 and TGR-1202 in a small number of patients nwybe reproduced in expanded or larger clinidalst Additionally, individually
reported outcomes of patients treated in clinidalt may not be representative of the entire patpuh of treated patients in such studies. If the
results from expansion cohorts or later trialsdifierent from those found in the earlier studi€§6-1101 and TGR-1202 , we may need to
terminate or revise our clinical development plahich could extend the time for conducting our degement program and could have a
material adverse effect on our business.
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If we are unable to successfully complete our ctial trial programs, or if such clinical trials takéonger to complete than we project, o
ability to execute our current business strategylle adversely affected.

Whether or not and how quickly we complete clinicglls is dependent in part upon the rate at whietare able to engage clinical
trial sites and, thereafter, the rate of enrollmadratients, and the rate we collect, clean, lmc#t analyze the clinical trial database. Patient
enrollment is a function of many factors, includihg size of the patient population, the proxinuifypatients to clinical sites, the eligibility
criteria for the study, the existence of compeditilinical trials, and whether existing or new drage approved for the indication we are
studying. We are aware that other companies arermtly conducting or planning clinical trials thegek to enroll patients with the same
diseases that we are studying. Certain clinicaldrare designed to continue until a pre-determmedber of events have occurred in the
patients enrolled. Trials such as this are sultigedelays stemming from patient withdrawal and flomer than expected event rates. They
also incur additional costs if enrollment is inaed in order to achieve the desired number of svénve experience delays in identifying and
contracting with sites and/or in patient enrollmienour clinical trial programs, we may incur adafital costs and delays in our development
programs, and may not be able to complete ourcelitiiials in a cost-effective or timely manneraldition, conducting multi-national studies
adds another level of complexity and risk. We atgiexct to events affecting countries outside th®. Blegative or inconclusive results from
clinical trials we conduct or unanticipated adverselical events could cause us to have to repdatminate the clinical trials.

In September 2014, we announced a Phase 3 clinidlor TG-1101 in previously treated patientgtwiigh-risk CLL which is to be
conducted pursuant to an SPA with the FDA. Many ganmes which have been granted SPAs and/or thetaghiilize the FDAS Fast Track ¢
accelerated approval process have ultimately fadezbtain final approval to market their drugsi® we are seeking approvals under SPAs,
based on protocol designs negotiated with the RAmay be subject to enhanced scrutiny. Furthgrchanges or amendments to a protocol
that is being conducted under SPA will have todweewed and approved by the FDA to verify that$RA agreement is still valid.
Additionally, even if the primary endpoint in a Blea3 clinical trial is achieved, a SPA does notgntee approval. The FDA may raise issues
of safety, study conduct, bias, deviation fromphetocol, statistical power, patient completioresatchanges in scientific or medical parame
or internal inconsistencies in the data prior tkimg its final decision. The FDA may also seek gluédance of an outside advisory committee
prior to making its final decision. Even with “fasack” or “priority review” status which we intertd seek for our product candidates, such
designations do not necessarily mean a faster ol@wadnt process or regulatory review process orgsaciy confer any advantage with resj
to approval compared to conventional FDA procedures

Any product candidates we may advance into clinidaivelopment are subject to extensive regulatiohicl can be costly and tim
consuming, cause unanticipated delays or preverd teceipt of the required approvals to commercial@ur product candidates.

The clinical development, manufacturing, labelisigrage, record-keeping, advertising, promotiomadrty export, marketing and
distribution of our product candidates or any fetproduct candidates are subject to extensiveatignlby the FDA in the United States and
by comparable health authorities worldwide or irefgn markets. In the United States, we are nahjigrd to market our product candidates
until we receive approval of a BLA or NDA from tR®A. The process of obtaining BLA and NDA approiaéxpensive, often takes many
years and can vary substantially based upon thes tgmplexity and novelty of the products involvAgproval policies or regulations mi
change and the FDA has substantial discretiondrpttarmaceutical approval process, including thiéyto delay, limit or deny approval of a
product candidate for many reasons. In additiom RBA may require postpproval clinical trials or studies which also nieycostly. The FD.
approval for a limited indication or approval withquired warning language, such as a boxed warnmgd significantly impact our ability to
successfully market our product candidates. Fingty FDA may require adoption of a Risk Evaluataon Mitigation Strategy (REMS)
requiring prescriber training, post-market regestrior otherwise restricting the marketing andedgeation of these products. Despite the time
and expense invested in clinical development oflpcb candidates, regulatory approval is never guaeal. Assuming successful clinical
development, we intend to seek product approvateimtries outside the United States. As a restwould be subject to regulation by the
European Medicines Agency (“EMA"as well as the other regulatory agencies in maniiexfe countries, and other regulatory agenciesd
the world.
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Approval procedures vary among countries and caohne additional product testing and additional austrative review periods. Tl
time required to obtain approval in other countriéght differ from that required to obtain FDA appal. Regulatory approval in one country
does not ensure regulatory approval in anotheralfailure or delay in obtaining regulatory apptdweone country may negatively impact the
regulatory process in others. As in the Unitede&3tathe regulatory approval process in Europe udhier countries is a lengthy and
challenging process. The FDA, and any other regntdiody around the world can delay, limit or depproval of a product candidate for
many reasons, including:

- the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay disagree with the design or implementatioounfclinical trials;

« we may be unable to demonstrate to the satisfaofitime FDA or comparable foreign regulatory auities that a product
candidate is safe and effective for any indicat

« the FDA may not accept clinical data from trialsiethare conducted by individual investigators ocauntries where the stand:
of care is potentially different from the Unitedagds;

« the results of clinical trials may not meet theeleof statistical significance required by the FDAcomparable foreign regulatory
authorities for approva

« we may be unable to demonstrate that a productidateds clinical and other benefits outweigh ittesarisks;

« the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay disagree with our interpretation of data frneclinical studies or
clinical trials;

« the data collected from clinical trials of our puatl candidates may not be sufficient to supporstitamission of a BLA, NDA or
other submission or to obtain regulatory approndhe United States or elsewhe

- the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authositieay fail to approve the manufacturing processéaailities of third-party
manufacturers with which we or our collaboratorstcact for clinical and commercial supplies;

« the approval policies or regulations of the FDAcomparable foreign regulatory authorities may gsigantly change in a manner
rendering our clinical data insufficient for appai

In addition, recent events raising questions abfmsafety of certain marketed pharmaceuticals mesglt in increased cautiousnes:
the FDA and other regulatory authorities in reviegvnew pharmaceuticals based on safety, efficaogtmr regulatory considerations and may
result in significant delays in obtaining regulatapprovals. Regulatory approvals for our prodaetdidates may not be obtained without
lengthy delays, if at all. Any delay in obtainingy,inability to obtain, applicable regulatory appals would prevent us from commercializing
our product candidates.

Any product candidate we advance into clinical tisamay cause unacceptable adverse events or hawer @roperties that may delay «
prevent their regulatory approval or commercializan or limit their commercial potential

Unacceptable adverse events caused by any of odugtrcandidates that we take into clinical tri@dsild cause either us or regulatory
authorities to interrupt, delay, modify or haltnitial trials and could result in the denial of riegory approval by the FDA or other regulatory
authorities for any or all targeted indicationsisTlin turn, could prevent us from commercializthg affected product candidate and genere
revenues from its sale.

We have not completed testing of any of our prodacididates for the treatment of the indicatiomsafbich we intend to seek prodt
approval in humans, and we currently do not knosvetktent that adverse events, if any, will be olesin patients who receive any of our
product candidates. To date, clinical trials usigr1101 and TGR:202 have demonstrated a toxicity profile that desmed acceptable by
investigators performing such studies. Such inttgtion may not be shared by future investigatotsydhe FDA and in the case of TG-1101
and TGR-1202, even if deemed acceptable for ongadpglications, it may not be acceptable for diseasitside the oncology setting, and
likewise for any other product candidates we maxetigp. Additionally, the severity, duration andioience of adverse events may increase in
larger study populations. With respect to TG-11€1e,toxicity when manufactured under differentditions is not known, and it is possible
that additional and/or different adverse events aggpgear upon the human use of those formulatiodsrarse adverse events may arise with
greater frequency, intensity and duration tharmédurrent formulation. Such risk also exists fewrmanufacturing processes and/or
formulations, if any, of TGR-1202, the clinical it of which is not known, including the micronizedmulation of TGR-1202 which has
only been studied in a limited number of subjectdate. Further, with respect to TGR-1202, althoongine than 50 patients have been dosed |
the ongoing first-in-human dose-escalation Phasegle agent study, the full adverse effect praffid GR-1202 is not known. It is unknown
the dose escalation continues and patients aresegdor longer durations to TGR-1202, whether grefabquency and/or severity of adverse
events are likely to occur as a maximum tolerateskeds reached. If any of our product candidataseanacceptable adverse events in clinice
trials, we may not be able to obtain marketing apaland generate revenues from its sale, whickdduave a material adverse impact on our
business and operations.

Additionally, in combination clinical developmettihere is an inherent risk of drug-drug interactibesveen combination agents
which may affect each component’s individual phazat@gic properties and the overall efficacy andgabf the combination regimen. Both
TG-1101 and TGR-1202 are being evaluated in conibiméogether, as well as with a variety of othetivee anti-cancer agents, which may
cause unforeseen toxicity, or impact the sevedlityation, and incidence of adverse events obsawertghared to those seen in the single agen
studies of these agents. Further, with multi-dragibinations, it is often difficult to interpret properly assign attribution of an adverse event
to any one particular agent, introducing the riekt toxicity caused by a component of a combinatégimen could have a material adverse
impact on the development of our product candidathere can be no assurances given that the cotigriragimens being studied will disp
tolerability or efficacy suitable to warrant furthtesting or produce data that is sufficient toaotimarketing approval.
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If any of our product candidates receives markedpgroval and we, or others, later identify unataiele adverse events caused by
product, a number of significant negative conseqastould result, including:

- regulatory authorities may withdraw their approvgthe affected product;

« regulatory authorities may require a more signiftoginical benefit for approval to offset the risk

« regulatory authorities may require the additiohabfeling statements that could diminish the usddgbeoproduct or otherwise
limit the commercial success of the affected proc

« we may be required to change the way the prodwadnsinistered, conduct additional clinical triatschange the labeling of the
product;

« we may choose to discontinue sale of the product;

« we could be sued and held liable for harm causgdtients;

« we may not be able to enter into collaboration egrents on acceptable terms and execute on ourasgsinodel; and

e our reputation may suffer.

Any one or a combination of these events couldgmeus from obtaining or maintaining regulatory imal and achieving or
maintaining market acceptance of the affected producould substantially increase the costs apeeses of commercializing the affected
product, which in turn could delay or prevent umifrgenerating any revenues from the sale of trextgdl product.

We may experience delays in the commencement ofatinical trials or in the receipt of data from piinical and clinical trials conducted
by third parties, which could result in increasedsts and delay our ability to pursue regulatory appal.

Delays in the commencement of clinical trials aethgs in the receipt of data from preclinical anidal trials conducted by third
parties could significantly impact our product diepenent costs. Before we can initiate clinicallfia the United States for our product
candidates, we need to submit the results of prieali testing, usually in animals, to the FDA astjphan IND, along with other information
including information about product chemistry, méamturing and controls and its proposed clinicill fprotocol for our product candidates.

We plan to rely on preclinical and clinical trisdtd from third parties, if any, for the IND subniisss for our product candidates. If
receipt of that data is delayed for any reasorudiog reasons outside of our control, it will detaur plans for IND filings, and clinical trial
plans. This, in turn, will delay our ability to makubsequent regulatory filings and ultimatelygammercialize our products if regulatory
approval is obtained. If those third parties domake this data available to us, we will likely, @ own, have to develop all the necessary
preclinical and clinical data which will lead toditional delays and increase the costs of our dgweént of our product candidates.

Before we can test any product candidate in hurtiaical trials the product candidate enters theclinécal testing stage. Preclinical
tests include laboratory evaluations of produchuiséy, toxicity and formulation, as well as in+adtand animal studies to assess the potential
safety and activity of the pharmaceutical prodacididate. The conduct of the preclinical tests mastply with federal regulations and
requirements including good laboratory practic&sL(P").

We must submit the results of the preclinical testgether with manufacturing information, analgtidata, any available clinical data
or literature and a proposed clinical protocolthtie FDA as part of the IND. The IND automaticalgcbmes effective 30 days after receipt by
the FDA, unless the FDA places the IND on a clihiead within that 30-day time period. In such aeawe must work with the FDA to
resolve any outstanding concerns before the clitvigds can begin. The FDA may also impose clihlwalds on a product candidate at any t
before or during clinical trials due to safety cemts or noreompliance. Accordingly, we cannot be sure thatrgabion of an IND will result i
the FDA allowing clinical trials to begin, or thance begun, issues will not arise that suspererorinate such clinical trial.

The FDA may require that we conduct additional finézal testing for any product candidate beforalibws us to initiate the clinical
testing under any IND, which may lead to additiotkellays and increase the costs of our preclinieaébpment.
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Even assuming an active IND for a product candidagedo not know whether our planned clinical &ifdr any such product

candidate will begin on time, or at all. The comeement of clinical trials can be delayed for a eriof reasons, including delays in:

- Obtaining regulatory clearance to commence a d@lriial;

- identifying, recruiting and training suitable clial investigators;

« reaching agreement on acceptable terms with praspasontract research organizations (“CROs”) aial sites, the terms of
which can be subject to extensive negotiation, begubject to modification from time to time andymwary significantly among
different CROs and trial site

« oObtaining sufficient quantities of a product carad@for use in clinical trials;

« Obtaining institutional review board (“IRB”) or eétis committee approval to conduct a clinical teath prospective site;

« identifying, recruiting and enrolling patients tarpcipate in a clinical trial;

« retaining patients who have initiated a clinicaltbut may withdraw due to adverse events fronthieeapy, insufficient efficacy,
fatigue with the clinical trial process or persoisales; an

« unexpected safety findings.

Any delays in the commencement of our clinicall$riaill delay our ability to pursue regulatory appal for our product candidates.
addition, many of the factors that cause, or l@a@d tdelay in the commencement of clinical trialsyralso ultimately lead to the denial of
regulatory approval of a product candidate.

Delays in the completion of clinical testing coutdsult in increased costs and delay our abilitygenerate product revenue

Once a clinical trial has begun, patient recruittraard enrollment may be slower than we anticip@tmical trials may also be delay
as a result of ambiguous or negative interim res#itirther, a clinical trial may be suspended onieated by us, an IRB, an ethics committee
or a Data Safety and Monitoring Committee oversgéie clinical trial, any of our clinical trial s with respect to that site or the FDA or ¢
regulatory authorities due to a number of factmduding:

» failure to conduct the clinical trial in accordaneith regulatory requirements or our clinical proits;

« inspection of the clinical trial operations or dtial trial site by the FDA or other regulatory aottiies resulting in the imposition

of a clinical hold;

« unforeseen safety issues or any determinatiorthieatlinical trial presents unacceptable healtksriand

« lack of adequate funding to continue the clinicailt

Changes in regulatory requirements and guidancenadsy occur and we may need to amend clinical priadocols to reflect these
changes. Amendments may require us to resubmitlmical trial protocols to IRBs for rexamination, which may impact the costs, timing
successful completion of a clinical trial. If wepexience delays in the completion of, or if we ntesiinate, any clinical trial of any product
candidate that we advance into clinical trials, aitity to obtain regulatory approval for that guzt candidate will be delayed and the
commercial prospects, if any, for the product cdaté may be harmed. In addition, many of thesefachay also ultimately lead to the denial
of regulatory approval of a product candidate. Eifeve ultimately commercialize any of our produeeindidates, other therapies for the same
indications may have been introduced to the matkenhg the period we have been delayed and sucapies may have established a
competitive advantage over our product candidates.

We intend to rely on third parties to help condumir planned clinical trials. If these third partieslo not meet their deadlines or otherwise
conduct the trials as required, we may not be atdebtain regulatory approval for or commercializair product candidates when expected
or at all.

We intend to use CROs to assist in the conductupptanned clinical trials and will rely upon mealidnstitutions, clinical
investigators and contract laboratories to conductrials in accordance with our clinical protazdDur future CROSs, investigators and other
third parties may play a significant role in thendact of these trials and the subsequent colleem@hanalysis of data from the clinical trials.

There is no guarantee that any CROs, investigatwisother third parties will devote adequate time @@sources to our clinical trials
or perform as contractually required. If any th@ties upon whom we rely for administration anddiact of our clinical trials fail to meet
expected deadlines, fail to adhere to its clingratocols or otherwise perform in a substandardmagrour clinical trials may be extended,
delayed or terminated, and we may not be able momercialize our product candidates.
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If any of our clinical trial sites terminate foryareason, we may experience the loss of followriprmation on patients enrolled in
our ongoing clinical trials unless we are ablerémsfer the care of those patients to anotherfigpciklinical trial site. In addition, principal
investigators for our clinical trials may servesagentific advisors or consultants to us from titméime and receive cash or equity
compensation in connection with such serviceddse relationships and any related compensatioit ieerceived or actual conflicts of
interest, the integrity of the data generated atbplicable clinical trial site may be jeopardized

As all of our product candidates are still underdgopment, manufacturing and process improvememtpliemented in the production ¢
those product candidates may affect their ultimaetivity or function.

Our product candidates are in the initial stagedeselopment and are currently manufactured in ldoaéthes for use in pre-clinical
and clinical studies. Process improvements impleéeteto date have changed, and process improverinethts future may change, the activity
profile of the product candidates, which may aftbet safety and efficacy of the products. No asmeaan be given that the material
manufactured from any of the optimized processésp@iform comparably to the product candidatemasufactured to date and used in
currently available pre-clinical data and or inlgatinical trials reported in this or any previofikng. Additionally, future clinical trial resust
will be subject to the same level of uncertainfyfaflowing such trials, additional process improwents are made. In addition, we are currently
in the process of engaging a secondary manufadanr@iG-1101 to meet our current clinical and future consismeeds. No assurance car
given that the secondary manufacturing will be sgstul or that material manufactured by the seagna@nufacturer will perform comparal
to TG-1101 as manufactured to date and used irmtlyravailable prelinical data and or in early clinical trials repeat in this or any previot
filing. If the secondary manufacturer is not sustelsin replicating the product or experiences ygglave may experience delays in its clinical
development.

If we fail to adequately understand and comply witle local laws and customs as we expand into netermational markets, thes
operations may incur losses or otherwise adversdfgct our business and results of operations.

We expect to operate a portion of our businesgitai countries through subsidiaries or througbpguand marketing arrangements.
In those countries, where we have limited expeadnmperating subsidiaries and in reviewing equntyestees, we will be subject to additio
risks related to complying with a wide variety @ftional and local laws, including restrictions be import and export of certain intermediates
drugs, technologies and multiple and possibly @pging tax structures. In addition, we may face getition in certain countries from
companies that may have more experience with dpasin such countries or with international opiersd generally. We may also face
difficulties integrating new facilities in differéicountries into our existing operations, as welirdegrating employees hired in different
countries into our existing corporate culture. § do not effectively manage our operations in tisedesidiaries and review equity investees
effectively, or if we fail to manage our alliances may lose money in these countries and it magraely affect our business and results of
our operations.

If our competitors develop treatments for the tatgedications for which any of our product candides may be approved, and they i
approved more quickly, marketed more effectivelydemonstrated to be more effective than our prodoahdidates, our commercial
opportunity will be reduced or eliminated.

We operate in a highly competitive segment of ie¢glzhnology and biopharmaceutical market. We famapetition from numerous
sources, including commercial pharmaceutical antebhnology enterprises, academic institutionsegawment agencies, and private and
public research institutions. Many of our competitbave significantly greater financial, productelepment, manufacturing and marketing
resources. Large pharmaceutical companies havasix¢eexperience in clinical testing and obtainiegulatory approval for drugs.
Additionally, many universities and private and fiwbesearch institutes are active in cancer retg@ome in direct competition with us. We
may also compete with these organizations to resaigntists and clinical development personnelal@mnor early-stage companies may also
prove to be significant competitors, particulaftyaugh collaborative arrangements with large atabdished companies.

The cancer indications for which we are develogingproducts have a number of established therayptbsvhich we will compete.
Most major pharmaceutical companies and many Hiot@ogy companies are aggressively pursuing neweratevelopment programs for the
treatment of NHL, CLL, and other B-cell prolifenati malignancies, including both therapies with itradal, as well as novel, mechanisms of
action.

If approved, we expect TG-1101 to compete diresith Roche Group’s Rituxaf (rituximab) and Gazyv& (obinutuzumab or GA-
101), Spectrum Pharmaceutical’s Zev&lify °0-Ibritumomab Tiuxetan), and Genmab and GlaxoSmitrs$ Arzerra® (ofatumumab) among
others, each of which is currently approved fortteatment of various diseases including NHL and.Gh addition, a number of
pharmaceutical companies are developing antibddigeting CD20, CD19, and other B-cell associadegdets, chimeric antigen receptoca@i
(CAR-T) immunotherapy, and other B-cell ablativertipy which, if approved, would potentially compeith TG-1101. New developments,
including the development of other pharmaceutieahhologies and methods of treating disease, @edhe pharmaceutical and life sciences
industries at a rapid pace.
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With respect to TGR-1202, there are several PI3kadargeted compounds both approved, such asdzsleydelig™ (idelalisib), ar
in development, including, but not limited to, imfy Pharmaceuticals’ duvelisib (IP1-145), and AeelPharma’s ACP-319, which if approved
we would expect to compete directly with TGR-12BRaddition, there are numerous other novel thesafdrgeting similar pathways to TGR-
1202 in development, which if approved would alempete with TGR-1202 in similar indications, sushtlae BTK inhibitor, ibrutinib (FDA
approved for MCL, CLL, and WM and marketed by Phacytlics and Janssen), the BTK inhibitor ACP-19&d@r development by Acerta
Pharma), or the blc-2 inhibitor ABT-199 (under il development by AbbVie and Roche).

These developments may render our product candidatolete or noncompetitive. Compared to us, nodioyr potential competito
have substantially greater:

« research and development resources, including peesand technology;

« regulatory experience;

- pharmaceutical development, clinical trial and pheceutical commercialization experience;

» experience and expertise in exploitation of inttlial property rights; and

- capital resources.

As a result of these factors, our competitors matgio regulatory approval of their products mongidly than us or may obtain patent
protection or other intellectual property rightathimit our ability to develop or commercializerqaroduct candidates. Our competitors may
also develop products for the treatment of lymphem@&LL that are more effective, better toleratetyre useful and less costly than ours and
may also be more successful in manufacturing antteting their products. Our competitors may sucdaeambtaining approvals from the FDA
and foreign regulatory authorities for their protdcandidates sooner than we do for our products.

We will also face competition from these third pestin recruiting and retaining qualified personmstablishing clinical trial sites and
enrolling patients for clinical trials and in idéging and in-licensing new product candidates.

We rely completely on third parties to manufactuver preclinical and clinical pharmaceutical supplgeand we intend to rely on third parti
to produce commercial supplies of any approved proidcandidate, and our commercialization of any @fir product candidates could be
stopped, delayed or made less profitable if thdsedtparties fail to obtain approval of the FDA, fhto provide us with sufficient quantities
pharmaceutical product or fail to do so at accepkalguality levels or prices

The facilities used by our contract manufacturemninufacture our product candidates must be apdrby the FDA pursuant to
inspections that will be conducted only after wbrait a BLA or NDA to the FDA, if at all. We do nobntrol the manufacturing process of our
product candidates and are completely dependeotiooontract manufacturing partners for compliawié the FDA'’s requirements for
manufacture of finished pharmaceutical product®@gmanufacturing practices, GMP). If our contraetunfacturers cannot successfully
manufacture material that conforms to our targetlpct specifications, patent specifications, anthierFDA’s strict regulatory requirements of
safety, purity and potency, we will not be ablesézure and/or maintain FDA approval for our prodizstdidates. In addition, we have no
control over the ability of our contract manufaetisrto maintain adequate quality control, qualiguaance and qualified personnel. If our
contract manufacturers cannot meet FDA standarésnay need to find alternative manufacturing faesi which would significantly impact
our ability to develop, obtain regulatory approfal or market our product candidates. No assuraanebe given that a long-term, scalable
manufacturer can be identified or that they caner@iical and commercial supplies of our prodwarididates that meets the product
specifications of previously manufactured batclhess of a sufficient quality, or at an appropriatale and cost to make it commercially
feasible. If they are unable to do so, it couldéhavnaterial adverse impact on our business.

In addition, we do not have the capability to paykéinished products for distribution to hospitatsl other customers. Prior to
commercial launch, we intend to enter into agregmwith one or more alternate fill/finish pharmatieal product suppliers so that we can
ensure proper supply chain management once weutirerzzed to make commercial sales of our prodanti@ates. If we receive marketing
approval from the FDA, we intend to sell pharmamaliproduct finished and packaged by such supplidfe have not entered into long-term
agreements with our current contract manufacturergith any fill/finish suppliers, and though weend to do so prior to commercial launct
our product candidates in order to ensure that wiatain adequate supplies of finished product, vag tre unable to enter into such an
agreement or do so on commercially reasonable tewtish could have a material adverse impact uporbasiness.
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In most cases, our manufacturing partners areessmlrce suppliers. It is expected that our manwifimg) partners will be sole source
suppliers from single site locations for the foezdgle future. Given this, any disruption of supgipbm these partners could have a material,
longterm impact on our ability to supply products ftinical trials or commercial sale. If our suppliefs not deliver sufficient quantities of
product candidates on a timely basis, or at all,iaraccordance with applicable specificationstaleuld be a significant interruption of our
supply, which would adversely affect clinical dey@hent and commercialization of our products. Iditah, if our current or future supply of
any or our product candidates should fail to mpet#ications during its stability program therautmbbe a significant interruption of our sup
of drug, which would adversely affect the clinidalvelopment and commercialization of the product.

We currently have no marketing and sales organipatiand no experience in marketing pharmaceuticalopiucts. If we are unable to
establish sales and marketing capabilities or falenter into agreements with third parties to matkand sell any products we may develop,
we may not be able to effectively market and sell products and generate product revenue.

We do not currently have the infrastructure forshkes, marketing and distribution of our biotedbgy products, and we must build
this infrastructure or make arrangements with thadies to perform these functions in order to ow@rcialize our products. We plan to either
develop internally or enter into collaborationsotiier commercial arrangements to develop furthempte and sell all or a portion of our
product candidates.

The establishment and development of a sales feitter by us or jointly with a development partrarthe establishment of a
contract sales force to market any products we deaglop will be expensive and time-consuming anddcdelay any product launch, and we
cannot be certain that we or our development pestwweuld be able to successfully develop this caipaldf we or our development partners
are unable to establish sales and marketing catyadrilany other non-technical capabilities necessacommercialize any products we may
develop, we will need to contract with third pastie market and sell such products. We currentsess limited resources and may not be
successful in establishing our own internal sabesef or in establishing arrangements with thirdiparon acceptable terms, if at all.

If any product candidate that we successfully demgboes not achieve broad market acceptance amdngigians, patients, healthcar
payors, and the medical community, the revenuest tiva generate from its sales will be limite

Even if our product candidates receive regulatppraval, they may not gain market acceptance ambggicians, patients, healthc
payors, and the medical community. Coverage amdin@isement of our product candidates by third-ppatyors, including government
payors, generally is also necessary for commescietess. The degree of market acceptance of anyr @fpproved products will depend on a
number of factors, including:

« the efficacy and safety as demonstrated in clirticalls;

« the clinical indications for which the product igpaoved;

« acceptance by physicians, major operators of caslicees and patients of the product as a safeedfedttive treatment;
« the potential and perceived advantages of procarddidates over alternative treatments;

« the safety of product candidates seen in a brgaatérnt group, including its use outside the appdowmdications;

« the cost of treatment in relation to alternativeatments;

- the availability of adequate reimbursement andipgiby third parties and government authorities;

- relative convenience and ease of administration;

- the prevalence and severity of adverse events; and

- the effectiveness of our sales and marketing effort

If any product candidate is approved but does obieae an adequate level of acceptance by physicharspitals, healthcare payors
and patients, we may not generate sufficient reedram these products and we may not become oringonefitable.
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If product liability lawsuits are brought againsts) we may incur substantial liabilities and may bequired to limit commercialization of ou
product candidates

We face an inherent risk of product liability exposrelated to the testing of our product candglatdhuman clinical trials, and will
face an even greater risk if we sell our producdadates commercially. Although we are not awararof historical or anticipated product
liability claims against us, if we cannot succeligfdefend ourselves against product liability oiai, we may incur substantial liabilities or be
required to cease clinical trials of our drug cdatks or limit commercialization of any approveddarcts. An individual may bring a liability
claim against us if one of our product candidatasses, or merely appears to have caused, an itfjuvg.cannot successfully defend our self
against product liability claims, we will incur sstantial liabilities. Regardless of merit or eveattoutcome, liability claims may result in:

« decreased demand for our product candidates;

« impairment to our business reputation;

« withdrawal of clinical trial participants;

« costs of related litigation;

- distraction of management’s attention from our priynbusiness;
« substantial monetary awards to patients or otl@melnts;

« the inability to commercialize our product candetgatand

o loss of revenues.

We believe that we have obtained sufficient prodiadility insurance coverage for our clinical t§aWe intend to expand our
insurance coverage to include the sale of commgrmalucts if marketing approval is obtained foy af our product candidates. However, we
may be unable to obtain this product liability irmce on commercially reasonable terms and witlrémee coverage that will be adequate to
satisfy any liability that may arise. On occasilamge judgments have been awarded in class actioividual lawsuits relating to marketed
pharmaceuticals. A successful product liabilityirdlar series of claims brought against us couldseaaur stock price to decline and, if
judgments exceed our insurance coverage, couleédserur cash and adversely affect our busi

Reimbursement may be limited or unavailable in @t market segments for our product candidates, elhicould make it difficult for us tc
sell our products profitably

We intend to seek approval to market our futurelpots in both the United States and in countriestarritories outside the United
States. If we obtain approval in one or more fanaguntries, we will be subject to rules and retjoites in those countries relating to our
product. In some foreign countries, particularlifhie European Union, the pricing of prescriptiomphaceuticals and biologics is subject to
governmental control. In these countries, priciegatiations with governmental authorities can tedwmsiderable time after the receipt of
marketing approval for a product candidate. In tolali market acceptance and sales of our produndidates will depend significantly on the
availability of adequate coverage and reimburserfrent third-party payors for any of our product datates and may be affected by existing
and future healthcare reform measures.

Government authorities and third-party payors, agprivate health insurers and health maintenargamizations, decide which
pharmaceuticals they will pay for and establismiairsement levels. Reimbursement by a third-payopmay depend upon a number of
factors, including the third-party payor’s deteration that use of a product is:

« acovered benefit under its health plan;

. safe, effective and medically necessary;

- appropriate for the specific patient;

- cost-effective; and

« neither experimental nor investigational.

Obtaining coverage and reimbursement approval fspduct from a government or other third-partyqrag a time consuming and
costly process that could require that we proviggpsrting scientific, clinical and cost-effectivassedata for the use of our products to the
payor. We may not be able to provide data sufficiemain acceptance with respect to coverage eintbursement. If reimbursement of our
future products is unavailable or limited in sc@gpemount, or if pricing is set at unsatisfactaydls, we may be unable to achieve or sustain
profitability.

In both the United States and certain foreign coesitthere have been a number of legislative agdlatory changes to the healthcare
system that could impact our ability to sell oungucts profitably. In particular, the Medicare Matieation Act of 2003 revised the payment
methodology for many products reimbursed by Medicegsulting in lower rates of reimbursement fongngypes of drugs, and added a
prescription drug benefit to the Medicare prograat involves commercial plans negotiating drugesitor their members. Since 2003, there
have been a number of other legislative and reguylathanges to the coverage and reimbursementdapdgor pharmaceuticals. Most
recently, the Patient Protection and AffordableeCact, as amended by the Health Care and EducRioonciliation Act of 2010, collectivel
the “Affordable Care Act,” was enacted. The AffdotiaCare Act contains a number of provisions, idirlg those governing enroliment in
federal healthcare programs, the increased usenoparative effectiveness research on healthcadupts, reimbursement and fraud and abus
changes, and a new regulatory pathway for the appod biosimilar biological products, all of whiahill impact existing government
healthcare programs and will result in the develepnof new programs. An expansion in the governiaeate in the U.S. healthcare industry
may further lower rates of reimbursement for phar@utical and biotechnology produc
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There have been, and likely will continue to bgjdtative and regulatory proposals at the fedendlstate levels directed at broadel
the availability of healthcare and containing axdwing the cost of healthcare products and servidescannot predict the initiatives that may
be adopted in the future. The continuing effortshaef government, insurance companies, managedmgaaizations and other payors of
healthcare services to contain or reduce costealtlicare may adversely affect:

« the demand for any products for which we may obtagulatory approval;

« our ability to set a price that we believe is fair our products;

« our ability to generate revenues and achieve ontaiai profitability;

« the level of taxes that we are required to pay; and

« the availability of capital.

In addition, governments may impose price contwlsch may adversely affect our future profitalyilit

We will need to increase the size of our organipatiand the scope of our outside vendor relationghipnd we may experience difficulties in
managing this growth.

As of March 2, 2015, we had twenty-four full andtgane employees. Over time, we will need to expanr managerial, operational,
financial and other resources in order to managefamd our operations and clinical trials, contimasearch and development activities, and
commercialize our product candidates. Our manageamehscientific personnel, systems and faciliti@sently in place may not be adequate
to support our future growth. Our need to effedyiveanage our operations, growth, and various ptsjeequires that we:

« manage our clinical trials effectively;

« manage our internal development efforts effectiweijle carrying out our contractual obligationditensors, contractors and

other third parties

- continue to improve our operational, financial amanagement controls and reporting systems and guoeg and

- attract and retain sufficient numbers of talenteghloyees.

We may utilize the services of outside vendorsomsaltants to perform tasks including clinical trizanagement, statistics and
analysis, regulatory affairs, formulation developmehemistry, manufacturing, controls, and othearmaceutical development functions. Our
growth strategy may also entail expanding our grofugontractors or consultants to implement thaskd going forward. Because we rely on ¢
substantial number of consultants, effectively outsing many key functions of our business, we néied to be able to effectively manage
these consultants to ensure that they successfulty out their contractual obligations and megtezted deadlines. However, if we are unable
to effectively manage our outsourced activitieff tine quality or accuracy of the services providgdconsultants is compromised for any
reason, our clinical trials may be extended, delayeterminated, and we may not be able to obtgulatory approval for our product
candidates or otherwise advance its business. Ta@rée no assurance that we will be able to maoagexisting consultants or find other
competent outside contractors and consultants omoegically reasonable terms, or at all. If we aseable to effectively expand our
organization by hiring new employees and expandimggroups of consultants and contractors, we neayriable to successfully implement
tasks necessary to further develop and commereializ product candidates and, accordingly, mayaobieve our research, development and
commercialization goals.

If we fail to attract and keep key management arihical development personnel, we may be unabletccessfully develop ¢
commercialize our product candidates.

We will need to expand and effectively manage oanagerial, operational, financial and other resesiin order to successfully
pursue our clinical development and commercialiragéfforts for our product candidates and futuipct candidates. We are highly
dependent on the development, regulatory, commemdhfinancial expertise of the members of ouictemanagement. The loss of the
services of any of our senior management couldydmarevent the further development and potextiahmercialization of our product
candidates and, if we are not successful in findnigable replacements, could harm our businessdd\feot maintain “key man” insurance
policies on the lives of these individuals. We wiled to hire additional personnel as we contiowexpand our manufacturing, research and
development activities.
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Our success depends on our continued ability tacftretain and motivate highly qualified managetraand scientific personnel and
we may not be able to do so in the future dueddritense competition for qualified personnel ambiogechnology, pharmaceutical and other
businesses. Our industry has experienced a higlofatrnover of management personnel in recensydfave are not able to attract and retain
the necessary personnel to accomplish our busaissstives, we may experience constraints thatimlede significantly the achievement of
our development objectives, our ability to raiseitdnal capital, and our ability to implement dursiness strategy.

If we fail to comply with healthcare regulations,encould face substantial penalties and our busineggerations and financial conditiol
could be adversely affected.

In addition to FDA restrictions on the marketingpdfarmaceutical and biotechnology products, sewdhar types of state and federal
laws have been applied to restrict certain marggtiractices in the pharmaceutical and medical @evidustries in recent years, as well as
consulting or other service agreements with phgegior other potential referral sources. These laglade anti-kickback statutes and false
claims statutes that prohibit, among other thitkkgewingly and willfully offering, paying, solicitig or receiving remuneration to induce, or, in
return for, purchasing, leasing, ordering or armagdor the purchase, lease or order of any heatthitem or service reimbursable under
Medicare, Medicaid or other federally-financed lteedre programs, and knowingly presenting, or cas) be presented, a false claim for
payment to the federal government, or knowingly imgkor causing to be made, a false statementtta t@se claim paid. The majority of
states also have statutes or regulations similtredederal anti-kickback law and false claimsdawhich apply to items and services
reimbursed under Medicaid and other state program) several states, apply regardless of thepaithough there are a number of
statutory exemptions and regulatory safe harbatepting certain common activities from prosecutitie exemptions and safe harbors are
drawn narrowly, and any practices we adopt mayind@ll cases, meet all of the criteria for safebloa protection from anti-kickback liability.
Sanctions under these federal and state laws nochydim civil monetary penalties, exclusion of a nfanturer’s products from reimbursement
under government programs, criminal fines and isgrinent. Any challenge to its business practiceéguthese laws could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiom results of operations.

We use biological and hazardous materials, and atgims relating to improper handling, storage orgiosal of these materials could be
time consuming or costly.

We use hazardous materials, including chemicald#oidgical agents and compounds, which could beydeous to human health a
safety or the environment. Our operations also ycedcazardous waste products. Federal, state ealddws and regulations govern the use,
generation, manufacture, storage, handling anddimf these materials and wastes. Complianceapipficable environmental laws and
regulations may be expensive, and current or futakgronmental laws and regulations may impairgharmaceutical development efforts.

In addition, we cannot entirely eliminate the riflkaccidental injury or contamination from thesetenials or wastes. If one of our
employees was accidentally injured from the us@agie, handling or disposal of these materialsast@s, the medical costs related to his or
her treatment would be covered by our workers’ cengation insurance policy. However, we do not capgcific biological or hazardous
waste insurance coverage and our property and loasuna general liability insurance policies spigifly exclude coverage for damages and
fines arising from biological or hazardous wastpasure or contamination. Accordingly, in the eveintontamination or injury, we could be
held liable for damages or penalized with finearimamount exceeding our resources, and our clitriedd or regulatory approvals could be
suspended, or operations otherwise affected.

All product candidate development timelines and jgetions in this report are based on the assumptifrfurther financing.

The timelines and projections in this report aredizated upon the assumption that we will raisetiaél financing in the future to
continue the development of our product candidatethe event we do not successfully raise subsedirancing, our product development
activities will necessarily be curtailed commenseraith the magnitude of the shortfall. If our puotl development activities are slowed or
stopped, we would be unable to meet the timelimelspgojections outlined in this filing. Failure poogress our product candidates as
anticipated will have a negative effect on our bass, future prospects, and ability to obtain frrfinancing on acceptable terms (if at all), .
the value of the enterprise.
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Risks Relating to Acquisitions

Acquisitions, investments and strategic alliancést we may make in the future may use significaespurces, result in disruptions to ol
business or distractions of our management, may poidceed as planned, and could expose us to unfeeedliabilities.

We may seek to expand our business through thesiogi of, investments in and strategic allianegth companies, technologies,
products, and services. Acquisitions, investmentssirategic alliances involve a number of spgmablems and risks, including, but not
limited to:

» difficulty integrating acquired technologies, pratk) services, operations and personnel with tisieg businesses;

« diversion of management’s attention in connectidh Woth negotiating the acquisitions and integmatihe businesses;

« strain on managerial and operational resourcesaamgement tries to oversee larger operations;

« difficulty implementing and maintaining effectivetérnal control over financial reporting at bussesthat we acquire,

particularly if they are not located near our érigtoperations

« exposure to unforeseen liabilities of acquired camgs;

- potential costly and time-consuming litigation, linting stockholder lawsuits;

« potential issuance of securities to equity holdéihe company being acquired with rights thatsargerior to the rights of holders

of our common stock or which may have a dilutivieetfon our stockholder

« risk of loss of invested capital;

« the need to incur additional debt or use cash; and

« the requirement to record potentially significadti@ional future operating costs for the amortiaatof intangible assets.

As a result of these or other problems and risiésinesses we acquire may not produce the reveeaesngs, or business synergies
that we anticipated, and acquired products, sesymetechnologies might not perform as we expedsd result, we may incur higher costs
and realize lower revenues than we had anticip&tedmay not be able to successfully address theddgms and we cannot assure you that
the acquisitions will be successfully identifiecdasompleted or that, if acquisitions are complethd,acquired businesses, products, services
or technologies will generate sufficient revenueftfset the associated costs or other negativetsffan our business.

Any of these risks can be greater if an acquisitsdarge relative to our size. Failure to effeetivmanage our growth through
acquisitions could adversely affect our growth peags, business, results of operations, finanoiatlition and cash flows.

Risks Relating to Our Intellectual Property

Our success depends upon our ability to protect mtellectual property and proprietary technologiesnd the intellectual property
protection for our product candidates depends sfigantly on third parties.

Our commercial success depends on obtaining anatanging patent protection and trade secret priotedor our product candidates
and their formulations and uses, as well as sufidgsdefending these patents against third-pahiglienges. If any of our licensors or partners
fails to appropriately prosecute and maintain papeotection for these product candidates, ouiitghid develop and commercialize these
product candidates may be adversely affected anthayenot be able to prevent competitors from makirsing and selling competing
products. This failure to properly protect the lietetual property rights relating to these prodeemdidates could have a material adverse effe
on our financial condition and results of operagion

Currently, the composition of matter patent andesgvmethod of use patents for TG-1101 and TGR-12@2rious indications and
settings have been applied for but have not yat isseied, and no patents to date have been issuedrfIRAK4 inhibitor program. The pate
application process is subject to numerous riskisuartertainties, and there can be no assurance/éhat our partners will be successful in
protecting our product candidates by obtaining def@énding patents.

These risks and uncertainties include the following

- the patent applications that we or our partneesrfiby not result in any patents being issued;

- patents that may be issued or in-licensed may biectged, invalidated, modified, revoked or circimted, or otherwise may not
provide any competitive advantag

« as of March 16, 2013, the U.S. converted from ist'fio invent” to a “first to file” system. If weodnot win the filing race, we will
not be entitled to inventive priorit

« our competitors, many of which have substantiatiager resources than we do, and many of which treade significant
investments in competing technologies, may seelay already have obtained, patents that will limiterfere with, or eliminate
its ability to make, use, and sell our potentialdarcts either in the United States or in intermalanarkets
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« there may be significant pressure on the U.S. gowent and other international governmental bodidsriit the scope of patent
protection both inside and outside the United Sthdedisease treatments that prove successfuhegtar of public policy
regarding worldwide health concerns; ¢

« countries other than the United States may haweré&strictive patent laws than those upheld byedh&tates courts, allowing
foreign competitors the ability to exploit these$ato create, develop, and market competing pred

If patents are not issued that protect our prodantlidates, it could have a material adverse effectur financial condition and rest
of operations.

In addition to patents, we and our partners algome trade secrets and proprietary knbaw. Although we have taken steps to prc
our trade secrets and unpatented know-how, inoduelitiering into confidentiality agreements wittrdhparties, and confidential information
and inventions agreements with employees, congdsltard advisors, third parties may still obtairs tinformation or we may be unable to
protect its rights. If any of these events occarsye otherwise lose protection for our trade dsave proprietary know-how, the value of this
information may be greatly reduced.

Patent protection and other intellectual properttgction are crucial to the success of our busiaesl prospects, and there is a
substantial risk that such protections will proradequate.

If we or our partners are sued for infringing intellectugroperty rights of third parties, it will be costand time consuming, and an
unfavorable outcome in that litigation would haveraaterial adverse effect on our business.

Our commercial success also depends upon ouryadiili the ability of any of our future collaborado develop, manufacture, mai
and sell our product candidates without infringihg proprietary rights of third parties. Numerousted States and foreign issued patents anc
pending patent applications, which are owned hgtparties, exist in the fields in which we are eéleping products, some of which may be
directed at claims that overlap with the subjectteraf our intellectual property. For example, Redas the Cabilly patents in the U.S. that
block the commercialization of antibody productsivid from a single cell line, like TG-1101 . Aldepche, Biogen Idec, and Genentech hold
patents for the use of anti-CD20 antibodies utilizethe treatment of CLL in the U.S. While thesggmts have been challenged, to the best o
our knowledge, those matters were settled in athvatypermitted additional anti-CD20 antibodies ¢onbarketed for CLL. If those patents are
still enforced at the time we are intending to ketufG-1101 , then we will need to either prevaihilitigation to challenge those patents or
negotiate a settlement agreement with the patddets If we are unable to do so we may be foroeditay the launch of TG-11@t launch &
the risk of litigation for patent infringement, vehi may have a material adverse effect on our bssiard results of operations.

In addition, because patent applications can takeynyears to issue, there may be currently peraipjcations, unknown to us,
which may later result in issued patents that sadpct candidates or proprietary technologies méynige. Similarly, there may be issued
patents relevant to our product candidates of whietare not aware.

There is a substantial amount of litigation invatyipatent and other intellectual property rightthia biotechnology and
biopharmaceutical industries generally. If a thiedty claims that we or any collaborators of onfsinge their intellectual property rights, we
may have to:

« Obtain licenses, which may not be available on cencially reasonable terms, if at all;

« abandon an infringing product candidate or redesggproducts or processes to avoid infringement;

« pay substantial damages, including treble damagegs#iorneys’ fees, which we may have to pay ibartdecides that the

product or proprietary technology at issue infrig@e or violates the third pa’s rights;

» pay substantial royalties, fees and/or grant diosases to our technology; and/or

- defend litigation or administrative proceedings ethinay be costly whether we win or lose, and wisimhld result in a substant

diversion of our financial and management resou

No assurance can be given that patents issuedtdaptirties do not exist, have not been filed,arld not be filed or issued, which
contain claims covering its products, technologynethods that may encompass all or a portion opoaducts and methods. Given the nun
of patents issued and patent applications fileolintechnical areas or fields, we believe thererisk that third parties may allege they have
patent rights encompassing our products or methods.

Other product candidates that we may in-licens&cquire could be subject to similar risks and utadeties.

29




We may be involved in lawsuits to protect or enfem@ur patents or the patents of our licensors, whiould be expensive, time consuming
and unsuccessful.

Competitors may infringe our patents or the patehtur licensors. To counter infringement or ulauized use, we may be required
to file infringement claims, which typically areryeexpensive, time-consuming and disruptive of tixgay business operations. In addition, ir
an infringement proceeding, a court may decidedhadtent of ours or our licensors is not validsarnenforceable, or may refuse to stop the
other party from using the technology at issuehengrounds that our patents do not cover the tdogpdan question. An adverse result in any
litigation or defense proceedings could put oneore of our patents at risk of being invalidategldhunenforceable, or interpreted narrowly.
The adverse result could also put related pategplicapions at risk of not issuing.

Interference proceedings provoked by third paxielsrought by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Offied O”) may be necessary to
determine the priority of inventions with respexbur patents or patent applications or those otollaborators or licensors. An unfavorable
outcome could require us to cease using the retatduhology or to attempt to license rights tadinf the prevailing party. Our business could
be harmed if the prevailing party does not offealigense on commercially reasonable terms. Ltitigeor interference proceedings may fail
and, even if successful, may result in substantiats and distract our management and other emggoyée may not be able to prevent, alone
or with our licensors, misappropriation of our #askcrets or confidential information, particularlycountries where the laws may not protect
those rights as fully as in the United States.

Furthermore, because of the substantial amounisobdery required in connection with intellectuabperty litigation, there is a risk
that some of our confidential information coulddmmpromised by disclosure during this type of &tign. In addition, there could be public
announcements of the results of hearings, motionsher interim proceedings or developments. ILisidies analysts or investors perceive tt
results to be negative, it could have a substaatiaérse effect on the price of our common stock.

We may be subject to claims that our consultantsratependent contractors have wrongfully used osclbsed alleged trade secrets of their
other clients or former employers to it.

As is common in the biotechnology and pharmacelticustry, we engage the services of consultangssist us in the development
of our product candidates. Many of these considtesgire previously employed at, may have previobsbn, or are currently providing
consulting services to, other biotechnology or prareutical companies, including our competitorpaiential competitors. Although no
claims against us are currently pending, we maguiiect to claims that these consultants or we hraaavertently or otherwise used or
disclosed trade secrets or other proprietary inédion of their former employers or their formeronirrent customers. Litigation may be
necessary to defend against these claims. Evea #@rev successful in defending against these clditigation could result in substantial costs
and be a distraction to management and day-to-dsiypéss operations.

Risks Relating to Our Finances and Capital Requirerants

We will need to raise additional capital to contieuo operate our business.

As of December 31, 2014, we had net cash, cashaquis, investment securities and interest rebévaf approximately
$78,861,000. We believe that our cash and caslvaguis and investments, inclusive of the amouited subsequent to the end of the year,
will sustain our operations for more than 24 moritbsn December 31, 2014. As a result, we will nadditional capital to continue our
operations beyond that time. Required additionata®s of financing to continue our operations mfilture might not be available on
favorable terms, if at all. If we do not succeeddising additional funds on acceptable terms, Wwghtrbe unable to complete planned
preclinical and clinical trials or obtain approwdlany of our product candidates from the FDA oy foreign regulatory authorities. In addition,
we could be forced to discontinue product develamtyreduce or forego sales and marketing effortsfarego attractive business
opportunities. Any additional sources of financimdj likely involve the issuance of our equity seities, which would have a dilutive effect to
stockholders.

Currently, none of our product candidates have laggmoved by the FDA or any foreign regulatory autly for sale. Therefore, for

the foreseeable future, we will have to fund albaf operations and capital expenditures from cashand and amounts raised in future
offerings or financings.
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We have a history of operating losses, expect tatione to incur losses, and are unable to predibetextent of future losses or when we will
become profitable, if ever.

We have not yet demonstrated an ability to obtegulatory approval for or commercialize a prodwrididate. Our short operating
history makes it difficult to evaluate our busingssspects and consequently, any predictions albauiuture performance may not be as
accurate as they could be if we had a history ofessfully developing and commercializing pharm#icalor biotechnology products. Our
prospects must be considered in light of the uaa#ies, risks, expenses and difficulties frequeaticountered by companies in the early
stages of operations and the competitive enviromnmmemhich we operate.

We have never been profitable and, as of Decenthe2®L4, we had an accumulated deficit of $95,18%,%Ve have generated
operating losses in all periods since we were pa@ted. We expect to make substantial expenditessgting in increasing operating costs in
the future and our accumulated deficit will increaggnificantly as we expand development and dintigal efforts for our product candidates.
Our losses have had, and are expected to contirtugve, an adverse impact on our working capitéd) Bssets and stockholders’ equity.
Because of the risks and uncertainties associatadwoduct development, we are unable to pretiietextent of any future losses or when we
will become profitable, if ever. Even if we achigwefitability, we may not be able to sustain arrgase profitability on an ongoing basis.

We have not generated any revenue from our prodeamdidates and may never become profitable.

Our ability to become profitable depends upon duility to generate significant continuing revenués.obtain significant continuing
revenues, we must succeed, either alone or wittretin developing, obtaining regulatory approwealdnd manufacturing and marketing our
product candidates (or utilize early access progremgenerate such revenue). To date, our prodnctidates have not generated any revet
and we do not know when, or if, we will generatg egvenue. Our ability to generate revenue dependsnumber of factors, including, but
not limited to:

« successful completion of preclinical studies of ptoduct candidates;

« successful commencement and completion of clitic@b of our product candidates and any futurelpob candidates we

advance into clinical trials

« achievement of regulatory approval for our prodistdidates and any future product candidates waradvinto clinical trials

(unless we successfully utilize early access prograhich allow for revenue generation prior to awat);

« manufacturing commercial quantities of our prodattacceptable cost levels if regulatory approaatsobtained;

« successful sales, distribution and marketing offature products, if any; and

« our entry into collaborative arrangements or caaprion agreements to market and sell our products.

If we are unable to generate significant continuigeenues, we will not become profitable and we tmaynable to continue our
operations without continued funding.

We will need substantial additional funding and mdpge unable to raise capital when needed, which webfdrce us to delay, reduce or
eliminate our development programs or commerciatina efforts.

We expect to spend substantial amounts on develupineluding significant amounts on conductingidal trials for our product
candidates, manufacturing clinical supplies ancaegiing our pharmaceutical development programseXpect that our monthly cash used by
operations will continue to increase for the nextesal years. We anticipate that we will continméntur operating losses for the foreseeable
future.

We will require substantial additional funds to pap our continued research and development aesyias well as the anticipated
costs of preclinical studies and clinical trialsgulatory approvals, and eventual commercializatfda anticipate that we will incur operating
losses for the foreseeable future. We have basse thstimates, however, on assumptions that mag psde wrong, and we could expend
available financial resources much faster than wveeatly expect. Further, we will need to raiseiiddal capital to fund our operations and
continue to conduct clinical trials to support pdial regulatory approval of marketing applicatioRsiture capital requirements will also
depend on the extent to which we acquire or inaieeadditional product candidates. We currentlyehraycommitments or agreements relating
to any of these types of transactions.

The amount and timing of our future funding reqmests will depend on many factors, including, bottlmited to, the following:

« the progress of our clinical trials, including erpes to support the trials and milestone payméatstay become payable under
our license agreemen

- the costs and timing of regulatory approvals;
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« the costs and timing of clinical and commercial ofaoturing supply arrangements for each producticiate;
« the costs of establishing sales or distributioratélfiies;

« the success of the commercialization of our pragjuct

« our ability to establish and maintain strategidatwbrations, including licensing and other arrangets;

« the costs involved in enforcing or defending patdaims or other intellectual property rights; and

- the extent to which we in-license or invest in otinglications or product candidates.

Until we can generate a sufficient amount of pradegenue and achieve profitability, we expectitarfice future cash needs through
public or private equity offerings, debt financingscorporate collaboration and licensing arrangases well as through interest income
earned on cash balances. If we were to be unaléste additional capital, we would have to sigmifitly delay, scale back or discontinue one
or more of our pharmaceutical development prograffesalso may be required to relinquish, licensetberwise dispose of rights to product
candidates or products that it would otherwise $ealevelop or commercialize itself on terms thatlass favorable than might otherwise be
available.

Raising additional funds by issuing securities dirbugh licensing or lending arrangements may caudiéution to our existing stockholders
restrict our operations or require us to relinquigbroprietary rights.

We may raise additional funds through public ovaié equity offerings, debt financings or licensargangements. To the extent that
we raise additional capital by issuing equity séms, the share ownership of existing stockholaetsbe diluted. Any future debt financing
enter into may involve covenants that restrict @pgrations, including limitations on our abilityitecur liens or additional debt, pay dividends,
redeem our stock, make certain investments andgengacertain merger, consolidation or asset satestictions, among other restrictions.

In addition, if we raise additional funds througdehsing arrangements, it may be necessary tajreih potentially valuable rights to
our product candidates, or grant licenses on téatsare not favorable to us. If adequate fundsatevailable, our ability to achieve
profitability or to respond to competitive pressuveould be significantly limited and we may be regd to delay, significantly curtail or
eliminate the development of one or more of oudpo candidates.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We are controlled by current officers, directors @mprincipal stockholders.

Our directors, executive officers, their affiliat@sd our principal stockholders beneficially owapeoximately 40% percent of our
outstanding voting stock, including shares undagyoutstanding options and warrants. Our directuffisers and principal stockholders, taken
as a whole, have the ability to exert substamtifiénce over the election of our Board of Direstand the outcome of issues submitted to our
stockholders.

Our stock price is, and we expect it to remain, atile, which could limit investors’ ability to seBtock at a profit.

The trading price of our common stock is likelyb® highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuatiangrice in response to various
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Bii@stors include:

« publicity regarding actual or potential clinicabtats relating to products under development bycounpetitors or us;

« delay or failure in initiating, completing or anaigg nonclinical or clinical trials or the unsatisfory design or results of these

trials;

« achievement or rejection of regulatory approval®bycompetitors or us;

« announcements of technological innovations or nemroercial products by our competitors or us;

« developments concerning proprietary rights, inclgddatents;

« developments concerning our collaborations;

« regulatory developments in the United States argida countries;

« economic or other crises and other external factors

« period-to-period fluctuations in our revenues atiteoresults of operations;

« changes in financial estimates by securities atalgsd

« sales of our common stock.

We will not be able to control many of these fast@nd we believe that period-to-period comparisdraur financial results will not
necessarily be indicative of our future performance
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In addition, the stock market in general, and tlzekat for biotechnology companies in particulais baperienced extreme price and
volume fluctuations that may have been unrelatedisproportionate to the operating performancendividual companies. These broad ma
and industry factors may seriously harm the mapkiee of our common stock, regardless of our ofreggierformance.

We have not paid dividends in the past and do ngbect to pay dividends in the future, and any retuon investment may be limited to t
value of your stock.

We have never paid dividends on our common stockdannot anticipate paying any dividends for thee$eeable future. You sho
not rely on an investment in our stock if you requdividend income. Further, you will only realil@ome on an investment in our stock in
event you sell or otherwise dispose of your shatesprice higher than the price you paid for yshaires. Such a gain would result only fror
increase in the market price of our common stodkckvis uncertain and unpredictable.

Certain anti-takeover provisions in our charter doments and Delaware law could make a third-partygagsition of us difficult. This could
limit the price investors might be willing to pan the future for our common stock.

Provisions in our amended and restated certifichiecorporation and restated bylaws could haveeffect of making it more difficul
for a third party to acquire, or of discouraginthad party from attempting to acquire, or contusl These factors could limit the price that
certain investors might be willing to pay in theute for shares of our common stock. Our amendddestated certificate of incorporation
allows us to issue preferred stock without the apglrof our stockholders. The issuance of prefestedk could decrease the amount of
earnings and assets available for distributioméotiolders of our common stock or could adversigctthe rights and powers, including
voting rights, of such holders. In certain circuamgtes, such issuance could have the effect of agiogethe market price of our common stock
Our restated bylaws eliminate the right of stockleas to call a special meeting of stockholderscivigsiould make it more difficult for
stockholders to effect certain corporate actiormsy 8f these provisions could also have the effédetaying or preventing a change in control.

On July 18, 2014, the Board of Directors declarelistribution of one right for each outstandingrehaf common stock. The rights
may have certain anti-takeover effects. The righliscause substantial dilution to a person or grttat attempts to acquire us on terms not
approved by the Board of Directors unless the affeonditioned on a substantial number of rigleisp acquired. However, the rights should
not interfere with any merger, statutory share axge or other business combination approved bdaed of Directors since the rights may
be terminated by us upon resolution of the Boariodctors. Thus, the rights are intended to ereag@persons who may seek to acquire
control of the Company to initiate such an acqiaisithrough negotiations with the Board of Direstddowever, the effect of the rights may be
to discourage a third party from making a pargader offer or otherwise attempting to obtain astauttial equity position in the equity
securities of, or seeking to obtain control of, @G@mpany. To the extent any potential acquirerslaterred by the rights, the rights may have
the effect of preserving incumbent managementficef

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our corporate and executive office is located invNgork, New York. Our New York facility consists office space at 3 Columbus
Circle, 15" Floor, New York, New York 10019. We are not curhgninder a lease agreement at 3 Columbus Circleb&lieve that our
existing facilities are adequate to meet our cumrequirements. We do not own any real property.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We, and our subsidiaries, are not a party to, amgmperty is not the subject of, any materialgieg legal proceedings.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

This item is not applicable to the Company.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Capitalrkéd and trades under the symbol “TGTX". Prior tayv80, 2013 our stock
was listed on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsiiwy sale prices of our common stock for the periodicated.

High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 201
Fourth Quarte $ 18.2t $ 9.3¢
Third Quartel $ 11.9: $ 7.31
Second Quarte $ 9.9 % 4.51]
First Quartel $ 75¢ $ 4.1C
High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 201
Fourth Quarte $ 5.1¢ $ 3.17
Third Quartel $ 6.87 $ 5.04
Second Quarte $ 7.4¢ % 5.2¢
First Quartel $ 6.4C $ 3.5C

Holders
The number of record holders of our common stoosfddarch 10, 2015 was 465.
Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock and do not anticipate payingcash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Any future determination to gsydends will be at the discretion of our boafdlwectors.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpensation Plan

The following table provides information as of Dad#er 31, 2014, regarding the securities authorfiaegsuance under our equity
compensation plans, consisting of the 2003 Stodio®@glan, and the TG Therapeutics, Inc. AmendetRestated 2012 Incentive Plan.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future issuance
Number of under equity
securities to be Weighted-average = compensation
issued upon exercise price of plans (excluding
exercise of outstanding  securities reflectet
Plan Category outstanding options options in column (a))
(a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs 194 $ 971.7( 126,00(
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechutgers — — —
Total 194 $ 971.7( 126,00(

For information about all of our equity compensatmans see Note 5 to our Consolidated Financek8tents included in this report
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis contains Bmddooking statements about our plans and expectatbndat may happen in ti
future. Forward-looking statements are based amaber of assumptions and estimates that are intherbject to significant risks and
uncertainties, and our results could differ matlriaom the results anticipated by our forward4img statements as a result of many known o
unknown factors, including, but not limited to, #eofactors discussed in “Item 1A. Risk Factorsé 8kso the “Special Cautionary Notice
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” set fortthatbeginning of this report .

You should read the following discussion and arialiygsconjunction with “ltem 8. Financial Statemgiind Supplementary Datafid
our consolidated financial statements beginningage F-1 of this report.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused ondpgigition, development and commercialization ofeldreatments for b-cell
malignancies and autoimmune diseases. Currendycdmpany is developing two therapies targetingdielongical malignancies. TG-1101
(ublituximab) is a novel, glycoengineered monoclardibody that targets a specific and unique g@giton the CD20 antigen found on mature
B-lymphocytes. TG Therapeutics is also developi@R¥1202, an orally available PI3K delta inhibitbhe delta isoform of PI3K is strongly
expressed in cells of hematopoietic origin anceiléelved to be important in the proliferation andvétal of B-lymphocytes. Both TG-1101 and
TGR-1202 are in clinical development for patientdwihhematologic malignancies. The Company alsoahaie-clinical program to develop
inhibitors of IRAK4 (interleukin-1 receptor-assoigd kinase 4), as well as an antibody researchrgno¢p develop anti-PD-L1 and anti-GITR
antibodies, all currently in pre-clinical developmhe

We also actively evaluate complementary produetdiriologies and companies for in-licensing, pastmer acquisition and/or
investment opportunities. To date, we have notivedeapproval for the sale of any of our drug cdatkés in any market and, therefore, have
not generated any product sales from our drug daite.

Our license revenues currently consist of liceress farising from our agreement with lidong. We geéze upfront license fee
revenues ratably over the estimated period in whielwill have certain significant ongoing respoitilgtibs under the sublicense agreement,
with unamortized amounts recorded as deferred teen

We have not earned any revenues from the commedialof any of our drug candidates.

Our research and development expenses consistrpyimiexpenses related to in-licensing of newdaret candidates, fees paid to
consultants and outside service providers for @dihand laboratory development, facilities-relaa@d other expenses relating to the design,
development, manufacture, testing and enhancenienir @rug candidates and technologies. We expeasessearch and development costs
as they are incurred. Research and developmenhsepdor the years ended December 31, 2014 andvi2®@®3$31,354,781 and $12,621,161,
respectively, excluding non-cash compensation esgerelated to research and development.

The following table sets forth the research andettyment expenses per project, exclusive of cesh compensation expenses, fo
periods presented.

2014 2013
TG-1101 $ 15,410,92 $ 8,281,02i
TGR-1202 14,249,85 4,340,13:
IRAK4 1,694,00 —
Total $ 31,354,78 $  12,621,16
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Our general and administrative expenses consisigpilly of salaries and related expenses for exeeutinance and other

administrative personnel, recruitment expensedepsional fees and other corporate expenses, inguavestor relations, legal activities and

facilities-related expenses.

Our results of operations include non-cash compmmsaxpenses as a result of the grants of stotkmpand restricted stock.

Compensation expense for awards of options andatest stock granted to employees and directonsesemts the fair value of the award
recorded over the respective vesting periods ofrttiwidual awards. The expense is included inrdspective categories of expense in the

consolidated statements of operations. We expeariinue to incur significant non-cash compensagigpenses.

For awards of options and restricted stock to clvasts and other third-parties, compensation expéndetermined at the

“measurement date.” The expense is recognizedtheeresting period of the award. Until the measneindate is reached, the total amount o
compensation expense remains uncertain. We recongensation expense based on the fair value @tiaed at the reporting date. The
awards to consultants and other third-partiestee tevalued, or the total compensation is recailedlbased on the then current fair value, at
each subsequent reporting date. This results image to the amount previously recorded in regpfettte equity award grant, and additional
expense or a reversal of expense may be recordrdsequent periods based on changes in the assuspsed to calculate fair value, suc

changes in market price, until the measurementidatached and the compensation expense is faaliz

In addition, certain restricted stock issued to kmyges vest upon the achievement of certain mitestptherefore, the total expense is

uncertain until the milestone is probable.

Our clinical trials will be lengthy and expensizen if these trials show that our drug candidateseffective in treating certain
indications, there is no guarantee that we wilabke to record commercial sales of any of our drargdidates in the near future. In addition, we
expect losses to continue as we continue to fudidémsing and development of new drug candidatesve continue our development efforts,
we may enter into additional third-party collab@ratagreements and may incur additional expenses, &s licensing fees and milestone
payments. In addition, we may need to establiskcéimemercial infrastructure required to manufactararket and sell our drug candidates
following approval, if any, by the FDA, which woultdsult in us incurring additional expenses. Assult, our quarterly results may fluctuate

and a quarter-by-quarter comparison of our opegatisults may not be a meaningful indication of fotre performance.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

License revenue

Costs and expense
Research and developme

Noncash stock expense associated w-licensing agreemen

Noncash compensatic
Other research and development
Total research and development
General and administrativ
Noncash compensatic
Other general and administrative
Total general and administrative
Impairment of in-process research and development
Total costs and expenses
Operating los!

Other expense (income), net

Net loss
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Years Ended December 31

2014 2013
$ 152,38: $ 152,38:
5,350,09. —
8,731,56/ 1,041,51
26,004,68 12,621,16
40,086,34 13,662,68
12,373,72 4,161,62!
3,413,40 2,496,46
15,787,12 6,658,091

— 2,797,60!

55,873,47 23,118,37
(55,721,09)  (22,965,98)
60,18¢ (2,487,77)

$ (55,781,27)

$ (20,478,21)




License Revenukicense revenue was $152,381 for each of the yeatsd December 31, 2014 and 2013. License revematated t
the amortization of an upfront payment of $2.0 imillassociated with our license agreement withntdd he upfront payment from lldong w
be recognized as license revenue on a straightéses through December 2025, which representsstimated period over which the
Company will have certain ongoing responsibilitiegler the sublicense agreement.

Noncash Stock Expense Associated with In-licersgrgementdNoncash stock expense associated with in-liceresijmgements was
$5,350,094 for the year ended December 31, 201ehrapared to $0 for the year ended December 313. Zte expense during the year en
December 31, 2014 was recorded in conjunction thighstock issued to Rhizen of approximately $4000to exercise our option to license
TGR-1202, and approximately $1,200,000 for the comstock issued to Ligand as an upfront paymenthi@ticense to the IRAK4 inhibitors
program.

Noncash Compensation Expense (Research and DewigpNoncash compensation expense (research and deweitprelated to
equity incentive grants increased by $7,690,04if$d,041,519 for the year ended December 31, 20$8,731,566 during the year ended
December 31, 2014. The increase in noncash comiimgapense was primarily related to milestdyased vesting of restricted stock grani
employees and consultants during the year endedrblaer 31, 2014. We expect noncash compensatiomssgeesearch and development) to
remain at a comparable level in 2015.

Other Research and Development Expensther research and development expenses incrbgskiB,383,526 from $12,621,161
the year ended December 31, 2013 to $26,004,68%Ndorear ended December 31, 2014. The increasthén research and development
expenses was due primarily to increased reseactkdarelopment expenses associated with TG-110T &M 1202 of approximately
$7,100,000 and $3,800,000, respectively. In aduitituring the year ended December 31, 2014 we erpe4,000,000 related to the upfront
cash milestone payment to Rhizen to exercise tleadie option for TGR-1202. We expect our otheraredeand development costs to increast
during 2015 as we commence multiple Phase 3 ratjmtrprograms.

Noncash Compensation Expense (General and Adnatigt). Noncash compensation expense (general and adratiisjrrelated to
equity incentive grants increased by $8,212,09m$d,161,629 for the year ended December 31, 20$32,373,726 during the year ended
December 31, 2014. The increase in noncash comjimgapense was primarily related to milestdyased vesting of restricted stock grani
personnel during the year ended December 31, 20&4expect noncash compensation expense (generabamidistrative) to remain at a
comparable level in 2015.

Other General and Administrative Expens€ther general and administrative expenses inedeshyg $916,939 from $2,496,461 for
year ended December 31, 2013 to $3,413,400 foygheended December 31, 20The increase was due primarily to Delaware frarechis
taxes, legal fees and Nasdaq listing fees. We ¢xpeother general and administrative expensaictease modestly during 2015.

Impairment of in-process research and developm&he impairments recognized in 2013 related tdrifgrocess research and
development intangible asset recorded in connegtitinthe Exchange Transaction. As of Decembe2813, as a result of expiring
intellectual property, uncertain regulatory pathejeand market changes affecting the commerciahtiatdor the Ariston in-process research
and development asset (AST-726), the Company detedtthat the asset's carrying value was no loregmverable. Impairment testing of our
indefinite lived intangible assets is performedwadly or when a triggering event occurs that canticate a potential impairment.

Other Expense (Income), Nedther income decreased by $2,547,964 from $2{Z875f income for the year ended December 31,
2013 to $60,185 of expense for the year ended Digee81, 2014. Other income for the year ended Dbeedil, 2013 included a change in
the fair value of notes payable of approximatelys$2,000 resulting from the valuation of the comibée notes payable to zero except for the
conversion feature of the notes payable. See Néiefarther details.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary sources of cash have been from theafaquity securities, the upfront payment from 8ublicense Agreement with
lldong, and warrant and option exercises. We hatget commercialized any of our drug candidates@annot be sure if we will ever be able
to do so. Even if we commercialize one or morewfdrug candidates, we may not become profitable.aDility to achieve profitability
depends on a number of factors, including our tytiti obtain regulatory approval for our drug catades, successfully complete any post-
approval regulatory obligations and successfullpowrcialize our drug candidates alone or in pastnipr We may continue to incur
substantial operating losses even if we begin teegge revenues from our drug candidates.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $78,861,334 in aadicash equivalents, investment securities, rriedeist receivable. Subsequent
to the year ended December 31, 2014, we sold bab1a369,777 shares of common stock under thé& 200M for aggregate net proceeds of
approximately $19.3 million.

We currently anticipate that our cash and cashvadpnts as of December 31, 2014 plus the amouistsd'aubsequent to the end of
the year are sufficient to fund our anticipatedragieg cash requirements for more than 24 montite iDecember 31, 2014. The actual amour
of cash that we will need to operate is subjechémy factors, including, but not limited to, thenitng, design and conduct of clinical trials for
our drug candidates. We are dependent upon signtffinancing to provide the cash necessary towdgemur current operations, including the
commercialization of any of our drug candidates.

Cash used in operating activities for the year dridlecember 31, 2014 was $35,059,919 as compa&tDi@39,110 for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in cashusge@rating activities was due primarily to insed expenditures associated with our
clinical development programs for TG-1101 and TGR?Z, and the upfront cash milestone payment of 84llibn to exercise the license for
TGR-1202.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net cashugggbsting activities was $18,355,289 as companeb4,925,552 for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in net cashin investing activities was primarily due toiacrease in our investment in held-to-
maturity treasury securities.

Cash provided by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2014 was $68,643,526 as comiue$88,694,133 for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in net casidpd by financing activities in 2014 was prinhareelated to the 2013 ATM Facility and
2014 Equity financing, as discussed below, as agffroceeds from the exercise of warrants.

2013 ATM Facility

On June 21, 2013, we entered into an At-the-Mddtance Sales Agreement (the “2013 ATM") with MR\Co. LLC (“MLV")
under which we could issue and sell shares of ommeon stock, having aggregate offering proceedgpdd $50.0 million, from time to time
through MLV, acting as the sales agent. Under greament we would pay MLV a commission rate ofaf.0% of the gross proceeds from
the sale of any shares of common stock sold thrddigii.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we stithhof 4,850,055 shares of common stock underahiangement for aggregate
total gross proceeds of approximately $50.0 milkban average selling price of $10.31 per shaet pkbceeds were approximately $48.8
million after deducting commissions and other teami®n costs. We have fully utilized the capacitgler this 2013 ATM and, accordingly, no
further sales can be made under this 2013 ATM.

2014 Equity Financing

On March 11, 2014, we announced the pricing ofrasretwritten sale of 2,702,809 shares of our comatock at a price of $6.71 per
share for gross proceeds of approximately $18.liamilNet proceeds from this offering were approaiety $16.8 million, net of underwriting
discounts and offering expenses of approximatel@ #illion. The shares were sold under a shelfstegfion statement on Form S-3 (File No.
333-189015) that was previously filed and declatective by the SEC on June 17, 2013.

2013 Equity Financing

On July 18, 2013, we announced the pricing of atewoaritten public offering of 5,700,000 shares of oommon stock at a price of
$6.15 per share for gross proceeds of approxim&&3ymillion. We also granted to the underwrite0aday option to acquire an
additional 855,000 shares to cover overallotmantonnection with the offering, which they exerdis€otal net proceeds from this offering,
including the overallotment, were approximately $3million, net of underwriting discounts and offey expenses of approximately
$2.7 million. The shares were sold under a sheltetion statement on Form S-3 (File No. 383015) that was previously filed and decl:
effective by the SEC on June 17, 2013.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have not entered into any transactions with nsalidated entities whereby we have financial guiaes, subordinated retained
interests, derivative instruments or other contmgerangements that expose us to material contngks, contingent liabilities, or any other
obligations under a variable interest in an uncbdated entity that provides us with financing,uidity, market risk or credit risk support.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The discussion and analysis of our financial caodiaind results of operations is based upon ousalatated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with U.Sergdly accepted accounting principles. The preapmaraf these financial statements
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfeat dfie reported amount of assets and liabildies related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of our financial stagts and the reported amounts of revenues and sepeuring the applicable period. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under giffeassumptions or conditions.

We define critical accounting policies as thosé #re reflective of significant judgments and utaiaties and which may potentially
result in materially different results under diffat assumptions and conditions. In applying theisieal accounting policies, our management
uses its judgment to determine the appropriatenagsons to be used in making certain estimatessé@ lestimates are subject to an inherent
degree of uncertainty. Our critical accounting giels include the following:

Revenue Recognitio'WWe recognize license revenue in accordance Wwéhdvenue recognition guidance of the Financiaodating
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Jodifon, or Codification. We analyze each elemédrduw licensing agreement to
determine the appropriate revenue recognition.t&has of the license agreement may include paynienis of non-refundable up-front
license fees, milestone payments if specified divjes are achieved, and/or royalties on produessale recognize revenue from upfront
payments over the period of significant involvemender the related agreements unless the feeeiscimange for products delivered or serv
rendered that represent the culmination of a sépaaxnings process and no further performancegatimin exists under the contract. We
recognize milestone payments as revenue upon thevatnent of specified milestones only if (1) thitestone payment is non-refundable,

(2) substantive effort is involved in achieving théestone, (3) the amount of the milestone is@rable in relation to the effort expended or
the risk associated with achievement of the milestand (4) the milestone is at risk for both jgattif any of these conditions are not met, we
defer the milestone payment and recognize it asmaw over the estimated period of performance uhéecontract.

Stock CompensatiariWe have granted stock options and restricteckgtoemployees, directors and consultants, asagelNarrants t
other third parties. For employee and director tgahe value of each option award is estimatethertdate of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The Black-Scholes model taikés account volatility in the price of our sto¢ke riskfree interest rate, the estimated
of the option, the closing market price of our &taad the exercise price. We base our estimatearastock price volatility on the historical
volatility of our common stock and our assessméfitoire volatility; however, these estimates aeéhrer predictive nor indicative of the futi
performance of our stock. For purposes of the ¢aticun, we assumed that no dividends would be gaithg the life of the options and
warrants. The estimates utilized in the Black-Sebaalculation involve inherent uncertainties dredapplication of management judgment. In
addition, we are required to estimate the expefcidditure rate and only recognize expense foreéheguity awards expected to vest. As a
result, if other assumptions had been used, oorded stock-based compensation expense could le@verbaterially different from that
reported. In addition, because some of the op@maswarrants issued to employees, consultants thwed third-parties vest upon the
achievement of certain milestones, the total expé&nancertain.

Total compensation expense for options and restristock issued to consultants is determined dntleasurement dateThe expens
is recognized over the vesting period for the optiand restricted stock. Until the measurementidatsached, the total amount of
compensation expense remains uncertain. We retack-based compensation expense based on theafa# of the equity awards at the
reporting date. These equity awards are then redalor the total compensation is recalculated basdtie then current fair value, at each
subsequent reporting date. This results in a chemtfee amount previously recorded in respect efdfuity award grant, and additional
expense or a reversal of expense may be recordadsequent periods based on changes in the assuspsed to calculate fair value, suc
changes in market price, until the measurementidatached and the compensation expense is faaliz
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In-process Research and Developmehll acquired research and development proje@secorded at their fair value as of the date
acquisition. The fair values are assessed as dfatemce sheet date to ascertain if there hasdrgeimpairment of the recorded value. If there
is an impairment the asset is written down to itsent fair value by the recording of an expense.

Accruals for Clinical Research Organization andr@al Site CostsWe make estimates of costs incurred in relatioexternal
clinical research organizations, or CROs, and @dihsite costs. We analyze the progress of cliias, including levels of patient enroliment,
invoices received and contracted costs when evafuttte adequacy of the amount expensed and thedebrepaid asset and accrued liability.
Significant judgments and estimates must be madeaised in determining the accrued balance and sggarany accounting period. We
review and accrue CRO expenses and clinical thi@ysexpenses based on work performed and rely aptimates of those costs applicable tc
the stage of completion of a study. Accrued CR€&iare subject to revisions as such trials pregmesompletion. Revisions are charged to
expense in the period in which the facts that gise to the revision become known. With respediitical site costs, the financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation aydnoan contract to contract. Payments under theséracts may be uneven, and depend on
factors such as the achievement of certain evrgsuccessful recruitment of patients, the conpleif portions of the clinical trial or similar
conditions. The objective of our policy is to matble recording of expenses in our financial statem# the actual services received and
efforts expended. As such, expense accruals refatelchical site costs are recognized based orestimate of the degree of completion of the
event or events specified in the specific clinstaidy or trial contract.

Accounting Related to Goodwils of December 31, 2014 and 2013, there was $72%88oodwill on our consolidated balance
sheets. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annyalk when events arise that could indicate thatrgairment exists. We test for goodwill
impairment using a two-step process. The first steppares the fair value of the reporting unit witd unit's carrying value, including
goodwill. When the carrying value of the reportingt is greater than fair value, the unit's goodwihy be impaired, and the second step mus
be completed to measure the amount of the goothapihirment charge, if any. In the second stepijrtied fair value of the reporting unit's
goodwill is compared with the carrying amount of timit's goodwill. If the carrying amount is greatiean the implied fair value, the carrying
value of the goodwill must be written down to itsalied fair value.

We are required to perform impairment tests anguatlDecember 31, and whenever events or changascumstances suggest that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoler&br all of our acquisitions, various analysessumptions and estimates were made at th
time of each acquisition that were used to deteerttie valuation of goodwill and intangibles. Inug years, the possibility exists that change
in forecasts and estimates from those used atctipgsition date could result in impairment indiaato

Accounting For Income Taxes$n preparing our consolidated financial stateragwe are required to estimate our income taxes
of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This @es involves management estimation of our actuaéctutax exposure and assessment of
temporary differences resulting from differing tmeant of items for tax and accounting purposesseéhifferences result in deferred tax asset
and liabilities. We must then assess the likelihtihad our deferred tax assets will be recoverenh flature taxable income and, to the extent we
believe that recovery is not likely, we must esttbh valuation allowance. To the extent we esthldi valuation allowance or increase this
allowance in a period, we must include an experig@mthe tax provision in the consolidated statataef operations. Significant managen
judgment is required in determining our provisionifhicome taxes, our deferred tax assets anditiabiand any valuation allowance recor:
against our net deferred tax assets. We havediithgt our deferred tax assets with a valuatioovedince. Our lack of earnings history and the
uncertainty surrounding our ability to generateats® income prior to the reversal or expiratiosath deferred tax assets were the primary
factors considered by management in maintainingy#gation allowance.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to ASC 8@wenue from Contracts with Customers. This upttafeSC 606 provides a
five-step process to determine when and how reventeeognized. The core principle of the guidaisadat a Company should recognize
revenue upon transfer of promised goods or serv@ceastomers in an amount that reflects the exgectnsideration to be received in
exchange for those goods or services. This upda&C 606 will also result in enhanced disclosaiesut revenue, providing guidance for
transactions that were not previously addresseguoeimensively, and improving guidance for multiplereent arrangements. This update to
ASC 606 is effective for us beginning in fiscal ZOWe are currently evaluating the impact of thpdate on our consolidated financial
statements.
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On June 10, 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standadpdiate No. 2014-10, Development Stage Entitiesniaktion of Certain
Financial Reporting Requirements. The update restive definition of a development stage entity fleASB ASC 915 and eliminates the
requirement for development stage entities to prisiseeption-to-date information on the statemerfitsperations, cash flows and stockholders
deficit. We early adopted this standard for thequkr covered by this report.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslarddate 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statésnresoing Concern, whic
requires that management of an entity should etalvhether there are conditions or events, consitlierthe aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the entity’s ability to continue asoéng concern within one year after the date thaffitlancial statements are issued or available
to be issued. This update will become effectivermgg January 1, 2017, with early adoption perittThe provisions of this standard are
expected to significantly impact the Company.

Other pronouncements issued by the FASB or oth#iostative accounting standards group with futeffective dates are either not
applicable or not significant to our consolidatadhfcial statements.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements and the rtbireto, included in Part IV, Item 15(a), parafeg incorporated by reference into
this Item 8.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES.
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur&s.of December 31, 2014, management carried oataluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our CHiedecutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officef,the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and proced(asgslefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) ®Scurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Our disclosure agrtand procedures are designed to provide realoasfurance that information we are
required to disclose in the reports that we filswalomit under the Exchange Act is recorded, preckssimmarized and reported within the 1
periods specified in applicable rules and formsedgbupon that evaluation, our Chief Executive ah@fFinancial Officers concluded that, as
of December 31, 2014, our disclosure controls andquures were effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control over FinahReporting.Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining
adequate internal control over financial reporfjag defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15d-15(f) enthe Exchange Act). Our management
assessed the effectiveness of our internal coote financial reporting as of December 31, 20h4nkking this assessment, our managemen
used the criteria established in Internal Contrbitegrated Framework (2013) issued by the CommitfeSponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission, or COSO Framework. Our managehas concluded that, as of December 31, 20X4ntaunal control over financi
reporting was effective based on these criteria.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2014 was audite@ohnReznick LLP, our
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report appearing below, which expeglsan unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcéporting as of December 31, 2014.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogiffhere were no changes in our internal control divwancial reporting during
the quarter ended December 31, 2014 that have ialbt@ffected, or are reasonably likely to mattyiaffect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Contr@sir management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does
not expect that our disclosure controls and proeeiar our internal control over financial repogtinill prevent all errors and all fraud. A
control system, no matter how well conceived anerafed, can provide only reasonable, not absas®jrance that the objectives of the
control system are met. Further, the design ofrerobsystem must reflect the fact that there aspurce constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their ca3gause of the inherent limitations in all cohtiystems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control isanésinstances of fraud, if any, within our Compaaye been detected.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TG Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subgdianternal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2014, based on crit
established in Internal ContrbMegrated Framework (2013) issued by the CommittéeSponsoring Organizations of the Tread
Commission (COSO). TG Therapeutics, Iaarianagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting :
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intecaaitrol over financial reporting included in thecampanying ManagemestReport o
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express an opinion on TG Therape,tinc.'s internal control over financ
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @ nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofriretiecontrol based on the assessed risl
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaadit provides a reasonable basis foi
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with acéogmirinciples generally accepted in
United States of America. A compagyinternal control over financial reporting inclisdéhose policies and procedures that (1) pertaiie
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detziljrately and fairly reflect the transactions digbositions of the assets of the company
provide reasonable assurance that transactionseaceded as necessary to permit preparation afhéial statements in accordance !
accounting principles generally accepted in thetéthiStates of America, and that receipts and adpees of the company are being m
only in accordance with authorizations of managdmaed directors of the company; and (3) providesoeable assurance regarding prevel
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitioneuer disposition of the compayassets that could have a material effect onittamdia
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsid@has maintained, in all material respects, @ffednternal control over financial reporti
as of December 31, 2014 based on the COSO critéfea.have also audited, in accordance with the staisdof the Public Compa
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), thesotidated financial statements of TG Therapeutits, and Subsidiaries as of Decembel
2014 and 2013, and for each of the years then emdgdur report dated March 16, 2015, expressethgualified opinion thereon.

/sl CohnReznick LLP

Roseland, New Jersey
March 16, 2015
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference from our Proxy Statemenbv@r2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item is incorpediherein by reference from our Proxy Statemend@or2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this Item is incorpediherein by reference from our Proxy Statemend@or2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this Item is incorp@éterein by reference from our Proxy Statemenbv@mr2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.
The information required by this Item is incorpediherein by reference from our Proxy Statemend@or2015 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS and FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
1. Consolidated Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statement§ & Therapeutics, Inc. are filed as part of thisorép

Contents Page
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, &84 201: F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2014 and 2 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yearedrdecember 31, 2014 and 2( F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded December 31, 2014 and 2 F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-6

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted as the information regpliis inapplicable or the information is preseritethe consolidated financial
statements or the related notes.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponatdf TG Therapeutics, Inc. dated April 26, 20itiz@rporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Registra's Form 1-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20.

3.2 Restated Bylaws of TG Therapeutics, Inc. d&tag 14, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Ext8t to the Registrant’s Form
1C-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20!

4.1 Specimen common stock certificate (incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’srird. 0-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011

4.2 Form of Warrant issued to Noteholders on Selpgzril, 2008 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBiR to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed on September 15, 200¢

4.3 Form of Warrant issued to Noteholders on Novemil9, 2008 (incorporated by reference to ExhiBi6Xo the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form-K filed on November 25, 2008

4.4 Form of warrant to purchase common stock ofTh@rapeutics, Inc. (incorporated by reference thiltik4.1 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed on November 13, 2012

4.5 Form of Placement Agent Warrant (incorporatgddierence to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’sr€at Report on Form 8-K filed
on November 25, 2008

4.6 Warrant, dated October 28, 2009 (incorporateckference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’'srt€at Report on Form 8-K filed
on November 3, 2009

4.7 Form of Placement Agent Warrant (incorporatgddierence to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’sr€at Report on Form 8-K filed
on November 3, 2009
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

101

2003 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refeegto Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Registrationt&taent on Form S-8 filed
February 17, 2004

Form of Stock Option Agreement issued undeiRagistrant 2003 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refereéadexhibit 10.1¢
to the Registrant's Form -KSB filed April 2, 2007).

Amended and Restated Convertible Promissotg,Miated March 1, 2011 (incorporated by referéadexhibit 10.1 to the
Registrar’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 7, 2011}

Employment Agreement, effective December P312between the Registrant and Michael Weiss (parated by reference to
Exhibit 10.30 to the Registre’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 201:

Restricted Stock Subscription Agreement, &ffedecember 29, 2011, between the Registrantindael Weiss (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Regist's Form 1+-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 201:

Employment Agreement, effective December 3,12 between the Registrant and Sean Power (inarzbby reference to
Exhibit 10.32 to the Registre’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 201:

Restricted Stock Subscription Agreement, &ffedecember 29, 2011 between the Registrant aad Sower (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Regist’'s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 201:

Form of Warrant issued to stockholders (inocafed by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the Regidts Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 201

License Agreement, dated January 30, 201andyamong the Registrant, GTC Biotherapeutics, LtB Biotechnologies S.A.S.
and LFB/GTC LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhil).35 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K for the &ikgear ended December
31, 2011).*

TG Therapeutics, Inc. Amended and Restat&d Bitentive Plan, dated May 14, 2012 (incorpor&tgdeference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Registra’s Form 1-Q/A for the quarter ended March 31, 201

Securities Exchange Agreement, dated Nove®#812, by and between the Company and LFB Bintelogies S.A.S.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thegiRtran’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on November 13, 2012

Joint Venture Agreement between TG Therapgutic. and Rhizen Pharmaceuticals SA, dated Augys2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 201

Sublicense Agreement between TG Therapeuticsahmat lldong Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., dated Noveni3e2012 (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the Regist's Form 1+-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 201:

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Certification of Principal Executive Office

Certification of Principal Financial Office

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

The following financial information from TG Tiapeutics, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foe tfear ended December 31,
2014, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reipgrt anguage): (i) Consolidated Balance SheejsC@nsolidated

Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Stateisof Stockholders’ Equity, (iv) Consolidatedt8taents of Cash Flows, (V)
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Indicates management contract or compensatorygularrangemer
Confidential treatment has been requested witheisp omitted portions of this exhil
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TG Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiéties‘Company”) as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statsméoperations, equity and cash flows for thargehen ended. TG Therapeutics, Inc.’s
management is responsible for these consolidatesidial statements. Our responsibility is to expesopinion on these consolidated finar
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examininga ¢@st basis, evidence supporting the amounts igokbsures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well agatirgg the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providessonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of TG
Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Dece®bge2014 and 2013, and their results of operatmuscash flows for the years then ende:
conformity with accounting principles generally eapted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), TG Therapeut
Inc. and Subsidiaries internal control over finahaieporting as of December 31, 2014 based onrieritsstablished in Internal Contrel
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the CommitfeSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cossion (COSO) and our report de
March 16, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinioretbre

/sl CohnReznick LLP

Roseland, New Jersey
March 16, 2015
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2@hd 2013

2014 2013
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 55,713,78 40,485,46
Shor-term investment securitie 23,062,03 —
Interest receivabl 85,51¢ 27,16¢
Prepaid research and developmr 6,179,74. 1,742,82.
Other current assets 173,95: 47,80¢
Total current asse 85,215,02 42,303,26
Restricted cas 575,01: —
Long-term investment securitit — 4,918,89
Equipment, ne 20,357 5,71¢
Goodwill 799,39: 799,39:
Other assets 137,10: 85,12:
Total asset $ 86,746,89 48,112,39
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Notes payable, current portis $ 275,19( 677,77¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 3,991,62! 4,764,50;
Accrued compensatic 702,00( 532,50(
Current portion of deferred reven 152,38: 152,38:
Interest payable — 190,01
Total current liabilities 5,121,19 6,317,17
Deferred revenue, net of current port 1,523,811 1,676,19
Notes payable, less current portion, at fair vi — 64,52¢
Total liabilities 6,645,00 8,057,89:
Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share (1000Ghares authorized, none issued and outste
as of December 31, 2014 and 20 — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value per share (150,00(36d 500,000,000 shares authorized,
44,974,248 and 34,336,235 shares issued, 44,93ar894,294,926 shares outstanding at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectiv 44,97 34,33¢
Contingently issuable shar 6 6
Additional paic-in capital 175,476,52 79,658,49
Treasury stock, at cost, 41,309 shares at Dece®ih@014 and 201 (234,33) (234,33)
Accumulated deficit (95,185,28) (39,404,00)
Total equity 80,101,88 40,054,49
Total liabilities and equity $ 86,746,89 48,112,39

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofcthresolidated financial statements.
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Year&nded December 31, 2014 and 20:

2014 2013

License revenue 152,38: 152,38:
Costs and expense
Research and developme

Noncash stock expense associated w-licensing agreemen 5,350,09. —

Noncash compensatic 8,731,56 1,041,51

Other research and development 26,004,68 12,621,16
Total research and development 40,086,34 13,662,68
General and administrativ

Noncash compensatic 12,373,72 4,161,62'

Other general and administrative 3,413,401 2,496,46
Total general and administrative 15,787,12 6,658,09!
Impairment of in-process research and development — 2,797,60!
Total costs and expenses 55,873,47 23,118,37
Operating loss (55,721,09) (22,965,98)
Other (income) expens

Interest income (55,049 (30,829

Other income (95,42°) (108,89

Interest expens 930,70: 952,88!

Change in fair value of notes payable (720,04() (3,300,95)
Total other expense (income), net 60,18t (2,487,77)
Net loss (55,781,27) (20,478,21)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share (1.69) (0.87)
Weighted average shares used in computing basidiandd net loss per common share 34,068,92 25,413,96

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofcthresolidated financial statements.
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Years Eneld December 31, 2014 and 20:

Balance at January 1, 20

Issuance of common stock in connection with exel
of warrants

Issuance of common stock in connection with cast
exercise of warrant

Issuance of restricted sto

Issuance of common stock in public offering (ne
offering costs of $2,664,97!

Compensation in respect of restricted stock ancks
options granted to employees, directors and
consultant:

Surrender of common stock for tax withhold

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20

Issuance of common stock in connection with exel
of warrants

Issuance of common stock in connection with exel
of options

Issuance of restricted sto

Forfeiture of restricted stoc

Issuance of common stock in public offering (ne
offering costs of $1,344,44i

Issuance of common stock in At the Market offerfngt
of offering costs of $1,101,57.

Compensation in respect of restricted stock aneks
options granted to employees, directors and
consultant:

Common stock issued in connection wit-licensing
agreement

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20

Contingently Additional
Common stock issuable paid-in Treasury Stock Accumulated

Shares Amount shares capital Shares Amount deficit Total
25,820,73 $ 25.82: $ 6 $ 34,534,80 13,52¢ $ (84,53 $(18,925,79) $ 15,550,30
1,013,00 1,018 2,279,761 2,280,77:
3,02 3 (@) O]
944,46 94¢ (944) —
6,555,001 6,55¢ 37,641,72 37,648,28
5,203,14: 5,203,14
27,78¢ (149,799 (149,79)
(20,478,21) (20,478,21)
34,336,23 34,33¢ 6 79,658,49 41,30¢ (234,33) (39,404,00) 40,054,49
1,560,82 1,561 3,555,06: 3,556,62
46,00( 46 202,35: 202,401
982,79: 98¢ (983) —
(1,000 (1) 1 —
2,702,80! 2,70:% 16,788,70 16,791,40
4,850,05! 4,85( 48,818,00 48,822,85
21,105,29 21,105,29
496,53l 49¢€ 5,349,59° 5,350,09:
(55,781,27) (55,781,27)
4497424  $ 4497  $ 6 $175,476,52 41,30¢ $ (234,33) $ (95,185,28) $ 80,101,88

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofcthresolidated financial statements.
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YeaEnded December 31, 2014 and 20:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Gain on settlement of note paya
Noncash stock compensation expe
Noncash stock expense associated w-licensing agreemen
Impairment of i-process research and developn
Depreciatior
Amortization of premium on investment securit
Change in fair value of notes paya
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effettcquisition:
Increase in restricted ca
(Increase) decrease in other current as
Increase in accrued interest receive
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and acerpemse
(Decrease) increase in interest pay:
Decrease in deferred revenue

Net cash used in operating activit
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of equipme

Investment in helto-maturity lon¢-term securitie:
Investment in held-to-maturity short-term secusitie
Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the exercise of warre
Proceeds from the exercise of optit
Payment of notes payat

Proceeds from sale of common stock,
Deferred financing costs pa

Purchase of treasury stock

Net cash provided by financing activiti

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

2014 2013

(55,781,27) $ (20,478,21)
(95,42) —
21,105,29 5,203,14:
5,350,09. _
— 2,797,60

3,931 1,127
193,58: 97t
210,66: (2,414,56)
(575,01) —
(4,563,06) 229,25
(58,34 (27,169
(603,37) 4,034,60.
(94,59() 66,50¢
(152,38) (152,38)
(35,059,91) (10,739,11)
(18,570) (5,687)
— (4,919,87)
(18,336,71) —
(18,355,28) (4,925 55)
3,556,62. 2,280,77:
202,40 —
(677,779 —
65,614,26 37,648,28
(51,980) (85,12:)
— (149,799
68,643,52 39,694,13
15,228,31 24,029,47
40,485,46 16,455,99
55,713,78 $ 40,485,46

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofcthresolidated financial statements.
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencekis report to “TG, us” and “o ur” refer to TG Therapeutics, Inc. a

our subsidiaries.

Company,” “we,

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AC COUNTING POLICIES
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused ondpgigition, development and commercialization ofeldreatments for b-cell
malignancies and autoimmune diseases. CurrentyGdimpany is developing two therapies targetingdtelngical malignancies. TG-1101
(ublituximab) is a novel, glycoengineered monoclardibody that targets a specific and unique ggton the CD20 antigen found on mature
B-lymphocytes. TG Therapeutics is also developi@R¥1202, an orally available PI3K delta inhibitbhe delta isoform of PI3K is strongly
expressed in cells of hematopoietic origin anceléelved to be important in the proliferation andvétal of B-lymphocytes. Both TG-1101 and
TGR-1202 are in clinical development for patientdwvihematologic malignancies. The Company alsoshaie-clinical program to develop
inhibitors of IRAK4 (interleukin-1 receptor-assotgd kinase 4), as well as an antibody researchrgnogp develop anti-PD-L1 and anti-GITR
antibodies, all currently in pre-clinical developmhe

We also actively evaluate complementary produetdyriologies and companies for in-licensing, pastmer acquisition and/or
investment opportunities. To date, we have notiveceapproval for the sale of any of our drug cdatés in any market and, therefore, have
not generated any product sales from our drug daitei.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have incurred operating losses since our ingepéind expect to continue to incur operating le$sethe foreseeable future and
may never become profitable. As of December 3142@& have an accumulated deficit of $95,185,280.

Our primary sources of cash have been proceedstfiremprivate placement and public offering of egsiecurities, the upfront
payment from our Sublicense Agreement with lldohgrmaceutical Co. Ltd. (“lldong”), and warrant aqution exercises . We have not yet
commercialized any of our drug candidates and damagure if we will ever be able to do so. Evewéfcommercialize one or more of our
drug candidates, we may not become profitable.aDility to achieve profitability depends on a numbgfactors, including our ability to
obtain regulatory approval for our drug candidasescessfully complete any post-approval regulatdigations and successfully
commercialize our drug candidates alone or in gastmp. We may continue to incur substantial ojiregdbsses even if we begin to generate
revenues from our drug candidates.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $78,861,334 in aadihcash equivalents, investment securities, radeist receivable. We
currently anticipate that our cash and cash egemig) inclusive of the funds raised subsequeriteéenhd of the year, to be sufficient to fund
anticipated operating cash requirements for maxa 8 months from December 31, 2014. The actualiatraf cash that we will need to
operate is subject to many factors, including,rmitlimited to, the timing, design and conduct kxiical trials for our drug candidates. We are
dependent upon significant future financing to pevhe cash necessary to execute our currenttigresaincluding the commercialization of
any of our drug candidates.

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Capitathdaand trades under the symbol “TGTX.”
RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to ASC 8@wenue from Contracts with Customers. This upttafeSC 606 provides a
five-step process to determine when and how reventeeognized. The core principle of the guidaisadat a Company should recognize
revenue upon transfer of promised goods or serv@ceastomers in an amount that reflects the expecdnsideration to be received in
exchange for those goods or services. This upda&C 606 will also result in enhanced disclosaesut revenue, providing guidance for
transactions that were not previously addresseguoeimensively, and improving guidance for multiplereent arrangements. This update to
ASC 606 is effective for us beginning in fiscal ZOWe are currently evaluating the impact of thpdate on our consolidated financial
statements.
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

On June 10, 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standapdiate No. 2014-10, Development Stage Entitiesniltion of Certain
Financial Reporting Requirements. The update resitdwe definition of a development stage entity fleASB ASC 915 and eliminates the
requirement for development stage entities to prisiseeption-to-date information on the statemerfitsperations, cash flows and stockholders
deficit. We early adopted this update as of June26804.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslafddate 2014-15, Presentation of Financial StatésneGoing Concern, whic
requires management of an entity to evaluate whétleee are conditions or events, considered iragggegate, that raise substantial doubt
about the entity’s ability to continue as a goilmgecern within one year after the date that thenfine statements are issued or available to be
issued. This update will become effective beginnlaguary 1, 2017, with early adoption permittece Provisions of this standard are not
expected to significantly impact the Company.

Other pronouncements issued by the FASB or oth#iostative accounting standards group with futeffective dates are either not
applicable or not significant to our consolidatathhcial statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresp(*GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and judgments tleat #fie reported amounts of assets and liabitnesthe disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial stagens and the reported amounts of revenues and sapeluring the applicable reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimatesclt®differences could be material to the finansiatements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
We treat liquid investments with original maturitief less than three months when purchased asacdstash equivalents.
RESTRICTED CASH

We record cash pledged or held in trust as restticash. As of December 31, 2014, we have appraeiyn®0.6 million of restricted
cash pledged to secure a line of credit as a sgaeposit for a Desk Agreement (see Note 9).

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities at December 31, 2014 and 20a8ist of short-term and long-term governmenusges. We classify these
securities as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturitgsaties are those securities in which we haveathibty and intent to hold the security until
maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are recor@témortized cost, adjusted for the amortizatioaaaretion of premiums or discounts.
Premiums and discounts are amortized or accretedtbe life of the related held-to-maturity secues an adjustment to yield using the
effective interest method.

A decline in the market value of any investmenusi#g below cost, that is deemed to be other tleamporary, results in a reduction in
the carrying amount to fair value. The impairmentharged to operations and a new cost basisd@dburity is established. Other-than-
temporary impairment charges are included in istesiad other income (expense), net. Unrealizedsgdidetermined to be temporary, are
included in accumulated other comprehensive inconeguity. Dividend and interest income are recagdiwhen earned.

CREDIT RISK
Financial instruments that potentially subject @mmpany to concentrations of credit risk consighprily of cash and cash

equivalents, short-term investments and long-tewastments. The Company maintains its cash andezpskalents with high-credit quality
financial institutions. At times, such amounts nexgeed federally-insured limits.
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

REVENUE RECOGNITION

We recognize license revenue in accordance withetenue recognition guidance of the FASB Accoungitandards Codification, or
Codification. We analyze each element of our lidepsigreement to determine the appropriate reveseegnition. The terms of the license
agreement may include payments to us of non-retlad#p-front license fees, milestone paymentsetdfed objectives are achieved, and/or
royalties on product sales. We recognize reverma fipfront payments over the period of significanblvement under the related agreem
unless the fee is in exchange for products deltvereservices rendered that represent the culmimati a separate earnings process and no
further performance obligation exists under thetiamt. We recognize milestone payments as revepae the achievement of specified
milestones only if (1) the milestone payment is-nefundable, (2) substantive effort is involvedichieving the milestone, (3) the amount of
the milestone is reasonable in relation to there&fimpended or the risk associated with achieverogtite milestone, and (4) the milestone is a
risk for both parties. If any of these conditiome not met, we defer the milestone payment andgrgee it as revenue over the estimated pe
of performance under the contract.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Generally, research and development costs are segers incurred. Nonrefundable advance paymentgpfmis or services that will
be used or rendered for future research and deveopactivities are deferred and amortized ovep#rénd that the goods are delivered or the
related services are performed, subject to an sisseg of recoverability. We make estimates of ciogtsrred in relation to external clinical
research organizations, or CROs, and clinicalcsits. We analyze the progress of clinical triaisluding levels of patient enroliment, invoi
received and contracted costs when evaluatingdbguecy of the amount expensed and the relate@igrapset and accrued liability.
Significant judgments and estimates must be madeaised in determining the accrued balance and sggarany accounting period. We
review and accrue CRO expenses and clinical ti@ysexpenses based on work performed and rely aptimates of those costs applicable tc
the stage of completion of a study. Accrued CRQscage subject to revisions as such trials progmesempletion. Revisions are charged to
expense in the period in which the facts that gise to the revision become known. With respediitical site costs, the financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation aydnoan contract to contract. Payments under theséracts may be uneven, and depend on
factors such as the achievement of certain evérgsuccessful recruitment of patients, the conplaif portions of the clinical trial or similar
conditions. The objective of our policy is to matble recording of expenses in our financial statem# the actual services received and
efforts expended. As such, expense accruals refatelthical site costs are recognized based orestimate of the degree of completion of the
event or events specified in the specific clinstaidy or trial contract.

IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

All acquired research and development projectseerded at their fair value as of the date of &itjon. The fair values are assesse
of the balance sheet date to ascertain if therdéas any impairment of the recorded value. Ifaligran impairment, the asset is written down
to its current fair value by the recording of apense. Impairment is tested on an annual basizoores, if there is an indication of impairment,
and consists of a comparison of the fair valuénhefib-process research and development with ityingramount.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and liaketiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to temporary differebeéseen the financial statement carrying amounexisting assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, operating losses and tait cezdyforwards. Deferred tax assets and liaketithre measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearghith those temporary differences are expectdukteecovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a chandexirates is recognized in operations in the petadlincludes the enactment date. If the
likelihood of realizing the deferred tax assetdiaility is less than “more likely than not,” aluation allowance is then created.

We, and our subsidiaries, file income tax retumthie U.S. Federal jurisdiction and in variousetatVe have tax net operating loss
carryforwards that are subject to examination faumber of years beyond the year in which they wergerated for tax purposes. Since a
portion of these net operating loss carryforwar@g ime utilized in the future, many of these netrafieg loss carryforwards will remain subj
to examination.

We recognize interest and penalties related tortaioegncome tax positions in income tax expense.
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

STOCK - BASED COMPENSATION

We recognize all share-based payments to emplayek non-employee directors as compensatiorefuice as compensation
expense in the consolidated financial statemergsdan the fair values of such payments. Stockebesmpensation expense recognized eacl
period is based on the value of the portion of stsed payment awards that is ultimately expeotedst during the period. Forfeitures are
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if asagy, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitaliéfer from those estimates.

For share-based payments to consultants and diingpiarties, compensation expense is determinétedimeasurement date.” The
expense is recognized over the vesting periodeoathard. Until the measurement date is reachedptakamount of compensation expense
remains uncertain. We record compensation expessedon the fair value of the award at the reppdite. The awards to consultants and
other third-parties are then revalued, or the tobahpensation is recalculated based on the thearduair value, at each subsequent reporting
date.

BASIC AND DILUTED NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic net loss per common share is calculated\oglidg net loss applicable to common shares bytbighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluetdass per common share is the same as basiossepér common share, since potentially
dilutive securities from stock options, stock watsaand convertible preferred stock would haverdidiutive effect either because the
Company incurred a net loss during the period mpiteskor because such potentially dilutive secwritiere out of the money and the Company
realized net income during the period presented.arhounts of potentially dilutive securities exa@ddrom the calculation were 8,890,796 .
10,618,584 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respbctduring the years ended December 31, 2014 aa8 the Company incurred a net |
therefore, all of the dilutive securities are exigld from the computation of diluted loss per share.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Long-lived assets are reviewed for an impairmess lwhen circumstances indicate that the carryihgevaf long-lived tangible and
intangible assets with finite lives may not be remrable. Management's policy in determining whetrrimpairment indicator exists, a
triggering event, comprises measurable operatinigppeance criteria as well as qualitative measufea analysis is necessitated by the
occurrence of a triggering event, we make certagumptions in determining the impairment amourthéfcarrying amount of an asset exct
its estimated future cash flows, an impairment ghas recognized.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or @hevents arise that could indicate that an impaitraxists. We test for goodwiill
impairment using a two-step process. The first steppares the fair value of the reporting unit witd unit's carrying value, including
goodwill. When the carrying value of the reportingt is greater than fair value, the unit's goodwihy be impaired, and the second step mus
be completed to measure the amount of the goothapihirment charge, if any. In the second stepijrtmied fair value of the reporting unit's
goodwill is compared with the carrying amount o timit's goodwill. If the carrying amount is greatiean the implied fair value, the carrying
value of the goodwill must be written down to itgalied fair value. We will continue to perform imipaent tests annually, at December 31,
and whenever events or changes in circumstancgesutat the carrying value of an asset may noétaverable.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Money market fund $ 12,364,53 $ 554,06
Checking and bank deposits 43,349,224 39,931,39
Total $ 55,713,78 $ 40,485,46
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TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

NOTE 3 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES
We record our investments as either held-to-mataritavailable-for-sale. Held-tmaturity investments are recorded at amortized
The following tables summarize our investment siiesrat December 31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31, 201.

Gross Gross
Amortized cost, unrealized unrealized Estimated
as adjusted holding gains holding losses fair value
Shor-term investments
Obligations of domestic governmental agencies (nraju
between January 2015 and December 2015) (held-toritya  $ 23,062,03 $ 92z $ 580¢ $ 23,057,15
Total shor-term investment securitit $ 23,062,03 $ 922 $ 580¢ $ 23,057,15

December 31, 201.

Gross Gross
Amortized cost, unrealized unrealized Estimated
as adjusted holding gains holding losses fair value
Long-term investments
Obligations of domestic governmental agencies (nragu
between January 2015 and April 2015) (held-to-nigfur $ 4,918,89 $ — $ 65C $ 4,918,24
Total long-term investment securities $ 4,918,89 $ — 3 65C $ 4,918,24

NOTE 4 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

We measure certain financial assets and liabilitefair value on a recurring basis in the finahstatements. The fair value hierarchy
ranks the quality and reliability of inputs, or asgptions, used in the determination of fair valnd eequires financial assets and liabilities
carried at fair value to be classified and disaloiseone of the following three categories:

« Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for itEitassets and liabilities;
o Level 2 —inputs other than Level 1 quoted prides are directly or indirectly observable; and
« Level 3 —unobservable inputs that are not corratear by market data.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the fair valdessh and cash equivalents, restricted cash, afed and interest payable, current
portion approximate their carrying value.

At the time of our merger (we were then known asiMtan Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Manhattan”)) wittisfon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(“Ariston”) in March 2010, Ariston issued $15,452%of five-year 5% notes payable (the “5% Noter"}atisfaction of several note payable
issuances. The 5% Notes and accrued and unpeiéshthereon are convertible at the option ohitider into common stock at the
conversion price of $1,125 per share. Ariston edite make quarterly payments on the 5% Notes @éq&% of the net product cash flow
received from the exploitation or commercializatafmriston’s product candidates, AST-726 and ASIE9 We have no obligations under the
5% Notes aside from a) 50% of the net product flas¥s from Ariston’s product candidates, if anyyphle to noteholders; and b) the
conversion feature, discussed above.

In connection with the exchange transaction withBiGlogics (“TGBio”) in December 2011, we performadaluation of the assets
and liabilities of Manhattan immediately prior teettransaction. The cumulative liability includiagcrued and unpaid interest of these notes
was approximately $16,876,000 immediately priothi® transaction, and $19,544,720 and $18,614,00@e¢mber 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. As these notes payable are tiedttirexnet product cash flows derived from the pisting products of Ariston, this note and
accrued interest was recorded at fair value of@&3,;200 as of the date of the transaction. No paysrteave been made on these notes as of
December 31, 2014.
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We elected the fair value option for valuing the Bistes upon the transaction with TGBio. We eledtexifair value option in order to
reflect in our financial statements the assumpttbas market participants use in evaluating thestial instruments.

As of December 31, 2013, as a result of expiriniglliectual property rights and other factors aswulised below in Nonrecurring Fair
Value Measurements, it was determined that netymtothsh flows from AST26 were unlikely. As we have no other obligatianger the 5%
Notes aside from the net product cash flows anddmeersion feature, the conversion feature wad tsestimate the 5% No” fair value as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013. The assumptionssss&nts and projections of future revenues afedub uncertainties, are difficult to
predict and require significant judgment. The ukdifberent assumptions, applying different judgrm@ninherently subjective matters and
changes in future market conditions could resuiigmificantly different estimates of fair valuedatine differences could be material to our
consolidated financial statements.

The following tables provide the fair value measueats of applicable financial liabilities as of @etber 31, 2014 and 2013:

Financial liabilities at fair value
as of December 31, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5% Notes $ — 3 — % 275,19( $ 275,19(
Totals $ — $ —  $ 275,19 $ 275,19(

Financial liabilities at fair value
as of December 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5% Notes $ — 3 — % 64,52¢ $ 64,52¢
Totals $ — 3 — % 64,52¢ $ 64,52¢

The Level 3 amounts above represent the fair vafitlee 5% Notes and related accrued interest.

The following table summarizes the changes in L&viektruments for the years ended December 313 20d 2014:

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 2,479,09:
Interest accrued on face value of 5% N¢ 886,38:
Change in fair value of Level 3 liabilities (3,300,95)

Balance at December 31, 2C 64,52¢
Interest accrued on face value of 5% N 930,70:
Change in fair value of Level 3 liabilitie (720,040

Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 275,19(

The change in the fair value of the Level 3 lial@h is reported in other (income) expense in tewmpanying consolidated statem
of operations.
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Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurement

There were no nonrecurring fair value measurendunisg the year ended December 31, 2014. The fatigwable summarizes the
assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurririg 8a®f December 31, 2013:

Fair value measurements
as of December 31, 2013

Total impairment charge
for the year ended

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31, 2013
Assets:
In-process research and developn $ — % — % — % (2,797,60)
Total $ — $ — $ — $ (2,797,601

As of December 31, 2013, as a result of expiritigliactual property rights, uncertain regulatoryhpeays, and market changes
affecting the commercial potential for the Aristorprocess research and development asset (AST-K2&)etermined that the asset's carrying
value was no longer recoverable. Accordingly, dytime year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded-gash impairment charge
of $2,797,600, which was recorded as impairmeim-@irocess research and development in our coraelidstatements of operations. The fail
value of this asset was determined to be zero pilives a result of the expiring intellectual profyerights surrounding the asset. This fair vi
measurement technique is based on significant $npatt observable in the market and thus represelnéyel 3 measurement within the fair
value hierarchy.

NOTE 5 — STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmaguthorizes the issuance of up to 10,000,00@stampreferred stock, $0.001 par
value, with rights senior to those of our commatkf issuable in one or more series. Upon issuahegzompany can determine the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions thereb&se rights, preferences and privileges could dechlividend rights, conversion rights, voting
rights, terms of redemption, liquidation prefere)c@nking fund terms and the number of sharestitotisg any series or the designation of
such series, any or all of which may be greatan tha rights of common stock.

Stockholder Rights Plat

On July 18, 2014, we adopted a stockholder riglas.('he stockholder rights plan is embodied inSteckholder Protection Rights
Agreement dated as of July 18, 2014 (the “Rightseament”), between us and American Stock Transférdst Company, LLC, as rights
agent (the “Rights Agent”).

Accordingly, the Board of Directors declared arnlsttion of one right (a “Right”) for each outstand share of common stock, to
stockholders of record at the close of busines3ubn28, 2014, for each share of common stock t¢ueluding shares distributed from
treasury) by us thereafter and prior to the Sejmardtime (as defined in the Rights Agreement), fonctertain shares of common stock issued
after the Separation Time. Following the Separalione, each Right entitles the registered holdgnuhase from us one one-thousandth
(1/1,000) of a share of Series A Junior ParticimpfPreferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share'Rreferred Stock"), at a purchase price of
$100.00 (the "Exercise Price"), subject to adjustm&he description and terms of the Rights ardas¢h in the Rights Agreement. Each one
onethousandth of a share of Preferred Stock has suttata the same rights as one share of commorksfauabject to the terms and conditic
of the Rights Agreement, Rights become exercis@nlalays after the public announcement that a tPédsas become an “Acquiring
Person” (as each such term is defined in the Riggtsement). Any Rights held by an Acquiring Persoa void and may not be exercised.

If a Person becomes an Acquiring Person, all heldéRights, except the Acquiring Person, may pasehat the Right's then-current
exercise price, common stock having a market vetpel to twice the exercise price. Moreover, attimg after a Person becomes an
Acquiring Person (unless such Person acquires B@peor more of our common stock then outstandisgnore fully described in the Rights
Agreement), the Board of Directors may exchangéball not less than all) of the then outstandingh®& (other than rights owned by such
Person, which would have become void) for sharemofmon stock at an exchange ratio of one shateramon stock per Right, appropriat
adjusted in order to protect the interests of haldé Rights.

The Rights Agreement was approved by our Boardifdiors on July 18, 2014. The Rights will expitaéhe close of business on its
ten year anniversary, unless earlier exchangeeroinated by us.
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Common Stock

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmaguthorizes the issuance of up to 150,000,00@ st $0.001 par value common
stock. At the annual shareholder meeting on Ju2@B4, an amendment to the Company's Certificateanfrporation to decrease its author
share capital by 350,000,000 shares from 500,00a®@50,000,000 was approved.

On July 18, 2013, we announced the pricing of atenaritten public offering of 5,700,000 shares of oommon stock at a price of
$6.15 per share for gross proceeds of approxim&&dymillion. We also granted to the underwrite@aday option to acquire an additional
855,000 shares to cover overallotments in conneetith the offering. Total net proceeds from thifedng, including the overallotment, were
approximately $37.6 million, net of underwritingsdounts and offering expenses of approximately 82llibn. The shares were sold under a
shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (File BB8-189015) that was previously filed and decla#ective by the SEC on June 17, 2013.

On March 11, 2014, we announced the pricing ofrasretwritten sale of 2,702,809 shares of our comatock at a price of $6.71 per
share for gross proceeds of approximately $18.liamilNet proceeds from this offering were approaiety $16.8 million, net of underwriting
discounts and offering expenses of approximatel@ #illion. The shares were sold under a shelfstegfion statement on Form S-3 (File No.
333-189015) that was previously filed and declafective by the SEC on June 17, 2013.

On June 21, 2013, we entered into an At-the-Mddstance Sales Agreement (the “2013 ATM") with MR\Co. LLC (“MLV")
under which could issue and sell shares of our comstock, having an aggregate offering price ofaw$50.0 million, from time to time
through MLV, acting as the sales agent. Under greament we would pay MLV a commission rate ofaf.0% of the gross proceeds from
the sale of any shares of common stock sold thrddigii.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we stithhof 4,850,055 shares of common stock for agmpestotal gross proceeds of
approximately $50.0 million at an average sellinggof $10.31 per share. Net proceeds were appairly $48.9 million after deducting
commissions and other transactions costs. We hdlyeutilized the capacity under this 2013 ATM amdcordingly, no further sales can be
made under this 2013 ATM.

We currently have two shelf registration statement§orm S-3 filed and declared effective by th&€SEile No. 333-189015 and File
No. 33:-201339). These shelf registration statements geofor the offering of up to approximately $317lrait of common stock. We may
offer the securities under our shelf registratitatesnents from time to time in response to markatlitions or other circumstances if we
believe such a plan of financing is in the bestnests of our stockholders. We believe that thke# segistration statements provide us with
flexibility to raise additional capital to finanoair operations as needed.

Treasury Stock

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, 41,309 sharesrofnon stock are being held in Treasury, at a@ospproximately $234,000,
representing the fair market value on the datestia@es were surrendered to the Company to satigfjogee tax obligations.

Equity Incentive Plans
In May 2012, we established the TG Therapeutias,Amended and Restated 2012 Incentive Plan (“20d@ntive Plan”). Under the
2012 Incentive Plan, our compensation committe@oafd of directors is authorized to grant stockebdaawards to directors, consultants,

employees and officers. The 2012 Incentive Plahai#es grants to purchase up to 6,000,000 sh&masgiworized but unissued common stc
As of December 31, 2014, no options were outstandird up to an additional 126,000 shares may bedssnder the 2012 Incentive Plan.
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Stock Options

The following table summarizes stock option acyidr the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Weighteo-
Weighted- average Aggregate
Number average Contractual Intrinsic
of shares exercise price Term Value
(in years)
Outstanding at January 1, 20 46,90 $ 61.0¢ 9.4
Grantec — —
Exercisec — —
Forfeited (319 2,249.8!
Expired — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 46,59 46.31 850 %
Grantec — —
Exercisec (46,000 4.4(C
Forfeited — —
Expired (397 4,457.5
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 194 $ 971.7( 350 ¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 194 $ 971.7( 35 $

As of December 31, 2014, there are no unvestedmptivards and no unrecognized compensation casédebption awards.

Restricted Stock

Certain employees, directors and consultants haga bwarded restricted stock. The restricted stesking consists of milestone and

time-based vesting. The following table summarizssricted share activity for the years ended Déxeer31, 2014 and 2013:

Weighted
Average
Grant Date

Number of Share: Fair Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2C 6,614,24. $ 4.4¢
Grantec 944,46« 4.1%
Vested (523,75() 2.4¢
Forfeited — —

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 7,034,95 $ 4.6C
Grantec 982,79: 13.5¢
Vested (1,616,74) 6.52
Forfeited (1,000 6.6

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 6,400,00. $ 5.8¢€

Total expense associated with restricted stocktgnaas $20,726,512 and $5,146,743 during the y@ated December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. As of December 31, 2014, thexe approximately $15.5 million of total unrecogrdzzompensation cost related to
unvested time-based restricted stock, which is eepkto be recognized over a weighted-average goefi@.1 years. This amount does not
include, as of December 31, 2014, 134,302 sharssstricted stock outstanding which are milestoaseldl and vest upon certain corporate
milestones; and 2,027,750 shares of restricted stotstanding issued to non-employees. Milestased noreash compensation expense
be measured and recorded if and when a milestangoclhe expense for non-employee shares is dietdmt the “measurement date.” The
expense is recognized over the vesting periodeoathard. Until the measurement date is reachedptakamount of compensation expense
remains uncertain. We record compensation expesssadon the fair value of the award at the reppdite.
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Warrants
The following table summarizes warrant activity foe years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Weighteo- Aggregate

average Intrinsic
Warrants  exercise price Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 6,781,000 $ 1.5¢ $14,563,53
Issuec — —
Exercisec (1,018,06) 2.2F
Expired (43,997) 16.2¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 5,718,94 1.3¢ $14,809,03
Issuec — —
Exercisec (1,560,82) 2.2¢
Expired (9,897 20.7¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 4,148,221 $ 0.9/ $61,792,18

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of stock options granted is estirdatethe date of grant using the Black-Scholesmgimodel. The expected term of
options granted is derived from historical data #redexpected vesting period. Expected volatibthased on the historical volatility of our
common stock. The risk-free interest rate is basethe U.S. Treasury yield for a period consisteittt the expected term of the option in
effect at the time of the grant. We have assumeekpected dividend yield, as dividends have neeenlpaid to stock or option holders and
will not be paid for the foreseeable future. Ther(Pany did not grant any stock options during theryended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

The following table summarizes stock-based comp@rsaxpense information about stock options astricted stock for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Stock-based compensation expense associated with redtsttick $ 20,726,51 $ 5,146,74.
Stock-based compensation expense associated with gptions 378,78( 56,40¢

$ 21,10529 $ 5,203,14i

NOTE 6 — NOTES PAYABLE

The following is a summary of notes payable:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Non- Non-
current current
Current portion, Current portion,
portion, net net Total portion, net net Total

Convertible 5% Notes Payak $ 275,19 $ - $ 275,19( $ - $ 64,52¢ $ 64,52¢
ICON Convertible Note - - - 677,77 - 677,77
Totals $ 275,19( $ - $ 275,19 $ 677,77¢ $ 64,52¢ $ 742,30°

We assumed the preceding notes payable as thé oéHut transaction between the Company and TGBeoordingly, a valuation
using the guidance in the accounting literaturebigsiness combinations (ASC 805) was performediaegk notes have been presented at the
fair value on the date of the transaction.
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Convertible 5% Notes Payable

At the time of our merger with Ariston in March ZD(as discussed in Note 4), Ariston issued $157820f five-year 5% notes
payable (the “5% Notes”) in satisfaction of severate payable issuances. The 5% Notes and acangednpaid interest thereon are
convertible at the option of the holder into comnstock at the conversion price of $1,125 per shamiston agreed to make quarterly
payments on the 5% Notes equal to 50% of the matymt cash flow received from the exploitation ommercialization of Ariston’s product
candidates, AST-726 and AST-915. We have no odfidiga under the 5% Notes aside from a) 50% of #teroduct cash flows from Arista’
product candidates, if any, payable to noteholdard;b) the conversion feature, discussed above.

Interest accrues monthly, is added to principadwrannual basis, every March 8, and is payableasunity, which is March 8, 2015.

In connection with the exchange transaction withBiGlogics (“TGBio”) in December 2011, we performadaluation of the assets
and liabilities of Manhattan immediately prior teettransaction. The cumulative liability includiagcrued and unpaid interest of these notes
was approximately $16,876,000 immediately priothi transaction, and $19,544,720 and $18,614,00@eember 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. As these notes payable are tiedttirexnet product cash flows derived from the pisting products of Ariston, this note and
accrued interest was recorded at fair value of@&3,200 as of the date of the transaction. No paysrieave been made on these notes as of
December 31, 2014. See Note 4 for further details.

ICON Convertible Note Payabl

As of December 31, 2013, the principal amount efAimended ICON Note was $677,778, of which therefitalance had been
classified as current. Interest payable on the AledriCON Note was $190,017 as of December 31, 281Bnuary 2014, we entered into a
settlement and release agreement with ICON retatéus note, under which we agreed to pay $772i866ll settlement of the principal and
interest due on this note, resulting in a gain98,827.

NOTE 7 — INCOME TAXES

We account for income taxes under the asset abititifamethod. Deferred tax assets and liabilites determined based on
differences between the financial reporting ando@asis of assets and liabilities and are measusieg the enacted tax rates and laws that will
be in effect when the differences are expectedverse. A valuation allowance is established whemessary to reduce deferred tax assets to
the amount expected to be realized. In determitliegieed for a valuation allowance, managemengéwes/both positive and negative evide
including current and historical results of opeara$, future income projections and the overall peess of our business. Based upon
management's assessment of all available evidemcbkelieve that it is more-likely-than-not that theferred tax assets will not be realizable,
and therefore, a valuation allowance has beenlestell. The valuation allowance for deferred tasess was approximately $69,084,000 and
$46,283,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, cteply.

As of December 31, 2014, we have U.S. net operdsgycarryforwards (“NOLSs") of approximately $1867,000. For income tax
purposes, these NOLs will expire in various amotimtsugh 2034. The Tax Reform Act of 1986 contgirmvisions which limit the ability to
utilize net operating loss carryforwards in theecabcertain events including significant changeswnership interests. The Exchange
Transaction with TG Bio may have resulted in a fap@in ownership” as defined by IRC Section 38thefinternal Revenue Code of 1986, a:
amended. Accordingly, a substantial portion of@mnpany’s NOLs above may be subject to annualditioihs in reducing any future year’s
taxable income.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities at
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are presented below.

2014 2013

Deferred tax assets (liabilities

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 52,350,29 $ 32,399,87
Research and development cre 3,358,93. 2,266,16
Noncash compensatic 12,417,81 10,971,91
Other 956,72 644,89¢
Deferred tax asset, excluding valuation allows 69,083,76 46,282,85
Less valuation allowance (69,083,76) (46,282,85)
Net deferred tax asse $ — 3 —

There was no current or deferred income tax expmdae years ended December 31, 2014 and 20&8mie tax expense differed
from amounts computed by applying the US Federarre tax rate of 34% to pretax loss as follows:

For the year ended December 3.

2014 2013
Loss before income taxes, as reported in the ciolzded statements of operations $ (55,781,27) $ (20,478,21)
Computec“expecte” tax benefil $ (18,965,63) $ (6,962,59)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting f
Expected benefit from state and local te (2,533,15) (917,810)
Research and development cre (1,092,76) (250,001)
Other 35,45¢ 43,02¢
Permanent difference related to contingent najabple (244,81, (1,924,55)
Change in the balance of the valuation allowdaceeferred tax asse 22,800,91 10,011,93
$ — $ =

We file income tax returns in the U.S Federal aadous state and local jurisdictions. With certexceptions, the Company is no
longer subject to U.S. Federal and state incomexarinations by tax authorities for years prioe@d1. However, NOLs and tax credits
generated from those prior years could still beistéid upon audit.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesdertain tax positions in income tax expense inctiresolidated statements of
operations. There was no accrual for interest amalies related to uncertain tax positions for2afd 2013. We do not believe that there will
be a material change in our unrecognized tax positover the next twelve months. All of the unratpgd tax benefits, if recognized, would
be offset by the valuation allowance.

NOTE 8 — LICENSE AGREEMENTS
TGR-1202

On September 22, 2014, we exercised our opticicéade the global rights to TGR-1202, thereby émgento an exclusive licensing
agreement (the “TGR-1202 License”) with Rhizen Riageuticals, SA (“Rhizen”) for the development aocthmercialization of TGR-1202.
Prior to this, we had been jointly developing TGE32 in a 50:50 joint venture with Rhizen.

Under the terms of the TGR202 License, Rhizen received a $4.0 million cemjyment and 371,530 shares of our common stock
upfront license fee. With respect to TGR-1202, Rhiwill be eligible to receive regulatory filingpproval and sales-based milestone paymen
in the aggregate of approximately $175 millionpga#l portion of which will be payable on the fitdew Drug Application (NDA) filing and
the remainder on approval in multiple jurisdictidos up to two oncology indications and one nonalagy indication and attaining certain
sales milestones. In addition, if TGR-1202 isfoonulated with another drug to create a new pro¢atNew Product"), Rhizen will be eligik
to receive similar regulatory approval and salesedamnilestone payments for such New Product. Aatthily, Rhizen will be entitled to tiered
royalties on our future net sales of TGR-1202 amdMew Product. In lieu of sales milestones analtigs on net sales, Rhizen shall also be
eligible to participate in sublicensing revenueanfy, based on a percentage that decreases agtiariusf the number of patients treated in
clinical trials following the exercise of the licemoption. Rhizen will retain global manufacturnights to TGR-1202, provided that they are
price competitive with alternative manufacturers.
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In connection with the TGR-1202 License, we recegdi$4.1 million of noncash research and developegrense during the year
ended December 31, 2014 related to the issuartte @bove mentioned common stock. In addition,eeegnized $4.0 million of other
research and development expense during the ydadddecember 31, 2014 related to the cash milegtayment.

IRAK4

On June 23, 2014, we entered into an exclusivasdiog agreement with Ligand Pharmaceuticals Inaated ("Ligand") for the
development and commercialization of Ligand's ietgkin-1 receptor associated kinas€41RAK4") inhibitor technology, which currenthgiin
preclinical development for potential use agaimstain cancers and autoimmune diseases. IRAK4&ésine/threonine protein kinase that is a
key downstream signaling component of the inteiileikreceptor and multiple toll-like receptors.

Under the terms of the license agreement, Ligaoéived 125,000 shares of our common stock as aonigicense fee. Ligand will
also be eligible to receive maximum potential nides payments of approximately $207 million upom éichievement of specific clinical,
regulatory and commercial milestone events. Addélty, Ligand will be entitled to royalties on ofuture net sales of licensed products
containing IRAK4 inhibitors. The basic royalty rdte licensed products covered by Ligand's isswédmis will be 6% for annual sales of ug
$1 billion and 9.5% for annual sales in exceshaf threshold.

In connection with the license agreement, we reizegh$1,211,250 of noncash research and developempehse during the year
ended December 31, 2014 in connection with theaissel of the above mentioned common stock.

Additionally, Opus Point Partners, LLC, who ideigd the opportunity and advised us on the transactvill also be entitled to
receive a 1% royalty for annual sales of up to fiibb. Michael S. Weiss, our Executive Chairmardanterim Chief Executive Officer, is a
Managing Member of Opus Point Partners, LLC.

TG-1101

In November 2012, we entered into an exclusivehjwithe territory) sublicense agreement with lldoelating to the development ¢
commercialization of TG-1101 in South Korea andt8east Asia. Under the terms of the sublicenseeageat, lldong has been granted a
royalty bearing, exclusive right, including thehtgo grant sublicenses, to develop and commezeidliG-1101 in South Korea, Taiwan,
Singapore, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand, Philippirvietnam, and Myanmar.

An upfront payment of $2,000,000, which was recgiveDecember 2012, net of $330,000 of income takheldings , is being
recognized as license revenue on a straight-lises lover the life of the agreement, which is thiotlie expiration of the last licensed patent
right or 15 years after the first commercial sdla product in such country, unless the agreensegéailier terminated, and represents the
estimated period over which we will have certaigaing responsibilities under the sublicense agre¢nv¥e recorded license revenue of
approximately $152,000 for each of the years emstember 31 , 2014 and 2013, and, at DecembgePB314 and 2013, have deferred reve
of approximately $1,676,000 and $1,829,000, respalgt associated with this $2,000,000 payment (aximately $152,000 of which has be
classified in current liabilities at December 3012).

We may receive up to an additional $5.0 millionp@yments upon the achievement of ppecified milestones. In addition, uj
commercialization, lldong will make royalty paymeno us on net sales of TG-1101 in the sublicesrsidry.
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NOTE 9 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On January 30, 2012, we entered into an exclugiease agreement with LFB Biotechnologies, GTC lBoapeutics and LFB/GTC
LLC, all wholly-owned subsidiaries of LFB Grouplatng to the development of ublituximab (the “LERBense Agreement”). In connection
with the LFB License Agreement, LFB Group was iss&#00,000 shares of common stock, and a wamgnirchase 2,500,000 shares of
common stock at a purchase price of $0.001 peesharnddition, on November 9, 2012, we nominatedyann Echelard to our Board of
Directors as LFB Group’s nominee. LFB Group maimahe right to nominate a board member until simb as LFB Group owns less than
10% of the outstanding common stock.

In connection with the LFB License Agreement, LFBintained the right to purchase at least $750,0G@ditional shares of comm
stock at a purchase price per share as definedNovamber 2012 securities exchange agreement. Aicgy, in February 2015, LFB
purchased 114,855 shares of our common stock ideaqf $6.53 per share for net proceeds of $7%0,00

Under the terms of the LFB License Agreement, vilzatLFB Group for certain development and mantdaag services. We
incurred approximately $5,200,000 and $6,300,00&jpenses for such services during the years dbdedmber 31 , 2014 and 2013,
respectively, which have been included in otheeaiesh and development expenses in the accompaogimaplidated statements of operations
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had apprdzign®52,000 and $1,745,000, respectively, recordetcounts payable related to the
LFB License Agreement. In conjunction with the depenent and manufacturing services discussed aloeviain agreements between us and
LFB Group require payments in advance of serviesfopmed or goods delivered. Accordingly, as of &aber 31, 2014 and 2013, we
recorded $1,886,518 and $1,629,340, respectivelyrepaid research and development for such adyamaaents.

In March 2014, we entered into a shared serviceseagent with Opus Point Partners Management, LIGP{s”) in which the parties
agreed to share a rented facility and costs fdaireother services. Michael S. Weiss, our ExeeuBhairman and Interim Chief Executive
Officer, is a Managing Member of Opus. During tleayended December 31, 2014, we incurred expehsgproximately $129,000,
principally for rent, related to this agreement.dDecember 31 , 2014, we had approximately $ZBr@8orded in accounts payable related tc
this shared services agreement.

As discussed in Note 8 above, in connection wighlitensing agreement with Ligand, Opus Point RastnLLC, who identified the
opportunity and advised us on the transaction, v@lentitled to receive a 1% royalty for annuagsaif up to $1 billion.

On October 3, 2014, we entered into a Desk Spaceefxgent (the “Desk Agreement”) with Coronado Bieacks, Inc. (‘CNDQ"), to
occupy approximately 40% of the New York, NY offisgace recently leased by CNDO. This Desk Agreemsgptires us to pay our respeci
share of the average annual rent and other cosie df5 year lease. We approximate we will haveagesannual rental obligations of $1.1
million. CNDO does not expect to take possessiamefpace until late 2015 or early 2016. MichadlN8iss, our Executive Chairman and
Interim Chief Executive Officer, is on the boarddifectors and is Executive Vice Chairman, Strat&gvelopment of CNDO.

In connection with the Desk Agreement, we paid 880, which is recorded in other current assethénaccompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014. Also inaxdion with this lease, in October 2014 we agregulédge $0.6 million to secure a line of
credit as a security deposit for the Desk Agreemehich has been recorded as Restricted Cash iactt@mpanying consolidated balance
sheet.

NOTE 10 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Checkpoint Therapeutics, Inc. Collaboration
In March 2015, we entered into a Global Collabarafithe “Collaboration”) with Checkpoint TherapestiInc. (“Checkpoint”), a

subsidiary of CNDO for the development and comnadimation of Checkpoint’'s anti-PD-L1 and anti-GIERtibody research programs in the
field of hematological malignancies.
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Under the terms of the Collaboration, we will makeup-front payment of $500,000 as well as makeldgwment and sales-based
milestone payments up to an aggregate of $164amjland will pay a tiered single digit royalty oetrsales. The royalty term will terminate on
a country by country basis upon the later of (i) years after the first commercial sale of any @pple licensed product in such country, or (ii)
the expiration of the last-to-expire patent helddana Farber containing a valid claim to any li@shproduct in such country.

Mr. Weiss, our Executive Chairman, Interim CEO &mndsident is also is the Executive Vice Chairma@NDO and the Executive
Chairman of Checkpoint.

2015 ATM

In December 2014, we filed a shelf registratiotiesteent on Form S-3 (the “2015 S-3”), which was dexd effective in January 2015.
Under the 2015 S-3, the Company may sell up tded ¢d $250 million of its securities. In connegctiwith the 2015 S-3, we amended our 201
ATM with MLV (the “2015 ATM”") such that we may issuand sell additional shares of our common stoakingy an aggregate offering price
of up to $75.0 million, from time to time throughLM, acting as the sales agent. Under the 2015 ATéMmeuld pay MLV a commission rate
of up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from the sbéagp shares of common stock sold through MLV.

Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 201gbld:@ total of 1,369,777 shares of common stodeuthe 2015 ATM for

aggregate total gross proceeds of approximately7®idéllion at an average selling price of $14.36 gleare. Net proceeds were approximately
$19.3 million after deducting commissions and othemnsactions costs.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Date: March 16, 2015

TG THERAPEUTICS, INC.

By: /s/ Michael S. Weis
Michael S. Weiss
Executive Chairman, Interim Chief Executive Officer
and Presider

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persornoa signature appears below constitutes and agpeach of Michael
S. Weiss and Sean A. Power, his true and lawfatay-in-fact and agent, with full power of suhgiibn and resubstitution, for him and his
name, place and stead, in any and all capacitiesgh any or all amendments to this annual repofform 10-K, and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto and other documents in connedtierewith, with the SEC, granting unto said attgritefact and agent, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimg) requisite and necessary to be done in andtabe premises, as fully to all intents and

purposes as he might or could do in person, hawifying and confirming all that said attorneyfact and agent or any of his substitutes, ma
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, as amended, this Form 10-K has bined by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant on March 16528nd in the capacities indicated:

Signatures Title
/s/ Michael S. Weiss Executive Chairman, Interim Chief Executive Offieard President
Michael S. Weis: (principal executive officer
/s/ Sean A. Power Chief Financial Officer
Sean A. Powe (principal financial and accounting officer)
/sl Laurence N. Charney Director
Laurence N. Charne
/s/ Yann Echelard Director
Yann Echelarc
/s/ Neil Herskowitz Director
Neil Herskowitz
/s/ William J. Kennedy Director
William J. Kennedy
/s/ Mark Schoenebaum, M.D. Director
Mark Schoenebaum, M.[
/s/ Kenneth Hoberman Director

Kenneth Hoberma
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference iisteggion statement Nos. 333-48531, 333-15807, B33389, 333-181439 and 333-143838
on Form S-8 and registration statement Nos. 33318%2nd 333-201339 on Form S-3 of our report distecth 16, 2015 on our audits of the
consolidated financial statements of TG Therapsuticc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 20d428t3, and for the years then ended
our report on our audit of the internal control ofieancial reporting of TG Therapeutics, Inc. @ubsidiaries as of December 31, 2014, date
March 16, 2015, included in this Annual Report @mr 10K of TG Therapeutics, Inc. and Subsidiaries foryhar ended December 31, 20

/s/ CohnReznick LLFI

Roseland, New Jerst
March 16, 201t




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael S. Weiss, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of TG Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findstéements, and other financial information inled in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principle

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reportin
to the registrar s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thevadent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrargtinterna
control over financial reporting

Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ Michael S. Weis

Michael S. Weiss
Executive Chairman, Interim Chief Executive Offieerd
President

Principal Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIO N 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Sean A. Power, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of TG Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiom@iny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistédements, and other financial information inied in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; anc

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewdent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrargt’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ Sean A. Powe

Sean A. Power
Chief Financial Officer
Principal Financial and Accounting Offic




Exhibit 32.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
TG THERAPEUTICS, INC.
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Tlerapeutics, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tioe year ended December 31,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion (the “Report”), I, Michael S. Weiss, Exe@etiChairman, Interim Chief Executive

Officer and President of the Company, certify, parst to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant t6 §bthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, based on my knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934, as amended; and

2) Theinformation contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company.
Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ Michael S. Weis

Michael S. Weiss

Executive Chairman, Interim Chief Executive Offigard
President

Principal Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF
TG THERAPEUTICS, INC.
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of TG Therdjmsu Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yemded December 31, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissthe (Report”), I, Sean A. Power, Chief Financiafi€dr of the Company, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §9@itedbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, based on moywedge:

1)  The Report fully complies with the requirenseaf Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfgeAct of 1934, as amended; and

2) Theinformation contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ Sean A. Powe

Sean A. Power
Chief Financial Officer
Principal Financial and Accounting Offic




